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A LIGHT THAT CARES
FOR THE ENVIRONMENTL.
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Free of harmful chemicals such as mercury, Bajaj LEDs are also highly energy-efficient. They can last for up to 25,000 hours and save up to 85% power.
Come discover the new revolution in lighting.

LASTS UP TO 25,000 HOURS * ECO-FRIENDLY ¢ SAVES UP TO 85%* POWER

70 ™ > BAJAJ | ED

YEAR ] . .
WARRANTY B = The science of light

T

www.bajajelectricals.com | email: lightingsupport@bajajelectricals.com | g

Terms and conditions apply. Colours shown are for representation purposes only. Actual colours may vary. *Bajaj 7W LED Bulb delivers 600 lumen output as compared to a 60W GLS lamp giving similar light output.
#Hours mentioned is Mean Time Between Failure.



CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE .) Bajaj Electricals Ltd.

BAJAJD /luspiring Jrust

Dear Shareholders,

In last year's Annual Report, | shared my perspective that most of the old projects were closed and major

hits were taken and therefore project business would be a positive EBIDTA for the year
2014-15. However, what we did not realise was that many of the projects which were
delayed will have claims and LD charges because of which collections would be
impacted. We therefore made the necessary provision for the same in the first three
quarters of the last financial year.

With the old legacy projects having been completed and non-collectable receivables
provided for, the operations of the project business have resulted in a strong turn
around in the fourth quarter of FY 2014-15. With over Rs. 3,400 crore orders of
projects in hand, one can look forward to a good performance in the current
financial year.

Further, with the emphasis on margin improvement, cost control, better working
capital management and focus on secondary sale, though the top line has not improved as expected, the
margins and profitability have improved significantly. During the current year, with continued emphasis
on RREP (Range and Reach Expansion Program) we hope to show improved margins quarter-on-quarter
over the corresponding period of the previous year. For the year 2014-15, though the Company registered
a growth of 5.62% in the sales/income from operations to achieve the turnover of Rs. 4,309.42 crore,
ithas resulted in aloss of Rs. 20.82 crore against the loss of Rs. 5.96 crore during the previous year.

Our CSR activity has gained momentum and our anti tobacco and tree plantation drives continue as usual
along with our other new CSRinitiatives.

The Company has all the capabilities and strengths to navigate through the challenges presented by
dynamic business environment and evolving customer preferences. The Company will continue to be a
responsible corporate citizen wherever it operates, and is committed to delivering long-term value
creation forall its stakeholders.

Finally, I would like to thank all our shareholders and also our customers, suppliers, vendors and lenders
for their unstinted support to the Company during the year. | would also like to thank all the employees,
at all levels for their sincere personal efforts as well as their collective dedication and contribution to the
Company's performance. | would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance in
steering the Company to move forward.

Yours sincerely,
i}

c___.-b-—-\/

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
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Ajit Gulabchand (upto 31.07.2014)

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
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Anant Bajaj

Dr.(Mrs.) Indu Shahani

Company Secretary
Mangesh Patil

Auditors
Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants

Secretarial Auditor
Anant B. Khamankar & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries

Cost Auditor
R.Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants

Bankers
State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur; Bank of India; Union Bank of India;
State Bank of India; Yes Bank Ltd.; IDBI Bank Ltd.; HDFC Bank Ltd.

Debenture Trustee
Axis Trustee Services Ltd.

Corporate Management Committee

Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director
Anant Bajaj, Joint Managing Director

Atul Sharma, President — HR&A
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Vaidyanathan Shankar, EVP — DAP BU

Anil Shipley, EVP — Supply Chain Management (CP)
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Mangesh Patil, VP - Legal & Company Secretary
Krishna Raman, VP - Lighting BU

Amit Sethi, VP - Fans BU

Girish Bhave, VP - Corporate Services

Shriram Sehgal, VP - CSD

Karunakar Mowar, VP — Morphy Richards BU
Pradeep Patil, VP — KAP BU

Beena Koshy, VP — Advt. & Brand Development
Sivakumar Balasubramanyam, VP - lllumination
Vijay Anant Bhat, Sr.GM — Power Distribution
Sanjay Bhagat, Sr.G.M. - TLT

Chiranjeev Soni, GM — Internal Audit

Chakan Unit
Sharad Sontakke, Deputy General Manager (Works)

Ranjangaon Unit
Anil Gupta, Vice President — Operations, RU

Kosi Unit
B.B.Mukhopadhyay, Vice President & Head-Kosi Unit

Registered Office
45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai - 400 001
CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887

Corporate Office
701 & 801, Rustomjee Aspiree, Off Eastern Express Highway, Bhanu Shankar Yagnik Marg,
Sion (E), Mumbai-400022

Factories
Chakan Unit, Wind Farm Unit, Ranjangaon Unit & Kosi Unit

Branches
Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Bhubaneshwar, Chandigarh, Chennai, Delhi, Guwahati,
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 76th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Bajaj Electricals Limited will be held on Thursday,
6 August 2015 at 12.30 P.M. at Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021, to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To declare dividend.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Madhur Bajaj (DIN 00014593), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To ratify appointment of M/s Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 102021W) as Statutory Auditors of
the Company on a remuneration of ¥ 65,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty five lacs only) plus service tax thereon and reimbursement of
travelling and other out-of-pocket expenses for the year 2015-16.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.

Approval of remuneration to Cost Auditor

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), approval of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded for the remuneration of ¥1,03,000/- plus
service tax, reimbursement of out-of pocket and travel & living expenses payable to M/s. R.Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 00010), appointed by the Board of Directors as cost auditor of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company and/or Shri Mangesh Patil, Vice President — Legal &
Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Notes:

1

AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of the members upto and not exceeding fifty and holding
in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Amember holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or member.

The proxy form duly completed and signed, should be lodged with the Company, at its Registered Office at least 48 hours
before the time of the meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the
conclusion of the meeting, members would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of
the Company, provided notless than 3 days written notice is given to the Company.

Corporate members are requested to send in advance, duly certified copy of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney
authorising their representative to attend the AGM.

The relative explanatory statement, pursuant to Section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the special business
underitem No.5 is annexed hereto.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

Brief details of the director(s), who is/are being appointed/re-appointed, are annexed hereto as per the requirements of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder & in terms of the approval
given by the members at the AGM of the Company held on 31 July 2014, the current auditors of the Company, M/s Dalal & Shah,
Chartered Accountants are eligible to hold the office for a period of three years, upto FY 2016-17, subject to ratification by
members at every subsequent AGM. The ratification of appointment of M/s Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants as auditors
from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of the next AGM along with their remuneration has been put up for the
approval of the members.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed from Friday, 31July 2015 to Thursday, 6 August 2015 (both days inclusive).
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Subject to the provisions of Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend on equity shares, if declared at the AGM, will be
credited/dispatched commencing on or after 12 August 2015 as under :

a) to all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form, as per the beneficial ownership data as may be made
available to the Company by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL), as of the end-of-the-day on Thursday, 6 August 2015; and

b) to all those members holding shares in physical form, after giving effect to all the valid share transfers lodged with the
Company/Share Transfer Agent (i.e Link Intime India Private Limited) on or before the closing hours on Thursday,
30 July 2015.

Dividend will be preferably paid through National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), wherever the facility is available. Where
dividend payments are made through NECS, intimations regarding such remittances would be sent separately to the members.
In cases where the dividends cannot be paid through NECS, the same will be paid by account payee / non-negotiable
instruments.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by
every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to
their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN details to the Company or Share Transfer Agent.

To ensure timely delivery of shareholders’ communications and also credit of dividend through NECS or dividend warrants /
payment instruments, members are requested to notify change of address, or particulars of their bank account, if changed,
along with the 9 digit MICR / NECS details, to the respective depository participant in case of shares held in demat mode / Share
Transfer Agent of the Company in case of shares held in physical mode, as the case may be, on or before 30 July 2015.

To avoid fraudulent transactions, the identity/signature of the members holding shares in electronic/demat form is verified with
the specimen signatures furnished by NSDL/CDSL and that of members holding shares in physical form is verified as per the
records of the Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Members are requested to keep the same updated.

In terms of Sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Rules made thereunder, the listed
companies may send the notice of AGM and the Annual Report, including Financial Statements, Board Report, etc. by
electronic mode. The Company is accordingly forwarding soft copies of the above referred documents to all those members
who have registered their email address with their respective depository participant or with the Share Transfer Agent of the
Company.

To receive shareholders’ communications through electronic means, including annual reports and notices, members are
requested to kindly register/update their email address with their respective depository participant where shares are held in
electronic form. If, however, shares are held in physical form, members are advised to register their e-mail address with Share
Transfer Agenton - rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory statement shall be available for inspection by the members at the
registered office of the Company on all working days (Monday to Friday) between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. upto the date of the
AGM.

The Company has been maintaining, inter-alia, the following statutory registers at its registered office, which are open for
inspection, on all working days during business hours, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 by
members and others as specified below:

i) Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The said register shall also be produced at the commencement of the AGM of the Company and shall remain open and
accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person having the right to attend the meeting.

i)  Register of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The said register shall be kept open forinspection at the AGM of the Company and shall be made accessible to any person
attending the meeting.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in physical form are advised to file nomination in
the prescribed Form SH-13 (a copy of which is available on the website of the Company) with the Company’s Share Transfer
Agent. In respect of shares held in electronic / demat form, the members may please contact their respective depository
participant.

In terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend not encashed or claimed within 7
(seven) years from the date of its transfer to the unpaid dividend account, will be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Government. Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend in respect of FY 2007-08 is due for
transfer to IEPF on 23 August 2015. In terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, no claim shall lie
againstthe Company or IEPF after the said transfer.

Members who have neither received nor encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the FY 2007-08 to 2013-14, are requested to
write to the Company, mentioning the relevant Folio number or DP ID and Client ID, for issuance of duplicate/revalidated
dividend warrant(s).

Equity shares of the Company are under compulsory demat trading by all investors. Considering the advantage of scripless
trading, members are encouraged to consider dematerialisation of their shareholding so as to avoid inconvenience in future.

Members /Proxies are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the meeting.

Please note that for security reasons, no article / baggage will be allowed at the venue of the meeting.



24. Votingthrough electronic means:

The Company has provided ‘remote e-voting’ (e-voting from a place other than venue of the AGM) facility through Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as an alternative, for all members of the Company to enable them to cast their votes
electronically, on the resolutions mentioned in the notice of the 76th Annual General Meeting of the Company, dated 28 May
2015 (the AGM Notice).

The facility for voting, either through ballot/polling paper shall also be made available at the venue of the AGM. The members
attending the meeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights
at the meeting. The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM.

In terms of requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant Rules, the Company has fixed 31 July 2015 as the ‘Cut-
off Date’. The remote e-voting /voting rights of the shareholders/beneficial owners shall be reckoned on the equity shares held
by them as on the Cut-off Datei.e. 31 July 2015 only.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) Theremote e-voting period begins on Monday, 3 August2015 at 10.00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Wednesday, 5 August 2015
at 05.00 p.m. (IST). During this period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the Cut-off Date i.e. 31 July 2015 may cast their votes electronically. The remote e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting after 5.00 p.m (IST) on 5 August 2015.

(i) Theshareholders should log on to the e-voting website: www.evotingindia.com.
(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) Now Enteryour UserID
a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. ForNSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(v) Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vi) Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) Ifyou are afirsttime user, follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the Sequence Number printed on Attendance Slip, in the PAN Field.

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the Company records for the said
demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format. There are 2 fields provided viz. DOB and Dividend
Bank Details. Any one detail may be entered.

Dividend Bank Details #| Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for
the said demat account or folio.

# Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not recorded
with the depository or Company, please enter the member id / folio number in the ‘Dividend Bank
Details’ field as mentioned in instruction (iv). Dividend Bank Details means Bank account number
which is recorded in the demat account.

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is also to be used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that such company opts for
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(x) Formembers holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. In this case, it would be "Bajaj
Electricals Limited."

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option
YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to
the resolution.



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

(xiii) Clickonthe “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If you as a demat account holder have forgotten the existing password, then enter the User ID and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii)Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

* Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to:
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

» After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

» The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would
be able to cast their vote.

» A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF formatin the system for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Voting through Physical Ballot Form:

In terms of Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the members who do not have access to remote e-voting, are requested to fill
in the physical ballot form being part of the Annual Report (a copy of the same is also part of the soft copy of the Annual Report)
and submit the same in a sealed envelope to the Scrutinizer. Unsigned, incomplete orincorrectly ticked forms shall be rejected.
The ballot form must be received by the Scrutinizer at their address mentioned in Sr. No. 27 on or before 3 August 2015 (5.00
p.m.). The Srutinizer's decision on the validity of the forms will be final. Members are required to vote only through the electronic
system or through physical ballot form and in no other form. In the event a member casts his/her vote through both the
processes, the vote in the electronic system would be considered and the physical ballot vote would be ignored.

Voting facility at AGM

i In addition to the remote e-voting facility/physical ballot form as described above, the Company shall make a voting facility
available at the venue of the AGM, by way of ballot paper.

ii.  Members may participate in the AGM even after exercising right to vote through remote e-voting / physical ballot form as
above but shall not be allowed to vote again at the meeting.

Only such members attending the meeting who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting/physical ballot paper shall
be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting.

M/s.Anant B. Khamankar & Co.,Practicing Company Secretaries, (Membership No. FCS:3198; CP No.:1860) having address
at B-510, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar (West), Mumbai 400 086, have been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process (including the physical ballots received from members who don’t have access to
the e-voting process) and voting at the venue of the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. Scrutinizer’s email id is
khamankar@gmail.com.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter
unlock the votes through e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and
make, not later than three (3) days from the conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company, who shall countersign the same.

The Scrutinizer shall submit his report to the Chairman, who shall declare the result of the voting. The results declared along
with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com and on the website of CDSL
within 2 (two) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and shall also be communicated to the stock
exchanges. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed at the AGM of the Company scheduled to be held on Thursday,
6August2015.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Bajaj Electricals Limited

Mangesh Patil

Mumbai, 28 May 2015 Vice President — Legal & Company Secretary

FCS No.: 4752

Registered Office:
45/47,\Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai-400 001



ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

BRIEF RESUME OF DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE AGM IN PURSUANCE OF CLAUSE 49 OF THE

LISTINGAGREEMENT

Item No. 3 of the Notice

Name of Director

ShriMadhur Bajaj

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00014593
Date of Birth 19 August 1952
Nationality Indian

Qualification & Functional Expertise

B.Com, MBA from Institute of Management Development, Lausanne, Switzerland, a
member of the Board since 1994, Industrialist with over 32 years of experience. He is
also the Vice-Chairman of Bajaj Auto Ltd.

Appointment/Reappointment

Re-appointment on retirement by rotation

No. (%) of Shares held in the Company

20,44,835 (2.03 %) Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each in the Company as on 31 March 2015.

List of Directorship held in other
Companies

1. BajajAuto Limited
2.Bajaj Holdings & Investments Limited

3. Bajaj Finserv Limited

4. Bajaj Finance Limited

5. Maharashtra Scooters Limited

6. Emerald Acres Private Limited

7. Madhur Securities Private Limited
8. Sankalp Resorts Private Limited

Committee Membership Nil

Disclosure of relationships between
directors inter-se

Shri Madhur Bajaj is a younger brother of Shri Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing
Director and uncle of Shri Anant Bajaj, Joint Managing Director of the Company.

Shri Madhur Bajaj is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the directors, except Shri Madhur Bajaj & his relatives, Shri Shekhar Bajaj and Shri Anant Bajaj, are concerned or interested
in the said resolution.

The Board commends this resolution for members’ approval.
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5 of the notice

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 28 May 2015, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment
M/s. R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 00010), as the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2015-16 ata
remuneration of¥1,03,000/- plus service tax, out-of pocket and travel & living expenses.

Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder require the Board to appoint an individual, who is a cost
accountant in practice or a firm of cost accountants in practice, as cost auditor on the recommendations of the Audit Committee,
which shall also recommend remuneration for such cost auditor and such remuneration shall be considered and approved by the
Board of Directors and ratified subsequently by the members. The resolution contained in Item no. 5 of the accompanying Notice,
accordingly, seeks members’ approval of remuneration of Cost Auditor of the Company for FY 2015-16.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. The Board
commends this resolution for members’ approval.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Bajaj Electricals Limited

Mangesh Patil
Vice President — Legal & Company Secretary
FCS No.: 4752

Mumbai, 28 May 2015

Registered Office:
45/47,Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai-400 001



Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

DIRECTORS'REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 76th Annual Report
and the audited financial statements for the financial year

ended 31 March 2015.

Financial Performance:

< in crore

Particulars FY 2014-15 [ FY 2013-14
Revenue from Operations & Other Income 4,309.42 4,079.86
Gross Profit before Finance Cost and Depreciation 113.29 97.09

Less: Finance Cost 105.08 78.30

Less: Depreciation 29.03 24.75
Profit/(Loss) before Taxes (20.82) (5.96)

Less: Provision for Taxation (6.87) (0.65)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (13.95) (5.31)

Add: Balance in Profit & Loss Account 8.69 31.55

Add : Transferred from General Reserve 25.00
Balance available for appropriation 19.74 26.24
Appropriations
(i) Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 15.11 15.00
(i) Tax on Dividend 3.08 2.55
(iii) Transferred to General Reserve - -
(iv) Dividend paid on exercise of Stock Options

along with Dividend Distribution Tax 0.05 -

Closing Balance 1.50 8.69
Earnings per share (1.39) (0.53)

The financial results of the Company are elaborated in the
annexed Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

Increase in number of shares

There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue or
preferential issue etc. during the year. The Company has not
issued shares with differential voting rights. The increase in
number of shares is due to the issue of 7,93,248 equity shares
of 32 each to the employees upon their exercise of stock
options. These shares were included, on weighted average
basis, for the computation of EPS.

Dividend

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, though the
Company has not made any profits, your directors,
considering the future business prospects of the Company,
are pleased to recommend for consideration of the members
at the ensuing annual general meeting, payment of a dividend
of ¥ 1.50 per share (previous year %1.50 per share) out of the
profits earned in the previous years, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 123(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules,
2014. The amount of dividend and the tax thereon aggregate
to%18.19 crore (previous year %17.60 crore). The dividend will
be paid to the members whose names appear in the Register

of Members as on 6 August 2015; in respect of shares held in
dematerialized form, it will be paid to members whose names
are furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, as beneficial
owners as on that date.

Shares that may be allotted on exercise of Options granted
under the Employee Stock Option Scheme before the book
closure date for payment of dividend will rank pari-passu with
the existing shares and be entitled to receive the dividend.

Non-convertible Debentures

During FY 2013-14, the Company had issued 1000 Secured
Rated Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
(NCDs) of 210,00,000/- each, aggregating to 100 crore, on
private placement basis, in two series, Series — 1 0f 400 NCDs
& Series — 2 of 600 NCDs, which are listed on National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) under ISIN ‘INE193E07014"
and ‘INE193E07022’, respectively.

Axis Trustee Services Limited is the Debenture Trustee for the
Debentureholders, whose details are provided in the
corporate governance section of the Annual Report.

Investments

During the year, the Company diluted its holdings in the
associate companies by selling 18,60,000 equity shares of
Hind Lamps Limited and 16,25,000 equity shares of Starlite
Lighting Limited. The profit on sale of these shares has been
recognised in the profit and loss account. Consequent upon
dilution of shareholdings as aforesaid, the said companies are
ceased to be the associates of the Company.

The Company has not paid calls of ¥2.50 per share on 48,000
equity shares and %3.75 per share on 95,997 equity shares of
M. P. Lamps Ltd., aggregating to ¥4.80 lacs and therefore, on
principles of prudence the entire investment in M.P. Lamps
Ltd. is considered as diminished and accordingly carried at Nil
value.

One third of the 10,000,000 - 9% Non-Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Starlite Lighting Limited of
%10 each, are due for redemption in FY 2015-16 and hence
they have been shown under the head ‘Current Investments’.

Details of Investments are given in the notes to the Financial
Statements.

Employees Stock Option Scheme

The Company implemented the Employees Stock Option
Scheme (“Scheme”) in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999
(‘the SEBI Guidelines’) as a measure to reward and motivate
employees as also to attract and retain the talent. Details of
the shares issued under the Scheme, as also the disclosures
in compliance with Clause 12 of the SEBI Guidelines, are set
out herewith as an annexure to this Report. No employee has
been issued stock options, during the year, equal to or
exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the time
of grant.

During the year under review, 5,70,000 Stock Options were
granted to the eligible employees under Growth Plan at the
market price prevailing on National Stock Exchange of India



Ltd. (NSE) as on the date of the grant plus taxes as applicable.
The issuance of equity shares pursuant to exercise of Stock
Options granted under Growth Plan does not affect the profit
and loss account of the Company, as the exercise is made at
the market price prevailing as on the date of the grant plus
taxes as applicable.

The Company has received a certificate from the Auditors of
the Company that the Scheme has been implemented in
accordance with the SEBI Guidelines and the resolutions
passed by the shareholders. The certificate would be placed
atthe Annual General Meeting for the inspection of members.

Operations

Detailed information on the operations of the different
business segments of the Company and details on the state-
of-affairs of the Company are covered in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report.

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return as provided under Sub-section
(3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed
Form MGT- 9is annexed to this report.

Number of Meetings of the Board and Audit Committee

A calendar of meetings is prepared and circulated in advance,
to the Directors. During the year 6 (Six) Board Meetings and 5
(five) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held, the
details of which are given in the Corporate Governance
Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors' Responsibility
Statement, itis hereby confirmed that: -

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and that no material
departures have been made from the same;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2015 and of the loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts of the Company have been
prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;

(e) proper internal financial controls were in place and that
the financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively; and

(f) systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws were in place and were adequate and
operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All the independent directors have submitted the declaration
of independence, as required under Section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in sub-section (6) and Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy & Criteria for matters
under Section 178

Information regarding Directors’ Remuneration Policy &
Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters provided under
sub-section (3) of Section 178 are provided in the section of
Corporate Governance Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
given in the notes to the financial statements annexed to this
Report.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the
financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business. There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the Company
with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large. Thus, the disclosure in
‘Form AOC-2’is not applicable.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee as also the Board for approval. Prior omnibus
approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an annual
basis for the transactions which are of a foreseen and
repetitive nature.

The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval
so granted are audited and a statement giving details of all
related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors for their approval on an annual basis.
The Company has developed a Related Party Transactions
Policy, as approved by the Board and the same is uploaded on
the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or
transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

The details of Related Party Transactions are given in the
notes to the financial statements.

Transfer of amounts to Investor Education and
Protection Fund

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013, relevant amounts which remained unpaid or
unclaimed for a period of 7 years have been transferred by the
Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and
unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 31 July
2014 (date of last Annual General Meeting) on the website of
the Company (www.bajajelectricals.com), as also on the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs website.



Brand Protection

Your Company has taken significant actions against
counterfeits, fakes and other forms of unfair competition/trade
practices.

Material Changes & Commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments,
affecting the financial position of the Company, which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company and the date of this report.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, is annexed to this report.

Risk Management Policy

Information on the development and implementation of a risk
management policy for the Company including identification
therein of elements of risk which in the opinion of the Board
may threaten the existence of the Company is given in the
reporton Management Discussion and Analysis.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Detailed information on CSR Policy developed and
implemented by the Company and CSR initiatives taken
during the year pursuant to Sections 134 & 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is giveninthe annexed CSR Report.

Formal Annual Evaluation of the performance of the
Board, its Committees and the Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board has carried out
an annual performance evaluation of its own performance and
that of its committees and individual directors. The information
on the manner in which the evaluation has been carried out is
givenin the section of Corporate Governance Report.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year, Shri Ajit Gulabchand, Independent & Non-
Executive Director of the Company retired by rotation at the
Company’s 75th Annual General Meeting held on 31 July
2014 and did not seek re-appointment due to his busy
schedule and commitments on other boards. The Board
placed on record its appreciation for the outstanding
contributions made by him during his tenure of office. Since
the Company meets the requirement of independent
directors, the resultant vacancy was notfilled up.

Pursuant to Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, every
listed company is required to appoint at least one third of its
directors as independent directors. The Board already has
more than half of its directors in the category of independent
directors in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The
Board therefore, in its meeting held on 29 May 2014 appointed
the existing independent directors under Clause 49 as
‘independent directors’ pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013
as well. The members at the Annual General Meeting held on
31 July 2014, approved the appointment of the existing
Independent Directors for a term of 5 years, effective from
1April 2014.

Further, during the year under review, Shri Shekhar Bajaj was
re-appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a
further period of five years w.e.f. 01 November 2014. His
appointment was approved by the shareholders by way of an
ordinary resolution passed through postal ballot.

As on the date of this report, Company’s Board comprises of 8
(eight) Directors, out of which, 6 (six) are Non-Executive
Directors (NEDs) including 1 (one) Woman Director. NEDs
represent 75% of the total strength. Further, out of said 6
NEDs, 5 are independent directors representing 62.5% of
total strength of the Board.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Shri Madhur Bajaj retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-
appointment. The information as required to be disclosed
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement in case of re-
appointment of the said director is provided in the notice of the
ensuingAnnual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, during
the year under review, the Company has designated Shri
Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director, Shri Anant
Purandare, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and Shri Mangesh Patil, Vice President — Legal &
Company Secretary as the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the
Regulators or Courts

During the year under review, there were no significant and
material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the
Company and its operations in future.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

Internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements were adequate and operating effectively.

Presentation of financial results

The financial results of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2015 have been disclosed as per Schedule Il to the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Subsidiaries
The Company has no subsidiary as on 31 March 2015.
Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be
provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent
to the members and others entitled thereto, excluding the
information on employees’ particulars which is available for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the
Company during business hours on working days of the
Company upto the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. If any member is interested in inspecting the same,
such member may write to the Company Secretary in
advance.



Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace

Pursuant to the legislation “Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act,
2013” introduced by the Government of India, which came into
effect from 9 December 2013, the Company has framed a
Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy. There were no cases reported
during FY 2014-15 under the Company’s Policy on Prevention
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace.

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy adopted in May
2011, which enables its directors and employees to report
their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or ethics
policy and provides safeguards against victimisation of
director(s)/employee(s), who avail of the mechanism. The
said Policy was amended in February, 2015 to extend its
applicability to other persons dealing with the Company viz.
contractors, vendors, customers and business consultants.
The Policy has been appropriately communicated to the
employees within the organization and posted on the website
of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with stock
exchanges, a separate report on corporate governance has
been included in this Annual Report together with a certificate
from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance, the reports on
Management Discussion and Analysis and General
Shareholder Information.

All Board members and senior management personnel have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year
2014-15. Adeclaration to this effect signed by the Chairman &
Managing Director/CEO of the Company is contained in this
Annual Report.

The Chairman & Managing Director and CFO have certified to
the Board with regard to the financial statements and other
matters as required in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and
the said certificate is contained in this Annual Report.

Secretarial Standards of ICSI

The Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the Secretarial
Standards on Board Meetings & General Meetings specified
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). The
secretarial standards issued by ICSI from time to time, though
were recommendatory in nature, have been complied with by
the Company during the year under review.
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Auditors
Statutory Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder, the current auditors of the
Company, M/s Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No.: 102021W) were appointed by the members
at the 75th Annual General Meeting to hold office until the
conclusion of the 78th Annual General Meeting, subject to
ratification by shareholders ateach AGM.

M/s.Dalal & Shah have confirmed their eligibility under
Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder for re-appointment as Auditors of the Company.
As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the
auditors have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate
issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

The members are requested to ratify the appointment of M/s
Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of
the Company and to fix their remuneration for the year
2015-16.

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’
Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed, M/s.Anant B. Khamankar & Co.,
Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No.
FCS:3198; CP No.:1860) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of
the Company. Secretarial Auditor Report for the year 2014-15
given by M/s.Anant B. Khamankar & Co. in the prescribed
'Form MR-3' is annexed to this report. The Secretarial Audit
Report for the year under review does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer
made by the Secretarial Auditor.

CostAuditor:

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors had, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s.
R.Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.
000010), to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the
financial year 2015-16 at a remuneration of %1,03,000/-
(Rupees One Lac Three Thousand only) plus service tax, out-
of pocket and travel & living expenses, subject to ratification
by the members at the AGM. Accordingly, a Resolution
seeking members’ ratification for the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditors is included at Item No.5 in the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting.



The particulars of the Cost Auditor and cost audit conducted Industrial Relations
by them for the financial year 2013-14 are furnished below:
The relations with the employees of the Company have

ICWA Membership No. 1337 continued to remain cordial.
Registration No. of Firm 000010 Ack led t
Address Jer Mansion, 70, August cknowledgemen

Kranti Marg, Mumbai 400 036 Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation
Cost Audit Report FY 2013-14 for the assistance and co-operation received from the
Due date of filing of Report 30 September 2014 financial institutions, banks, customers, investors, business

associates, vendors, regulatory and government authorities,
stock exchanges and members during the year under review.
Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of
appreciation to employees at all levels for their sincere
personal efforts as well as their collective dedication and
contribution to the Company’s performance.

Actual date of filing of Report 02 September 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mangesh Patil Anant Bajaj Shekhar Bajaj
V P -Legal & Company Secretary Jt. Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director
FCSNo.:4752 DIN: 00089460 DIN: 00089358

Mumbai, 28 May 2015

ANNEXURE ‘A’TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information to be disclosed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999:-

A.  Summary of status of ESOPs granted
The position of the existing scheme is summarized as under —

Sr. | Particulars ESOP 2007 ESOP 2011

No. Loyalty Growth Growth

1. Details of the Meeting Approved in AGM held on 26.07.2007 and Revised in AGM
held on 28.07.2010

2. Approved 8% of paid-up share capital

3. Pricing Formula Options _under_Growth Plan:- Closing price on the exchange
where there is highest trading volume on working day prior to the
date of grant.

Options under Loyalty Plan:- One time Options granted at 50%
discount to the closing price of the share i.e. ¥ 300/- as on
24.10.2007, the date prior to the date of grant.

4. Options Granted 2,58,100 36,95,241 43,05,000
5. Options Vested and Exercisable - 485,189 702,350
6. Options Exercised 221,300 2,370,281 801,150
7. Options Cancelled 30,300 753,002 1,457,750
8. Options Lapsed 6,500 86,769 -
9. Total Number of Options in force - 485,189 2,046,100
10. | Variation in terms of ESOP Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
11. | Total number of shares arising as a result of

exercise of Options* 221,300 2,370,281 801,150
12. | Money realised by exercise of Options during

the year 2014-15 (% Lacs)* - 359.30 907.33
13. | Money realised by exercise of Options till

31 March 2015 (% Lacs)* 276.15 1,370.48 1,346.77

* 52,394 Options exercised but pending for allotment as on 31 March 2014, have been considered appropriately in point 12.
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B.

Employee-wise details of options granted during the financial year 2014-15 to:

(i) Senior managerial personnel
Name of employee No. of Options No. of Options No. of Options
granted granted granted
Milind Ramchandra Pingle 70,000
Anil Kumar Jain 20,000
Ramachandran Palangat 15,000
Ashish Nagesh Kulkarni 15,000
Rahul Sharad Talwelkar 15,000
Bhupendra Moolchandbhai Shah 15,000
Rohit Sabharwal 15,000
Dileep Sharma 10,000
Shriram Amirchand Sehgal 10,000
Girish Jagannath Bhave 10,000
Bibhuti Bhusan Mukhopadhyay No options were No options were 10,000
Milind Krishna Nagraj granted during granted during 5,000
Cyril Santhan Mendonca the year the year 5,000
Ashok Rawat 5,000
Manoj Gobind Vaswani 5,000
Anand Suri 5,000
Deepak Gaur 5,000
Sanjay Sharma 5,000
Sathya Prabhu P 5,000
Rajeev Bhatnagar 5,000
Chetan Kishor Bhanushali 5,000
Rajat Dheer 5,000
Rakesh Moolchandani 5,000
Suman Kumar Ghosh 5,000
ii) Employees who were granted, during any one year, options amounting to 5% or more of the options granted during
the year
Name of employee No. of Options No. of Options No. of Options
granted granted granted
Milind Ramchandra Pingle No. options were | No. options were
granted during granted during 70,000
the year the year
(iii) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital
excluding outstanding warrants and conversions of the Company at the time of grant.
Name of employee No. of Options No. of Options No. of Options
granted granted granted
No options were ranted during the year
C. Weighted average Fair Value of Options granted during the year whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price No. options were No. options were 134.44
(b) Exercise price is greater than market price granted during granted during Nil
(c) Exercise price is less than market price the year the year Nil
Weighted average Exercise price of options granted during the year whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price No. options were No. options were 332.44
(b) Exercise price is greater than market price granted during granted during Nil
(c) Exercise price is less than market price the year the year Nil
D. The stock-based compensation cost calculated as per the intrinsic value method for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

is Nil. If the stock-based compensation cost was calculated as per the fair value method prescribed by SEBI, the total cost to be
recognised in the financial statements for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 would be %2,73,67,320/-. The effect of
adopting the fair value method on the netincome and earnings per share is presented below:
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Particulars

g

Net Loss as reported

(13,95,03,182)

Add: Intrinsic Value Compensation Cost

Less: Fair Value Compensation Cost

27,367,320

Adjusted Pro Forma Net Income

(16,68,70,502)

Earning Per Share: Basic

As Reported (1.39)
Adjusted Pro Forma (1.66)
Earning Per Share: Diluted
As Reported (1.39)
Adjusted Pro Forma (1.66)
Method and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year:
The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model.
The assumptions used in the model are as follows:
(i) ESOP 2007
Variables Weighted Average | Weighted Average Weighted Average
1. Risk Free Interest Rate 8.48%
2. Expected Life No options were No options were 4.00
3. Expected Volatility granted during granted during 38.48%
4. Dividend Yield the year the year 0.46%
5. Price of the underlying share in market at
the time of the option grant.(%) 332.44
(i) ESOP 2011
Variables 29-May-14 31-Jul-14 13-Nov-14
1. Risk Free Interest Rate 8.58% 8.52% 8.25%
2. Expected Life 4.00 4.00 4.00
3. Expected Volatility 37.92% 38.85% 38.48%
4. Dividend Yield 0.41% 0.45% 0.54%
5. Price of the underlying share in market at
the time of the option grant.(%) 369.80 334.00 276.75

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORTONCSR ACTIVITIES

1.

Abrief outline of Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a
reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.

At Bajaj Electricals Limited, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is three-fold. It encompasses not only what we do with our
profits, but also how we make them. It goes beyond philanthropy and compliance and addresses how we manage our
economic, social, and environmental impacts, as well as our relationships in all key spheres of influence such as market place,
workplace, public policy, supply chain and society.

The four pillars of CSR:

+ Sustainability- To ensure that the long term business goals are aligned with sustainable development without compromising
on the economic, environmental and social factors.

» Gender Diversity - To have a high performing inclusive work culture and commitment to attract and retain capable talent
maintaining gender sensitivity and balance.

» Employee Volunteering - To reach out to all employees and drive the volunteering programmes of the company through
collective social responsibility and strong individual commitment.

* Community Outreach programmes- To ensure the communities where we operate should also benefit.
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Priorities under Community Outreach Programmes :

Our priorities for the Community Outreach Programmes are listed below and the same are as per Schedule VIl to the
CompaniesAct, 2013:
» Ensuring environmental sustainability & promoting its education
» Initiatives such as solar projects, off grid lighting, tree plantation, waste management
> Initiatives to support education and awareness on protecting the environment
» Employment, enhancing vocational skills and livelihoods
» Supporttechnical and vocational programmes to generate employment

» Support social enterprises to enhance livelihoods, to reach the last mile who can have access to quality products &
services

» Promoting & preventing health care

» Continued support to Anti-Tobacco Programme and campaign
» Gender equality — cross cutting theme

» Focusing on gender diversity within the organization

The CSR Policy of the Company has also been posted on the website of the Company.

Weblink:http://bajajelectricals.com/download/investors/bel-csr-policy-final.pdf

2,

The composition of the CSR Committee

A Committee of the directors, titled ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Committee’, was constituted by the Board in its meeting
held on 26 March 2014 with the following members:

a)  ShriShekhar Bajaj, Chairman

b)  ShriAnantBajaj, Member

c)  Dr.(Mrs.)Indu Shahani, Member

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years priorto 2014-15:%10,384.39 lacs
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item No. 3 above): 3207.69 lacs

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

i Total amount spent for the financial year: 316.28 lacs

ii.  Amount unspent: Nil - Since the balance amount of 2191.41 lacs has also been allocated & disbursed on various CSR
projects/programmes in progress.

iii.  Mannerinwhich the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1. 2, 3. 4, 5. 6. 7.
Sr.| Name / Details CSR project/ | Sector in which Location of Amount outlay /| Amount spent
No. of Activity the Project is Projects / Approved Direct /
Implementing Identified covered Programme (X in Lacs) Overheads
Agency (Local Area or (X in Lacs)
State / District)
1. Labounet Training for After Vocational Nashik & Pune 45.00 9.12
Sales Repair Skill (Maharashtra),
Technicians Development Bangalore
(Karnataka),
Coimbatore
(Tamil Nadu),
Pondicherry, Durgapuir,
Siliguri and Kolkata
(West Bengal)
2. | Salaam Bombay | Tobacco Free Preventive Mumbai (Maharashtra) 4.50 4.50
Foundation India Health Care
3. | Social Forestry Tree Environmental Dona Paula (Goa) 1.71 1.71
Goa plantation Sustainability
4. N.A. Sustainable Solar Power Wardha ( Maharashtra) 0.95 0.95
energy project

NOTES:

a) Since FY 2014-15 is the first year of applicability of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the figure for Cumulative
Expenditure is not applicable.

b)  All amounts mentioned above as spent relate to amounts spent through implementing agency, except the expenditure on
Solar Project undertaken by the Company on its own at Paunar Ashram.

c)  Thereis noexpenditure on overheads in the above list.
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In case the Company fails to spend 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 financial years or any part thereof, the
reasons for not spending the amount shall be stated in the Board report.

(a) Taking into account the commitments made by the Company for the CSR projects / programmes which are in progress,
and considering the project mode of CSR activity, where the project at time extends beyond, there is no shortfall as suchin
the CSR expenditure as compared to the stipulated 2% of the average net profits of the last three financial years. In fact,
the CSR spend plus the commitment is far higher than the mandated amount for the Company.

(b) Further, in addition to what is stated above, Bajaj Group implements many of the CSR initiatives of substantial value
through its Group NGOs / Trusts / Charitable bodies operating at various locations in the country.

Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company duly signed by Director and Chairperson of the CSR
Committee.

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and
Policy of the Company.

Shekhar Bajaj, CMD Anant Bajaj, JMD Dr.(Mrs.) Indu Shahani, ID
Chairman Member Member
DIN: 00089358 DIN: 00089460 DIN: 00112289

ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3
for the financial year ended 31 March 2015

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Bajaj Electricals Limited
45/47, Veer Nariman Road
Mumbai 400 001
Maharashtra, India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Bajaj Electricals Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of the Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March 2015, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 31March 2015 according to the provisions of:

The CompaniesAct, 2013 ('the Act') and the Rules made thereunder;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.:-
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
(d)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.

15



OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

i) Indian ContractAct, 1872

i)  Indian StampAct, 1999

iii)  ThelIndian CopyrightAct, 1957

iv) The PatentsAct, 1970

v) The Trade MarksAct, 1999

vi) Thelncome TaxAct, 1961

vii) The FinanceAct, 1994 relating to Service Tax and Rules as updated.

viii) The Bombay Shops and Establishments Act, 1948 and Rules thereunder

ix) Central ExciseAct, 1944 and Customs Act, 1962

x)  Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Rules/Scheme thereunder
xi)  Employers Liability Act, 1938

i) Equal RemunerationAct, 1976

xiii) FactoriesAct, 1948

xiv) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947

xv) Paymentof WagesAct, 1936 and Rules made thereunder.

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and Rules made thereunder.

xvii) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and Rules made thereunder.

xviii) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and Rules made thereunder.

xix) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Rules made thereunder.

xx) Maternity Benefits Act, 1961

xxi) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 read with Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975.
xxii) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 read with The Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodity) Rules, 2011
xxiii) Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

P
<
=

AAAAAAAAAAAQAAAAAAAAAAA
=

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited (BSE), the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) and Delhi Stock Exchange Limited (DSE).

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

. Maijority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of :

(a) Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares/debentures.
(b) Redemption/buy-back of securities.
(c) Majordecisions taken by the members in pursuance of Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(d) Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction etc.
(e) ForeignTechnical Collaborations.
FORANANT B KHAMANKAR & CO.
ANANT KHAMANKAR
Date:19 May 2015 FCSNo.:3198
Place: Mumbai CPNo.: 1860
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014
and forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Conservation of energy

U]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

Steps taken orimpact on conservation of energy :

»  Lights of Shop floor Packaging line replaced by 72W in place of existing 250W fittings.
»  Unity power factor maintained throughout the year 2014-15.

*  LVD machine 02 Nos. oil chiller is interlocked with main hydraulic pump, idle running of oil chiller motor 1.5KW x 2
Nos. will be saved approx. 3-6 hours per day.

* VFDisinstalled for hoist operation on 5T EOT crane at High Mast Shop.

+  The waste energy of the Baker is used for drying the coating solution for FTL lamps production (saving of approx.
20KW energy every hour).

*  Around 6 motors of 1TKW each were removed and conveyor drive systems re-designed to run on the single motor than
the multiple motors.

*  Localised blower installed for lamp cooling in GLS to save approx. 8KW energy per hour.
Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy :

*  40KW capacity Solar Power System is installed & commissioned at Admin office block from Feb- 2015. Power saving
is expected at approx. 150- 200 units per day.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;

» Installation of Variable Frequency Drive for hoist motor on EOT Crane in galvanizing RU1.

Sr. No.| Department | Existing Tube Lights | New CFL/LED Lights Saving Investment
Tube No. Watts CFL No. Watts Watts / fitting % lyear g
1 Production 4 250 4 72 178 4,420 26,000

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production :

101.84 units per ton / 2,743,665 units per annum

Sr. No. Year Total unit Consumed Cost () Production Qty. Cost/Fan
1 2011-12 55,460 4,01,807/- 4,68,347 0.85792
2 2012-13 40,970 3,29,673/- 3,64,378 0.90475
3 2013-14 57,450 5,12,761/- 3,69,997 1.3858
4 2014-15 66,610 5,44,603/- 4,57,436 1.1906

Impact of the energy conservation measures for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on
the cost of production of goods:

+  Obtained PF Incentive 0f % 10,02,249/- & % 3,54,624.54 for Ranjangaon Units 1 & 2, respectively.

* Average Unit per ton (RU1 & RU2) achieved in 2014-15 is 101.84 KWH/MT as compared to 2013-14 is 88.36
KWH/MT.

Technology absorption

(i)
(i)
(iif)

the efforts made towards technology absorption;

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development orimport substitution;

in case ofimported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-
(a) thedetails of technology imported;

(b) theyearofimport;

(c) whetherthe technology been fully absorbed;

(d) ifnotfully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

-NOTAPPLICABLE -
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(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R & D):

a) Capital

¥ 2,589.66 lacs
¥ 1,682.89 lacs

(a)

(b) Recurring :

(c) Total . ¥4,272.55 lacs
(d) Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover : 1.00 %

lll. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo-

The foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the foreign exchange outgo during the year in terms
of actual outflows.

Foreign Exchange Amount
Earned % 3,023.29lacs (Export sales)
Used ¥30,312.26 lacs (Import purchases)

ANNEXURE ‘E’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31 March 2015
[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN L31500MH1938PLC009887
Registration Date 14 July 1938

Name of the Company BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED
Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by Shares

Address of the Registered Office & 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai — 400 001
contact details Tel.No.: 022-22043841 Fax No.: 022-22851279
E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

Yes (BSE, NSE and DSE)

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L B S Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai 400 078
Tel.No.: 022-25943838 Fax No.: 022-25946969
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.com

S Pl R

6. | Whether listed company

7. | Name, Address & contact details of
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the
total turnover of the Company shall be stated)

Sr. No. | Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products /services Product/service of the Company
1 Lighting 3630, 3680 21.10
2 Consumer Durables 3562, 3640, 3641, 3642,
3643, 3648, 3649 47.53
3 Engineering & Projects 3402, 3450 31.36

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. No. | Name and address of

the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate

% of shares held

Applicable Section

Not Applicable
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A) Category-wise Shareholding
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held No. of Shares held %
at the beginning of the year at the end of the year Change
Demat |Physical| Total % of Demat | Physical Total % of | during
Total Total | the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
1. Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 19495678 - 119495678 | 19.50 (22584678 - | 22584678 | 22.41 2.91
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. 44043607 - | 44043607 | 44.06 [40954607 - | 40954607 | 40.64 (3.41)
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) 63539285 -163539285| 63.56 (63539285 - | 63539285 | 63.06 (0.50)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds/UTI 3756569 6500 | 3763069 3.76 | 4886267 6500 | 4892767 4.85 1.09
b) Banks / FI 52620 17380 70000 0.07 41023 20130 61153 0.06 (0.01)
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) Flls 14489581| 156000 | 14645581 14.65 | 13561738 | 156000 | 13717738 | 13.61 (1.04)
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(1):- 18298770 179880 | 18478650 | 18.48 (18489028 | 182630 | 18671658 | 18.53 0.05
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 3108933| 16770 | 3125703 3.13| 1310114 14020 | 1324134 1.31 (1.81)
i) Overseas - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto %1 lac 7439152|1300011 | 8739163 8.74 | 9698077 | 1219956 | 10918033 | 10.84 2.09
ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of 1 lac| 1676361| 931800 [ 2608161 2.61 794077| 931800 | 1725877 1.71 (0.90)
c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
Non Resident Indians 471009 6000 477009 0.48| 600907 6000 606907 0.60 0.12
Non Resident
(Non Repatriables) 215067| 44100 259167 0.26 | 400331 44100 444431 0.44 0.18
Overseas Corporate Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - - -
Clearing Members 195269 - 195269 0.20| 317887 - 317887 0.32 0.12
Trusts * 1867571 - | 1867571 1.87 | 1871952 - | 1871952 1.86 (0.01)
Foreign Bodies - D R - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Portfolio Investors
(Corporate) - - - -| 663062 - 663062 0.66 0.66
Non-Promoter & Non-Public*| 679200 - 679200 0.68| 679200 - 679200 0.67 (0.01)
Sub-total (B)(2):- 15652562|2298681 | 17951243 | 17.96 (16335607 | 2215876 | 18551483 | 18.41 0.45
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 33951332(2478561 | 36429893 | 36.44 | 34824635 | 2398506 | 37223141 | 36.94 0.50
C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) 97490617 (2478561 (99969178 | 100.00 |98363920| 2398506 100762426 | 100.00 -
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B) Shareholding of Promoter

Sr. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding Shareholding
at the beginning of the year at the end of the year
No. of % of total % of Shares | No. of % of total | % of Shares | % change in
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of | Pledged / shareholding
the encumbered the encumbered during the
Company to total Company to total year
shares shares
INDIVIDUAL/ HUF
1 | Anant Bajaj 4211823 4.21 - 4531823 4.50 - 0.29
2 | Deepa Bajaj 1000 0.00 - 1000 0.00 - -
3 | Geetika bajaj 8346 0.01 - 8346 0.01 - -
4 | Kiran Bajaj 1992219 1.99 - 2677219 2.66 - 0.67
5 | Kiran Bajaj 1210000 1.21 - 1210000 1.20 - (0.01)
6 | Kriti Bajaj - - - 90000 0.09 - 0.09
7 | Kumud Bajaj 253200 0.25 - 478200 0.47 - 0.22
8 | Madhur Bajaj 1652835 1.65 - 2044835 2.03 - 0.38
9 | Madhur Bajaj 52500 0.05 - - - - (0.05)
10 | Madhur Bajaj 52500 0.05 - - - - (0.05)
11 | Minal Bajaj 367200 0.37 - 367200 0.36 - (0.01)
12 | Neelima Bajaj Swamy 20000 0.02 - 110000 0.11 - 0.09
13 | Nimisha Jaipuria - - - 90000 0.09 - 0.09
14 | Niraj Bajaj 1119035 1.12 - 1631035 1.62 - 0.50
15 | Niraj Bajaj 466200 0.47 - 466200 0.46 - (0.01)
16 | Niravnayan Bajaj 1000 0.00 - 91000 0.09 - 0.09
17 | Pooja Bajaj - - - 100000 0.10 - 0.10
18 | Rahulkumar Bajaj 4180 0.00 - 4180 0.00 - -
19 | Sanjivnayan Bajaj 735 0.00 - 735 0.00 - -
20 | Shekhar Bajaj 4840535 4.84 - 4840535 4.80 - (0.04)
21 | Shekhar Bajaj 1906800 1.91 - 2536800 2.52 - 0.61
22 | Shekhar Bajaj 240600 0.24 - 240600 0.24 - -
23 | Shekhar Ramkrishna Bajaj 30000 0.03 - - - - (0.03)
24 | Suman Jain 84645 0.08 - 84645 0.08 - -
25 | Suman Jain 15000 0.02 - 15000 0.01 - (0.01)
26 | Sunaina Kejriwal 965325 0.97 - 965325 0.96 - (0.01)
(A) 19495678 19.50 - 22584678 22.41 - 2.91
BODIES CORPORATE
27 | Bachhraj And Company
Private Limited 95000 0.10 - 1000 0.00 - (0.10)
28 | Bachhraj Factories Private Limited - - - 95000 0.09 - 0.09
29 | Bajaj Holdings & Investment
Limited 16697840 16.70 - 16697840 16.57 - (0.13)
30 | Bajaj International Private Limited 800000 0.80 - 800000 0.79 - (0.01)
31 | Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited 985000 0.99 - 5000 0.00 - (0.99)
32 | Baroda Industries Private Limited - - - 770000 0.76 - 0.76
33 | Hercules Hoists Limited 554937 0.56 - 554937 0.55 - (0.01)
34 | Hind Musafir Agency Limited 2028000 2.03 - 1258000 1.25 - (0.78)
35 | Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 21802830 21.81 - 19872830 19.72 - (2.09)
36 | Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 600000 0.60 - - - - (0.60)
37 | Kamalnayan Investment and
Trading Private Limited - - - 1000 0.00 - 0.00
38 | Madhur Securities Private Limited - - - 1000 0.00 - 0.00
39 | Niraj Holdings Private Limited - - - 1000 0.00 - 0.00
40 | Rahul Securities Private Limited - - - 415000 0.41 - 0.41
41 | Rupa Equities Private Limited - - - 1000 0.00 - 0.00
42 | Sanraj Nayan Investments
Private Limited - - - 1000 0.00 - 0.00
43 | Shekhar Holdings Private Limited 480000 0.48 - 480000 0.48 - -
(B) 44043607 44.06 - 40954607 40.64 - (3.42)
(A) + (B) 63539285 63.56 63539285 63.06 - (0.50)
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Notes:

1.

Bajaj Electricals Ltd (BEL) Employees’ Welfare Funds and Bajaj Auto Ltd Employees’ Welfare Funds are holding 6,79,200
(0.67%) and 18,61,900 (1.84%) equity shares, respectively, in Bajaj Electricals Ltd. The said holdings were classified as
Promoters’ shareholding until quarter ended 31 December 2014.

Consequent upon the enactment of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, with effect from the
quarter ending 31 March 2015, the same are reclassified as under:-

(@) Holdings of BEL Employees' Welfare Funds - reclassified as ‘Non-Promoter and Non- Public Shareholding’; and

(b) Holdings of Bajaj Auto Ltd Employees’ Welfare Funds - reclassified, amongst others, as ‘Trusts’ under ‘Non-
Institutions Public Shareholding’.

The reduction in the percentage of shares held by promoters from 63.56% to 63.06% is due to the issue of 7,93,248 equity
shares of % 2 each to the employees upon their exercise of stock options.

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Date Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning | of the shares shares
of the year|company of the
[1-4-14]/ company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
1. | Anant Bajaj 4211823 4.22 1-Apr-14
2-Jun-14 -100000 | Gift to spouse 4111823 4.11
26-Feb-15 370000 | Transfer (Inter se) 4481823 4.45
11-Mar-15 50000 | Transfer (Inter se) 4531823 4.50
4531823 4.50 31-Mar-15
2 | Deepa Bajaj 1000 0.00 1-Apr-14
1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
3 | Geetika bajaj 8346 0.01 1-Apr-14
8346 0.01 31-Mar-15
4 | Kiran Bajaj 1992219 1.99 1-Apr-14
27-Feb-15 685000 | Transfer (Inter se) 2677219 2.66
2677219 2.66 31-Mar-15
5 | Kiran Bajaj 1210000 1.21 1-Apr-14
1210000 1.20 31-Mar-15
6 | Kriti Bajaj - - 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 90000 | Transfer (Inter se) 90000 0.09
90000 0.09 31-Mar-15
7 | Kumud Bajaj 253200 0.25 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 225000 | Transfer (Inter se) 478200 0.47
478200 0.47 31-Mar-15
8 | Madhur Bajaj 1652835 1.65 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 270000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1922835 1.91
11-Mar-15 17000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1939835 1.93
17-Mar-15 105000 | Transfer (Inter se) 2044835 2.03
2044835 2.03 31-Mar-15
9 | Madhur Bajaj 52500 0.05 1-Apr-14
17-Mar-15 -52500 | Transfer (Inter se) - -
- - 31-Mar-15
10 | Madhur Bajaj 52500 0.05 1-Apr-14
17-Mar-15 -52500 | Transfer (Inter se) - -
- - 31-Mar-15
11 | Minal Bajaj 367200 0.37 1-Apr-14
367200 0.36 31-Mar-15
12 | Neelima Bajaj Swamy 20000 0.02 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 90000 | Transfer (Inter se) 110000 0.1
110000 0.11 31-Mar-15
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Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Date Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning | of the shares shares
of the year|company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
13 | Nimisha Jaipuria - - 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 90000 | Transfer (Inter se) 90000 0.09
90000 0.09 31-Mar-15
14 | Niraj Bajaj 1119035 1.12 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 270000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 1389035 1.38
3-Mar-15 225000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 1614035 1.60
11-Mar-15 17000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 1631035 1.62
1631035 1.62 31-Mar-15
15 | Niraj Bajaj 466200 0.47 1-Apr-14
466200 0.46 31-Mar-15
16 | Niravnayan Bajaj 1000 0.00 1-Apr-14
25-Feb-15 90000 | Transfer (Inter se) 91000 0.09
91000 0.09 31-Mar-15
17 | Pooja Bajaj - - 1-Apr-14
2-Jun-14 100000 Gift from spouse 100000 0.10
100000 0.10 31-Mar-15
18 | Rahulkumar Bajaj 4180 0.00 1-Apr-14
4180 0.00 31-Mar-15
19 | Sanjivnayan Bajaj 735 0.00 1-Apr-14
735 0.00 31-Mar-15
20 | Shekhar Bajaj 4840535 4.84 1-Apr-14
4840535 4.80 31-Mar-15
21 | Shekhar Bajaj 1906800 1.91 1-Apr-14
23-Dec-14 600000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 2506800 2.49
26-Dec-14 30000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 2536800 2.52
2536800 2.52 31-Mar-15
22 | Shekhar Bajaj 240600 0.24 1-Apr-14
240600 0.24 31-Mar-15
23 | Shekhar Ramkrishna 30000 0.03 1-Apr-14
Bajaj 26-Dec-14 -30000 | Transfer (Inter se) - -
- - 31-Mar-15
24 | Suman Jain 84645 0.08 1-Apr-14
84645 0.08 31-Mar-15
25 | Suman Jain 15000 0.02 1-Apr-14
15000 0.01 31-Mar-15
26 | Sunaina Kejriwal 965325 0.97 1-Apr-14
965325 0.96 31-Mar-15
27 | Bachhraj and 95000 0.10 1-Apr-14
Company Private 21-Aug-14 -95000 | Transfer (Inter se) - -
Limited 11-Mar-15 1000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1000 0.00
1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
28 | Bachhraj Factories - - 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 21-Aug-14 95000 | Transfer (Inter se) 95000 0.09
95000 0.09 31-Mar-15
29 | Bajaj Holdings & 16697840 16.70 1-Apr-14
Investment Limited 16697840 16.57 31-Mar-15
30 | Bajaj International 800000 0.80 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 800000 0.79 31-Mar-15
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Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Date Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning | of the shares shares
of the year|company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
31 | Bajaj Sevashram 985000 0.99 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 25-Feb-15 -450000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 535000 0.53
26-Feb-15 -305000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 230000 0.23
3-Mar-15 -225000 | Transfer (Inter se) 5000 0.00
5000 0.00 31-Mar-15
32 | Baroda Industries - - 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 25-Nov-14 700000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 700000 0.70
9-Mar-15 70000 [ Transfer (Inter se) | 770000 0.76
770000 0.76 31-Mar-15
33 | Hercules Hoists 554937 0.56 1-Apr-14
Limited 554937 0.55 31-Mar-15
34 | Hind Musafir 2028000 2.03 1-Apr-14
Agency Limited 25-Nov-14 -700000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 1328000 1.32
9-Mar-15 -70000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 1258000 1.25
1258000 1.25 31-Mar-15
35 | Jamnalal Sons 21802830 | 21.81 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 19-Feb-15 -415000 | Transfer (Inter se) [21387830 21.24
25-Feb-15 -675000 | Transfer (Inter se) [20712830 20.56
26-Feb-15 -65000 | Transfer (Inter se) |20647830 20.50
27-Feb-15 -685000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 19962830 19.82
11-Mar-15 -90000 | Transfer (Inter se) | 19872830 19.72
19872830 19.72 31-Mar-15
36 | Jamnalal Sons 600000 0.60 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 23-Dec-14 -600000 | Transfer (Inter se) - -
- - 31-Mar-15
37 | Kamalnayan - - 1-Apr-14
Investment and 11-Mar-15 1000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1000 0.00
Trading Private Ltd. 1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
38 | Madhur Securities - - 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 11-Mar-15 1000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1000 0.00
1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
39 | Niraj Holdings - - 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 11-Mar-15 1000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1000 0.00
1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
40 | Rahul Securities - - 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 19-Feb-15 415000 [ Transfer (Inter se) | 415000 0.41
415000 0.41 31-Mar-15
41 | Rupa Equities - - 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 11-Mar-15 1000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1000 0.00
1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
42 | Sanraj Nayan - - 1-Apr-14
Investments 11-Mar-15 1000 | Transfer (Inter se) 1000 0.00
Private Limited 1000 0.00 31-Mar-15
43 | Shekhar Holdings 480000 0.48 1-Apr-14
Private Limited 480000 0.48 31-Mar-15
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D1) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.| Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
beginning of the year of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited A/C
Jwalamukhi Investment Holdings 4962966 4.93 - -
2 MES International New Discovery Fund - - 4007457 3.98
3 HDFC Trustee Company Limited - HDFC Prudence Fund - - 2587131 2.57
4 Mondrian Emerging Markets Small Cap Equity Fund L.P. 2423318 2.41 2339462 2.32
5 Swiss Finance Corporation (Mauritius) Limited 1459947 1.45 1459947 1.45
6 ICICI Prudential (Mutual Fund) 1343267 1.33 - -
7 L And T Mutual Fund Trustee Ltd - L And T Equity Fund - - 1275157 1.27
8 SBIl Magnum Midcap Fund
SBI Magnum Multicap Fund
SBI Tax Advantage Fund Series | & Il 1049949 1.04 - -
9. | HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 992740 0.99 - -
10 | Max Life Insurance Company Limited 938617 0.93 - -
11 | Ontario Pension Board -
Mondrian Investment Partners Limited 979007 0.97 1155190 1.15
12| UTI-Mid Cap Fund - - 1023455 1.02
13| Merrill Lynch Capital Markets Espana S.A. S.V. - - 999529 0.99
14 | Kotak Mahindra (UK) Ltd A/C Kotak India Focus Fund Il 750000 0.74 - -
15| Lansforsakringar Fondforvaltning Aktiebolag 692223 0.69 692223 0.69
16 | Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) PTE. - - 659354 0.65
D2) Date-wise Increase / Decrease in the Shareholding of Top 10 Shareholders during the year:
Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Date# Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning | of the shares shares
of the year|company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
1. | HSBC Bank 4962966 4.96 1-Apr-14
(Mauritius) Limited 22-Aug-14 -585783 Transfer 4377183 4.34
A/C Jwalamukhi 29-Aug-14 -500000 Transfer 3877183 3.85
Investment Holdings 5-Sep-14 -1715000 Transfer 2162183 2.15
30-Sep-14 -484451 Transfer 1677732 1.67
31-Oct-14 -230082 Transfer 1447650 1.44
14-Nov-14 -54249 Transfer 1393401 1.38
28-Nov-14 -1171174 Transfer 222227 0.22
5-Dec-14 -222227 Transfer - -
- - 31-Mar-15
2. | MFS International - - 1-Apr-14
New Discovery 22-Aug-14 ## 372488 Transfer 372488 0.37
Fund 29-Aug-14 529015 Transfer 901503 0.89
5-Sep-14 1216457 Transfer 2117960 2.10
3-Oct-14 285528 Transfer 2403488 2.39
17-Oct-14 107852 Transfer 2511340 2.49
24-Oct-14 66373 Transfer 2577713 2.56
31-Oct-14 603222 Transfer 3180935 3.16
13-Mar-15 264832 Transfer 3445767 3.42
20-Mar-15 157102 Transfer 3602869 3.58
27-Mar-15 354614 Transfer 3957483 3.93
4007457 3.98 31-Mar-15 49974 Transfer 4007457 3.98
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Sr.| Name of the Shareholding Date# Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning| of the shares shares
of the year| company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
3. | HDFC Trustee - - 1-Apr-14
Company Limited - 13-Jun-14 ## 1241867 Transfer 1241867 1.23
HDFC Prudence 20-Jun-14 488264 Transfer 1730131 1.72
Fund 30-Jun-14 50000 Transfer 1780131 1.77
18-Jul-14 50000 Transfer 1830131 1.82
28-Nov-14 500000 Transfer 2330131 2.31
27-Feb-15 125000 Transfer 2455131 2.44
6-Mar-15 132000 Transfer 2587131 2.57
2587131 2.57 31-Mar-15
4. | Mondrian Emerging 2423318 2.41 1-Apr-14
Markets Small Cap 30-May-14 -83856 Transfer 2339462 2.32
Equity Fund L.P. 2339462 2.32 31-Mar-15
5. | Swiss Finance 1459947 1.45 1-Apr-14 1459947 1.45
Corporation 1459947 1.45 31-Mar-15
(Mauritius) Limited
6. | ICICI Prudential 1343267 1.33 1-Apr-14
(Mutual Fund) 18-Apr-14 -333513 Transfer 1009754 1.00
9-May-14 -403 Transfer 1009351 1.00
16-May-14 -183370 Transfer 825981 0.82
23-May-14 -130981 Transfer 695000 0.69
6-Jun-14 -80000 Transfer 615000 0.61
13-Jun-14 -315000 Transfer 300000 0.30
20-Jun-14 -119084 Transfer 180916 0.18
30-Jun-14 -180916 Transfer - -
- - 31-Mar-15
7. | LAnd T Mutual Fund - - 1-Apr-14
Trustee Ltd - 6-Jun-14 ## 712962 Transfer 712962 0.71
L And T Equity Fund 13-Jun-14 170164 Transfer 883126 0.88
20-Jun-14 14800 Transfer 897926 0.89
4-Jul-14 39724 Transfer 937650 0.93
11-Jul-14 94750 Transfer 1032400 1.02
18-Jul-14 43759 Transfer 1076159 1.07
25-Jul-14 148400 Transfer 1224559 1.22
8-Aug-14 65200 Transfer 1289759 1.28
22-Aug-14 34957 Transfer 1324716 1.32
5-Sep-14 20000 Transfer 1344716 1.33
19-Sep-14 200000 Transfer 1544716 1.53
30-Sep-14 60882 Transfer 1605598 1.59
3-Oct-14 20000 Transfer 1625598 1.61
14-Nov-14 -83897 Transfer 1541701 1.53
21-Nov-14 -266544 Transfer 1275157 1.27
1275157 1.27 31-Mar-15
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Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Date# Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning | of the shares shares
of the year|company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
8. | SBI Magnum Midcap| 1049949 1.04 1-Apr-14
Fund 11-Apr-14 150000 Transfer 1199949 1.19
SBI Magnum 18-Apr-14 -20000 Transfer 1179949 117
Multicap Fund 25-Apr-14 25000 Transfer 1204949 1.20
SBI Tax Advantage 2-May-14 11250 Transfer 1216199 1.21
Fund Series | & Il 6-Jun-14 -136866 Transfer 1054333 1.18
13-Jun-14 -249872 Transfer 804461 0.80
20-Jun-14 -11171 Transfer 793290 0.79
30-Jun-14 -107040 Transfer 686250 0.68
18-Jul-14 -115250 Transfer 571000 0.57
25-Jul-14 -284750 Transfer 286250 0.28
8-Aug-14 100000 Transfer 386250 0.38
30-Sep-14 390000 Transfer 776250 0.77
24-Oct-14 -85800 Transfer 690450 0.69
14-Nov-14 -304200 Transfer 386250 0.38
21-Nov-14 -241588 Transfer 144662 0.14
5-Dec-14 -144662 Transfer - -
- - 31-Mar-15
9. | HDFC Standard Life 992740 0.99 1-Apr-14
Insurance Company 11-Apr-14 -150000 Transfer 842740 0.84
Limited 25-Apr-14 744 Transfer 843484 0.84
20-Jun-14 -1806 Transfer 841678 0.84
30-Jun-14 566 Transfer 842244 0.84
11-Jul-14 -21710 Transfer 820534 0.81
1-Aug-14 -40510 Transfer 780024 0.77
10-Oct-14 -200000 Transfer 580024 0.58
24-Oct-14 -3152 Transfer 576872 0.57
14-Nov-14 -3522 Transfer 573350 0.57
28-Nov-14 -573350 Transfer - -
- - 31-Mar-15
10.| Max Life Insurance 938617 0.93 1-Apr-14
Company Limited 4-Apr-14 124000 Transfer 1062617 1.05
11-Apr-14 2242 Transfer 1064859 1.06
25-Apr-14 24385 Transfer 1089244 1.08
2-May-14 3709 Transfer 1092953 1.09
9-May-14 -106286 Transfer 986667 0.98
16-May-14 -133000 Transfer 853667 0.85
23-May-14 -120000 Transfer 733667 0.73
30-May-14 -8934 Transfer 724733 0.72
6-Jun-14 63000 Transfer 787733 0.78
13-Jun-14 -234383 Transfer 553350 0.55
20-Jun-14 -153000 Transfer 400350 0.40
30-Jun-14 -33456 Transfer 366894 0.36
4-Jul-14 13418 Transfer 380312 0.38
11-Jul-14 -64935 Transfer 315377 0.31
18-Jul-14 -115250 Transfer 200127 0.29
25-Jul-14 -284750 Transfer 84623 0.05
1-Aug-14 -84623 Transfer - -
- - 31-Mar-15
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Sr. | Name of the Shareholding Date# Increase / Reason Cumulative
Promoter No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
shares at total Shareholding during the Year
the shares No. of | % of total
beginning | of the shares shares
of the year|company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]
11. | Ontario Pension 979007 0.97 1-Apr-14
Board - Mondrian 4-Apr-14 -57179 Transfer 921828 0.92
Investment Partners 30-May-14 -31285 Transfer 890543 0.88
Limited 30-Jun-14 122368 Transfer 1012911 1.01
4-Jul-14 37826 Transfer 1050737 1.04
11-Jul-14 104453 Transfer 1155190 1.15
1155190 1.15 31-Mar-15
12.| UTI-Mid Cap Fund - - 1-Apr-14
28-Nov-14 ## 556918 Transfer 556918 0.55
12-Dec-14 12145 Transfer 569063 0.56
31-Dec-14 60 Transfer 569123 0.57
6-Feb-15 25000 Transfer 594123 0.59
20-Feb-15 249860 Transfer 843983 0.84
27-Feb-15 88411 Transfer 932394 0.93
20-Mar-15 19056 Transfer 951450 0.94
27-Mar-15 24128 Transfer 975578 0.97
1023455 1.02 31-Mar-15 47877 Transfer 1023455 1.02
13.| Merrill Lynch Capital - - 1-Apr-14
Markets Espana 3-Oct-14 ## 619584 Transfer 619584 0.62
S.A.S.V. 17-Oct-14 26797 Transfer 646381 0.64
24-Oct-14 16506 Transfer 662887 0.66
31-Oct-14 167781 Transfer 830668 0.82
7-Nov-14 17532 Transfer 848200 0.84
14-Nov-14 -10316 Transfer 837884 0.83
21-Nov-14 12330 Transfer 850214 0.84
28-Nov-14 -4971 Transfer 845243 0.84
5-Dec-14 -19376 Transfer 825867 0.82
9-Jan-15 4651 Transfer 830518 0.82
27-Feb-15 14482 Transfer 845000 0.84
13-Mar-15 49120 Transfer 894120 0.89
20-Mar-15 44748 Transfer 938868 0.93
27-Mar-15 41498 Transfer 980366 0.97
999529 0.99 31-Mar-15 19163 Transfer 999529 0.99
14.| Kotak Mahindra (UK) 750000 0.74 1-Apr-14
Ltd A/C Kotak India 29-Aug-14 -75000 Transfer 675000 0.67
Focus Fund Il 5-Sep-14 -42000 Transfer 633000 0.63
12-Sep-14 -68000 Transfer 565000 0.56
19-Sep-14 -80000 Transfer 485000 0.48
30-Sep-14 -110000 Transfer 375000 0.37
10-Oct-14 -100000 Transfer 275000 0.27
17-Oct-14 -57500 Transfer 217500 0.22
24-Oct-14 -10000 Transfer 207500 0.21
31-Oct-14 -20000 Transfer 187500 0.19
14-Nov-14 -187500 Transfer - -
- - 31-Mar-15
15.| Lansforsakringar 692223 0.69 1-Apr-14
Fondforvaltning
Aktiebolag 692223 0.69 31-Mar-15
16.| Morgan Stanley Asia. - - 1-Apr-14
(Singapore) PTE 27-Mar-15 ## 649588 Transfer 649588 0.64
659354 0.65 31-Mar-15 9766 Transfer 659354 0.65

# Date as per weekly Benpo data received from RTA.

## Benpo Date when the said party first appeared in the list of “Top 10 Shareholders”.
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E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. | Shareholding of Shareholding Date Increase / Reason Cumulative
each Directors and No. of % of Decrease in Shareholding
each Key shares at total Shareholding during the Year
Managerial the shares No. of | % of total
Personnel (KMP) beginning | of the shares shares

of the year|company of the
[1-4-14] / company
end of
the year
[31-3-15]

1. | Shekhar Bajaj, 7017935 7.02 1-Apr-14
Chairman & 23-Dec-14 600000 Transfer (Inter se) | 7617935 7.56
Managing Director
(Director & KMP)* 7617935 7.56 31-Mar-15

2. | Anant Bajaj, 4211823 4.22 1-Apr-14
Joint Managing 2-Jun-14 -100000 Gift to spouse 4111823 4.1
Director 26-Feb-15 370000 Transfer (Inter se) | 4481823 4.45

11-Mar-15 50000 Transfer (Inter se) | 4531823 4.50
4531823 4.50 31-Mar-15

3. | Madhur Bajaj, 1757835 1.65 1-Apr-14
Non-Executive 25-Feb-15 270000 Transfer (Inter se) | 2027835 2.01
Director 11-Mar-15 17000 Transfer (Inter se) | 2044835 2.03

2044835 2.03 31-Mar-15

4. | H. V. Goenka, - - 1-Apr-14
Independent Director - - 31-Mar-15

5. | Ashok Jalan, - - 1-Apr-14
Independent Director - - 31-Mar-15

6. | V.B. Haribhakti, - - 1-Apr-14
Independent Director - - 31-Mar-15

7. | Dr(Mrs.) Indu Shahani, - - 1-Apr-14
Independent Director - - 31-Mar-15

8. | Dr. R.P. Singh, - - 1-Apr-14
Independent Director - - 31-Mar-15

9. | Ajit Gulabchand, - - 1-Apr-14
Independent Director** - - 31-Mar-15

10.| Anant Purandare, 15000 0.02 1-Apr-14
Executive Vice 20-Jun-14 7000 ESOP 22000 0.02
President & CFO (KMP) 22000 0.02 31-Mar-15

11. | Mangesh Patil, 13050 0.01 1-Apr-14
Vice President — 17-Sep-14 5000 ESOP 18050 0.02
Legal & Company 30-Dec-14 -199 Transfer 17851 0.02
Secretary (KMP) 31-Dec-14 -461 Transfer 17390 0.02

17390 0.02 31-Mar-15

* Including 25,36,800 (Previous Year 19,36,800) equity shares held on account of Bajaj Trading Co. and 240,600 (Previous Year
240,600) equity shares held on account of Ramkrishna Bajaj HUF.

** Retired as Director w.e.f. 31.07.2014

V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Amount (% in Lacs)

Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Total
excluding deposits Loans Deposits* Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 27,834.75 7009.02 - 34,843.77
ii) Interest due but not paid 1.26 16.54 - 17.80
ii) Interest accrued but not due 23.97 5.21 - 29.18
Total (i+ii+iii) 27,859.98 7,030.77 - 34,890.75
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition 24,044.69 68,191.22 - 92,235.91
Reduction 21,214.87 64,967.00 - 86,181.87
Net Change 2,829.82 3,224.22 - 6,054.04
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VL.

Amount (R in Lacs
Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Total
excluding deposits Loans Deposits* Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 30,664.58 10,233.24 - 40,897.82
i) Interest due but not paid - 40.89 - 40.89
ii) Interest accrued but not due 1,145.15 1.12 - 1,146.27
Total (i+ii+iii) 31,809.73 10,275.25 - 42,084.98

* The unclaimed deposits including interest thereon, aggregating to38.42 lacs as on 31 March 2015 % 11.39 lacs as on 31 March 2014),
have not been considered as Deposits for the purpose of indebtedness of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Amount (Z in Lacs)

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Shekhar Bajaj, Anant Bajaj, Total
Chairman & Joint Managing
Managing Director Director
Gross salary
1. (a) Salary as per the provisions contained in
Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 111.65 79.18 190.83
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 23.26 10.20 33.46
(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the
Income- tax Act, 1961 - - -
2. Stock Option - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission provided for FY 2014-15 - 5.00 5.00
as % of profit - 0.18% 0.18%
others, specify... - - -
5. Others, please specify - - -
Total (A) 134.91 94.38 229.29

Ceiling as per the Act

%272.71 lacs (being 10% of the net profits of the
Company calculated as per Section 198 of the

Companies Act, 2013)

B. Remuneration to other directors

B1. Independent Directors

Amount (% in Lacs)

Particulars of H. V. Ashok V.B. Dr.(Mrs.) Dr. R.P. * Ajit Total
Remuneration Goenka Jalan Haribhakti | Indu Shahani| Singh Gulabchand

Fee for attending Board/

Committee Meetings 1.90 7.70 6.30 5.50 3.10 - 24.50
Commission provided for

FY 2014-15 2.00 5.50 5.50 4.50 3.00 - 20.50
Others, please specify - - - - - -
Total (B1) 3.90 13.20 11.80 10.00 6.10 - 45.00
* Retired as a Director w.e.f. 31/07/2014.

B2. Other Non-Executive Directors Amount (% in Lacs)
Particulars of Remuneration Madhur Bajaj Total
Fee for attending Board / Committee Meetings 2.20 2.20
Commission provided for FY 2014-15 2.50 2.50
Others, please specify - -

Total (B2) 4.70 4.70
(Amount  in Lacs)

Total Managerial Remuneration (B1) + (B2) 49.70

Overall Ceiling as per the Act** 53.97

**Being 1% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 (i.e. 327.27 lacs) plus amount
of sitting fees paid to the non-executive directors (i.e. ¥26.70 lacs). The sitting fees paid shall not be considered while computing the
said ceiling of 1% pursuantto the provisions of Section 197(2) ofthe Companies Act, 2013.
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Amount (% in Lacs)

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Anant Purandare, Mangesh Patil, Total
Executive Vice President Vice President -
& CFO Legal &
Company Secretary
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per the provisions contained in
Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 67.10 49.84 116.94
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 2.68 2.35 5.03
(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -
2 Stock Option 9.40 6.17 15.57
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission provided for FY 2014-15 - - -
- as % of profit - R R
others, specify... - - -
5 Others, please specify - - -
Total 79.18 58.36 137.54
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Amount (% in Lacs)
Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Description Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ if any
Compounding COURT] (give details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

“Trust builds quality. Quality builds satisfaction. Satisfaction builds relationships. Relationships build trust.
We at Bajaj Electricals believe in....A Tradition of Trust.”

We believe thatin business, there is something more important than just top line and bottom line. We believe that each of us needs to
strive towards producing our very best in all we do. So that, we not only fulfill the needs of each and every consumer, but also far
exceed their expectations. This is what has set us apart and this may be the very reason that we have been able to enjoy a very
special relationship with our consumers. After all, when you strive, with every sinew to be the best you can be, it will show.

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. Transparency and accountability are the two
basic tenets of Corporate Governance. The Company firmly believes in and has consistently practiced good Corporate Governance
for the past several years for the efficient conduct of its business and in meeting its obligations towards all its stakeholders including
amongst others, shareholders, customers, employees and the community in which the Company operates. As will be seen, the
Company's corporate governance practices and disclosures have gone well beyond complying with the statutory and regulatory
requirements in accordance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2014 dated 17 April 2014 and subsequent amendatory Circular dated 15
September 2014 notified the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement to be applicable with effect from 1 October 2014.

This Report therefore states compliance as per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, revised Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and other regulations as applicable to the Company.

Corporate Governance Structure

The Company has three tiers of Corporate Governance structure, viz.:

(i) Strategic Supervision—by the Board of Directors comprising the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.
(i) Executive Management— by the Corporate Management comprising the Executive Directors.

(ili) Operational Management—by the Strategic Business Unit (SBU) Heads.

The three-tier corporate governance structure not only ensures greater management accountability and credibility but also facilitates
increased business autonomy, performance, discipline and development of business leaders.

Roles of various constituents of Corporate Governance in the Company

a. Board of Directors (Board):

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction and
performance of the Company and has been vested with the requisite powers, authorities and duties. The Board reviews and
approves management's strategic business plan & business objectives and monitors the Company's strategic direction.

b. Corporate Management Committee (CMC):

The main function of the CMC is strategic management of the Company's businesses within Board approved direction and
framework, ensuring that effective systems are in place for appropriate reporting to the Board on important matters. The CMCis
headed by the Chairman & Managing Director and has business / functional heads as its members, which looks after the
management of the day-to-day affairs of the Company.

c. Chairman & Managing Director (CMD):

The CMD is the Chairman of the Board as also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. His primary role is to provide
leadership to the Board and CMC for realizing the approved strategic business plan and business objectives. He presides over
the meetings of the Board and the Shareholders.

d. JointManaging Director (JMD):

The JMD, as the member of the Board and CMC, contributes to the strategic management of the Company's businesses within
Board approved direction and framework. He assumes overall responsibility for strategic management of business and
corporate functions including its governance processes and top management effectiveness.

e. Non-Executive Directors (NED):
NED's play a vital role in improving the Board effectiveness with their independent judgment on issues of strategy,
performance, resources, standards of conduct, etc., besides providing the Board with valuable inputs.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In keeping with the commitment of the management for the principle of integrity and transparency in business operations for good
corporate governance, the Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of executive and independent directors to maintain the
independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of governance and management.
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Composition and Category of Directors

The Board comprises such number of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors including one Woman Director as
required under applicable legislation. As on 31 March 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of eight directors, of
whom one was Executive Chairman & Managing Director, one was Executive Joint Managing Director and six Non-Executive
Directors of which five Directors were Independent (including one woman director).

During the year, Shri Ajit Gulabchand, Independent & Non-Executive Director of the Company retired by rotation at the Company’s
75th Annual General Meeting held on 31 July 2014 and did not seek re-appointment due to his busy schedule and commitments on
other boards. Since the Company met the requirement of independent directors, the resultant vacancy was not filled up.

Further, during the year under review, Shri Shekhar Bajaj was re-appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a further
period of five years w.e.f. 01 November 2014. His appointment was approved by the shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution
passed through postal ballot.

According to Clause 49, in case the Company does not have a regular non-executive Chairman, at least half of the Board should
consist ofindependent directors. Table 1 below shows that the Company is in compliance with the requirements.

Meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business policy and strategy apart from other Board business. The
Board/Committee meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative annual calendar for the meetings of the Board and Board
Committee(s), is circulated to the Directors well in advance in order to facilitate and assist the Directors to plan their schedules for the
meetings. Additional meetings are held, when necessary. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board's
approval is taken by passing resolution(s) by circulation, as permitted by law, which is/are confirmed in the next Board Meeting.

During the financial year 2014-15, the Board of Directors met 6 times, viz. 29 May 2014, 20 June 2014, 31 July 2014, 13 November
2014, 12 February 2015 & 23 March 2015. The interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of one
hundred and twenty days.

Attendance record of directors at Board Meetings and AGM

Table 1: Composition of the Board and attendance record of directors for FY 2014-15

Name of Director Category Relationship with Board Meetings Whether attended last
other Directors Attended AGM
Shekhar Bajaj Promoter Father of Anant Bajaj
Non-Independent and brother of
Executive Madhur Bajaj 6/6 Yes
Anant Bajaj Promoter Son of Shekhar Bajaj
Non-Independent and nephew of
Executive Madhur Bajaj 6/6 Yes
Madhur Bajaj Promoter Brother of Shekhar Bajaj
Non-Independent and Uncle of
Non-Executive Anant Bajaj 5/6 Yes
H.V.Goenka Independent
Non-Executive - 4/6 No
Ashok Jalan Independent
Non-Executive - 6/6 Yes
V.B.Haribhakti Independent
Non-Executive - 6/6 Yes
Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Independent
Non-Executive - 5/6 Yes
Dr. R.P.Singh Independent
Non-Executive - 6/6 Yes
Ajit Gulabchand* Independent
Non-Executive -- Nil No

* Retired as Director w.e.f. 31.07.2014
Pecuniary relationship or transactions of non-executive directors

During the year under review, there were no pecuniary relationships or transactions with any non-executive director of the Company
except for the sitting fees and commission paid/payable to them for the Board and the Audit Committee Meetings attended by them.

The register of contracts is maintained by the Company under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is signed by all
the directors present at the respective Board meetings.

A statement showing the disclosure of transactions with related parties as required under Accounting Standard — 18 is set out
separately in this annual report.
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Information supplied to the Board

The notice of the Board Meeting is given to all the Directors at least fifteen days before the meeting. Meetings of the Board are held in
Mumbai. The Agenda for Board / Committee Meetings are set by the Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman of the
Board/Committee. In advance of each meeting, the Board is presented with relevant information on various matters related to the
working of the Company, especially those that require deliberation at the highest level. Presentations are also made to the Board by
different functional heads on important matters from time to time. Directors have separate and independent access to officers of the
Company. In addition to items which are required to be placed before the Board for its noting and/or approval, information is provided
on various significant items. In terms of quality and importance, the information supplied by management to the Board of the
Company is far ahead of the list mandated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. In addition to the matters statutorily required to
be placed before the Board forits approval, all other matters of significantimportance are also considered by the Board.

The Board periodically reviews the items required to be placed before it and in particular reviews and approves quarterly/half yearly
unaudited financial statements and the audited annual financial statements, corporate strategies, business plans, annual budgets,
projects and capital expenditure. It monitors overall operating performance and reviews such other items which require Board’s
attention. It directs and guides the activities of the Management towards the set goals and seeks accountability. It also sets standards
of corporate behaviour, ensures transparency in corporate dealings and compliance with laws and regulations.

The draft minutes of the proceedings of the meetings of the Board of Directors /Committee are circulated amongst the members of
the Board/Committee. Comments and suggestions, if any, received from the Directors/Members of Committee are incorporated in
the minutes, in consultation with the Chairman of the Board/Committee. The minutes are confirmed by the members of the
Board/Committee at the next Board/Committee meeting.

Orderly succession to Board and Senior Management

The Board of the Company satisfied itself that the plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to
senior management.

Directorships and memberships of Board Committees

Table 2: Names and categories of Directors as also the number of directorships/committee positions of directors as on
31 March 2015:

Name of Director Directorships Committee positions in listed &
unlisted public limited companies
In listed In unlisted As As
companies public limited companies Chairman Member
Shekhar Bajaj 3 4 - -
Anant Bajaj 1 - -
Madhur Bajaj 6 - -
H.V.Goenka 5 2 -
Ashok Jalan 2 3 - 1
V.B.Haribhakti 3 2 2 2
Dr.(Mrs.) Indu Shahani 4 1 2 3
Dr. R.P.Singh 1 - -
Ajit Gulabchand™# 3 11 2 3

* Retired as Director w.e.f. 31.07.2014
# Information as available on the date of retirement/cessation

Notes:

* None of the directors holds office as a director, including as alternate director, in more than 20 Companies at the same time. None
of them has Directorships in more than ten public companies. For reckoning the limit of public companies, directorship of private
companies that are either holding or subsidiary of a public company is included.

» As per declarations received, none of the directors serves as an Independent director in more than 7 listed companies. Further,
none of the directors serving as a whole-time director in any listed company serves as an independent director in more than 3 listed
companies.

* None of the directors was a member in more than 10 committees nor a Chairman in more than 5 committees across all companies,
in which he was a director.

* Private limited companies, foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded for the
above purposes. Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are considered for the purpose of reckoning
committee positions.
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Review of legal compliance reports

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable to the Company, as
prepared and placed before it by the Management.

Maximum tenure of independent directors

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.

Formal Letter of Appointment to independent directors

The Company has issued a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner as provided in the Companies Act,
2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors are placed on the
website of the Company www.bajajelectricals.com.

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board has carried out an annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, and that of its Committees and individual directors.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) of Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 23 March 2015,
has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation as under:

PartA: For Board & Committees of Board

Composition with requisite number of Independent Directors (and woman director in the case of Board);
Frequency of Meetings;

Discharge of the key functions prescribed under Law;

Discharge of the other responsibilities prescribed under Law;

Monitoring the effectiveness of corporate governance practices;

Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems, independent audit, internal audit and risk
management systems (for Board and Audit Committee);

7.  Workingin the interests of all the stakeholders of the Company.
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PartB: For Directors

-

Attendance and Participation;

Pro-active and positive approach with regard to Board and Senior Management particularly the arrangements for management
of risk and the steps needed to meet challenges from the competition;

Maintaining confidentiality;

Acting in good faith and in the interests of the Company as a whole;

Exercising duties with due diligence and reasonable care;

Complying with legislations and regulations in letter and spirit;

Openness to ideas, perspectives and opinions and ability to challenge old practices and throwing up new ideas for discussion;
Maintaining relationships of mutual trust and respect with Board members;

Capacity to effectively examine financial and other information on operations of the Company and the ability to make positive
contribution thereon.

A
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Manner in which such formal annual evaluation was done is given below:

. Based on the annual performance evaluation criteria approved by the Board, rating sheets were filled by each of the directors
towards the end of the year with regard to evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors (except for the
director being evaluated) for the year under review.

. A consolidated summary of the ratings given by each of the directors was then prepared, based on which a report of
performance evaluation was prepared by the Chairman in respect of the performance of the Board, its Committees and
Directors during the year under review.

. The report of performance evaluation so arrived at was then discussed and noted by the Board at its meetings held in March
2015.

. As per the report of performance evaluation, the Board shall determine inter-alia whether to continue the term of appointment of
the director. During the year under review, there was no occasion to decide on the continuance of the term of appointment of
any of the directors and hence the question of taking a decision on their re-appointment did not arise.
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Board Diversity Policy

In compliance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
has devised a policy on Board Diversity with the objective to ensure that the Board is comprised of adequate number of members
with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company and the said Policy is
approved by the Board. The composition of the Board of the Company at present broadly meets with the above objective.

Under the said Policy, the Committee while recommending appointment of Directors shall keep in view the following:

i)  The persons being recommended are persons of eminence in areas such as profession, business, industry, finance, law,
administration, research etc., and bring with them experience / skills which add value to the performance of the Board with
greater diversity.

ii)  Recommendations shall be purely on merit and no discrimination shall be made based on race, colour, religion or gender.
The Board Diversity Policy is placed on the Company's website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company held various familiarization programmes for the Independent
Directors throughout the year on an ongoing and continuous basis with a view to familiarizing the independent directors with the
Company’s operations. The familiarization programmes carried out during the year include :-

1. Presentations made by business and functional heads of the Company from time to time on different functions and areas.

2. Presentations made and deliberations held from time to time on major changes and developments in the new Companies Act
2013 and revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The familiarization programme of the Company for its Independent Directors has been disclosed on the Company’s website:
www.bajajelectricals.com.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Constitution and composition

The Company set up its independent audit committee way back in 1998. Since, then the Company has been reviewing and making
appropriate changes in the composition and working of the committee from time to time to bring about greater effectiveness and to
comply with various requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

All members of the Audit Committee are independent, non-executive directors and are ‘financially literate’ as required by Clause 49.
Moreover, the Chairman and members of Audit Committee have ‘accounting or related financial management expertise’. The
Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are extensive and as stated below, go beyond what is mandated in Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Role & Responsibilities of Committee:

a) Hold discussions with the Auditors periodically about internal control systems, the scope of audit including the observations of
the auditors and review the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board and also
ensure compliance of internal control systems;

b)  Tooversee the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

c) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reappointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of statutory auditor
and their terms of appointment;

d) Reviewing with the management the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board,
focusing primarily on --

. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board'’s report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

. Any changes in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgement by management.
. Qualifications in draft audit report.

. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

. The going concern assumption.

. Compliance with accounting standards.

. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements concerning financial statements.

. Disclosure of any related party transactions, i.e. transactions of the Company of material nature, with promoters or the
management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc., that may have potential conflict with the interests of Company at large.
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e) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

f) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

g) Approval orany subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with Related Parties;

h)  Scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments;

i) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever itis necessary;

j) Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;.

k)  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority
of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

1) Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

m) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

n) Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences on the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

0) Reviewing of Company's financial controls and risk management systems;

p) Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

q) Review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

r)  Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc of the candidate;

s)  Carrying out any other function as may be required by the Board.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1. Managementdiscussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee) submitted by management;
Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
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The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.

Meetings’ attendance

During 2014-15, the Audit Committee met 5 (five) times: 29 May 2014, 31 July 2014, 13 November 2014, 12 February 2015 and 23
March 2015. The meetings were scheduled well in advance. In addition to the members of the Audit Committee, these meetings were
attended by the heads of finance, internal audit functions and the statutory auditor of the Company and those executives who were
considered necessary for providing inputs to the Committee.

Table 3: Composition of Audit Committee and attendance record of its members for FY 2014-15:

Name of director Designation Meetings attended
V.B.Haribhakti Chairman 5/5
Ashok Jalan Member 5/5
Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Member 4/5
Ajit Gulabchand * Member Nil

*Ceasedto be amemberw.e.f. 31.07.2014

V.B. Haribhakti, Chairman of Audit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31 July 2014 to
answer shareholders’ queries.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company constituted a remuneration committee of the Board on 26 March 2003. Subsequently, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 29 May 2007, extended the terms of reference of the existing remuneration committee, to determine the matter
concerning with employee stock options and renamed it as 'Remuneration and Compensation Committee’'.

Further, to be consistent with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended Clause 49 of the Listing

Agreement, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 29 May 2014, re-designated the 'Remuneration and Compensation
Committee' as the 'Nomination and Remuneration Committee' and restated its terms of reference as under:
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1.  Toidentify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with
the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

2. Tocarry outevaluation of every director’s performance;

3. Toformulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

4.  While formulating the policy, to ensure that—

a. the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the
quality required to run the company successfully;

relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals.

5. To take into account financial position of the company, trend in the industry, appointees qualifications, experience, past
performance, past remuneration, etc., and bring about objectivity in determining the remuneration package while striking a
balance between the interest of the Company and the shareholders;

To lay down /formulate the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors and the Board;
To devise a policy on Board diversity;
To undertake specific duties as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time;

To engage / retain advisors, at the expense of the Company, to assistin connection with its functions, if necessary;

2 © © N o

0. To determine the quantum of Employee Stock Options to be granted to the employees under Company’s ESOP Plans;
determine eligibility for grant of ESOPs; decide the procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment in case of corporate
actions; procedure and terms for the grant, vest and exercise of Employee Stock Option; procedure for cashless exercise of
Employee Stock Options, etc.

During the year under review, the Committee met 5 (five) times i.e. on 29 May 2014, 31 July 2014, 13 November 2014, 12 February
2015 and 23 March 2015.

Table 4: Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance record of members for FY 2014-15:

Name of director Designation Meetings attended
V.B.Haribhakti Chairman 5/5
Ashok Jalan Member 5/5
Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Member 4/5
Ajit Gulabchand * Member Nil

*Ceasedto be amemberw.e.f. 31.07.2014

During the year under review, the Committee, inter alia, approved and recommended to the Board:

. Designation of Key Managerial Personnel;

. Board Diversity Policy;

. Performance evaluation criteria for Board, Committees of Board, Independent Directors and Non-Independent Directors;
. Remuneration Policy on remuneration of directors, KMP & employees; and

. Performance Evaluation of the Board, committees and the directors.

V.B. Haribhakti, Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 31 July 2014, to answer shareholders’ queries.

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company constituted a Shareholders'/Investors' Grievance Committee of the Board on 25 March 2002.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 29 May 2014, renamed the 'Shareholders'/Investors' Grievance Committee' as the
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee' in order to align with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The Committee comprises of V.B.Haribhakti as its Chairman and Dr.(Mrs.) Indu Shahani, as its member. The Committee is entrusted
with the responsibility of addressing the shareholders' and investors' complaints, if any, with respect to transfer of shares, non-receipt

of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividend, payment of unclaimed dividends, to facilitate better security holders services and
relations, etc.
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Mangesh Patil, Vice President — Legal & Company Secretary has been designated as Compliance Officer as per the requirement of

the Listing Agreement.

V.B. Haribhakti, Chairman of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 31 July 2014, to answer shareholders’ queries.

Table 5: Complaints attended & resolved during FY 2014-15:

Investors Complaints

Attended/ Resolved during FY 2014-15

Pending at the beginning of the year Nil
Received during the year 12
Disposed of during the year 12
Remaining unresolved at the end of the year Nil

Trend of shares related complaints during last 5 years:
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At every meeting of the Board, the Compliance Officer provides to the Directors, status as to the shareholders' grievances, which is

taken on record by the Board.

Since all the complaints of the shareholders were resolved at the executive level, the Committee had no occasion to consider the
unresolved complaints from the shareholders during FY 2014-15.

Independent Directors Meeting

In compliance with Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013 & amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, during the year under
review, two separate meetings of the Independent Directors were held on 12 February 2015 & 23 March 2015, inter-alia, to :

(a) review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as awhole;

(b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-

executive directors;

(c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

The Independent directors deliberated on the above and expressed their satisfaction.

Table 6: Attendance record of the Independent Directors’ Meeting for FY 2014-15:

Name of Independent Director

Meetings attended

H.V. Goenka 112
V.B.Haribhakti 2/2
Ashok Jalan 2/2
Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani 2/2
Dr.R.P. Singh 2/2
Ajit Gulabchand* Nil

*Retired as Director w.e.f. 31.07.2014
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Remuneration Policy / Remuneration of Directors

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a Remuneration Policy, providing
(a) criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors; and (b) a Policy on Remuneration for
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The detailed Remuneration Policy is placed on the Company's website:
www.bajajelectricals.com.

a)

b)

Non-executive directors’ compensation

Non-executive directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring in an
external perspective to decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining objective judgment.
They also oversee corporate governance framework of the Company.

In view of the increased demands on non-executive directors’ participation in Board and Committee meetings, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on 29 May 2014, revised sitting fee to ¥ 50,000/- per meeting to non-executive directors, including
independent directors, for every meeting of the Board and Audit Committee attended by them effective 01 June 2014.

Accordingly, the non-executive directors of the Company are paid sitting fees of ¥50,000/- for every meeting of the Board and
Audit Committee attended (%20,000/- upto 31 May 2014) and ¥20,000/- per meeting for other meetings attended by them.

As approved by the Shareholders in the annual general meeting held on 31 July 2014, the Non-Executive Directors are paid
commission at the rate of ¥50,000/- per meeting of the Board and Audit Committee attended by them, subject to a ceiling of 1%
of the net profits of the Company.

Apart from sitting fees and commission referred to above, the Company also reimburses the travelling and other related
expenses incurred by the Non-executive Directors for attending the Board and Committee meetings.

The service contract, notice period and severance fees are not applicable to Non-Executive Directors.

The Company currently does not have a stock option programme for any of its directors.

Table 7: Details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors during the year by way of sitting fees and commission:
(Amount in %)

Name of Director Sitting Fees (Gross) Commission (Gross) Total

Madhur Bajaj 2,20,000 2,50,000 4,70,000
H.V.Goenka 1,90,000 2,50,000 4,40,000
Ashok Jalan 7,70,000 4,50,000 12,20,000
V.B.Haribhakti 6,30,000 4,50,000 10,80,000
Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani 5,50,000 3,50,000 9,00,000
Dr.R.P.Singh 3,10,000 2,50,000 5,60,000
Ajit Gulabchand* - 1,00,000 1,00,000

*Retired as Directorw.e.f. 31.07.2014

Note: Commission relates to FY 2013-14 which was paid during the financial year under review. Commission for FY 2014-15 has been
provided as payable to NEDs in the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015, based on the number of meetings of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee attended by them.

As on the date of this report, Shri Madhur Bajaj holds 20,44,835 equity shares in the Company. None of the other Non-Executive
Directors holds any shares in the Company.

Executive directors’remuneration

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and commission (variable
component) to the Executive Director(s). Salaries paid to Executive Directors namely Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing
Director and Anant Bajaj, Joint Managing Director of the Company are within the range approved by the Shareholders. The
Commission paid/payable to the Chairman & Managing Director and Joint Managing Director is calculated at the rate of 2% and
1%, respectively, with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year and is determined by the Board of
Directors at the end of the financial year, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Executive Directors are entitled to superannuation benefits payable in the form of an annuity from an approved life insurance
company, which form part of the perquisites allowed to them. The terms of Managing Director and Joint Managing Directors do
not exceed five years.

The Company has no stock option plans for the promoter executive directors/non-executive directors and hence, it does not
form a part of the remuneration package payable to them.

During FY 2014-15, the Company did not advance any loans to any of the non-executive directors and/or executive directors.

Details of Remuneration paid/payable to directors during FY 2014-15 are provided in an Annexure to the Directors' report in
'Form MGT-9'".
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c) Management staff remuneration

Remuneration of employees largely consists of basic salary, perquisites, allowances and performance incentives. The
components of the total remuneration vary for different grades and are governed by industry patterns, qualifications and
experience of the employee, responsibilities handled by him, his annual performance, etc. The performance pay policy links the
performance pay of each officer to his individual, business unit and overall Company's performance on parameters aligned to
Company's objectives.

Shareholding of Directors

Information on Shares held by directors in the Company as on 31 March 2015 is provided in the Annexure to the Directors' report in
'Form MGT-9'".

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism and affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the
Audit Committee

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. The Company is committed to developing a culture where it is safe for
any Whistle Blower to raise concerns about any poor or unacceptable practice and any event of misconduct.

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of Listing Agreement, the Board of Director at its meeting held on
12 February 2015, amended the existing Whistle Blower Policy to extend its applicability to other persons dealing with the Company
viz. contractors, vendors, customers and business consultants in addition to employees and directors.

The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism provides a mechanism for the director, employee or such other person having dealings
with the Company to report to the management, without fear of victimization, any unethical behavior, suspected or actual fraud,
violation of the Code of Conduct, etc. which are detrimental to the Company’s interest. This mechanism provides safeguards to the
Whistle Blower from any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair employment practice.

The directors in all cases & employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit

Committee. The policy has been appropriately communicated to the employees within the organization and posted on the
Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Subsidiaries

The Company has no subsidiary as on 31 March 2015. Also, the Company does not have any material subsidiary whose net worth
exceeds 20% of the consolidated net worth of the holding company in the immediately preceding accounting year or has generated
20% of the consolidated income of the Company during the previous financial year.

However, as an abundant precaution, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on
31 July 2014 adopted a policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries and its approval/reporting mechanism (‘Policy’). Further, the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13 November 2014 suitably amended the said Policy to incorporate the amendments made
by SEBI in revised Clause 49 vide its Circular No.CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/7/2014 dated 15 September 2014.

The said Policy has been displayed on the Company's website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions (RPTs) which were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business and do not attract provisions of Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and are also not material RPTs
under Clause 49.

During the year 2014-15, the RPTs were placed before Audit Committee for prior approval. Asummary statement of transactions with
related parties was placed periodically before the Audit Committee during the year. Suitable disclosures, as required by the
Accounting Standard -18 have been made in the financial statements.

Details of ‘material’ transactions, if any, with the Related Parties are disclosed quarterly along with the Compliance Report on
Corporate Governance.

There were no material transactions entered into with related parties, during the period under review, which may have had any
potential conflict with the interests of the Company.

APolicy on materiality of RPTs and also on dealing with RPTs has been formulated by the Board during the year under review and the
same is placed on the Company’s website www.bajajelectricals.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion & Analysis Report is a separate chapterin the Annual Report.
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Disclosure of material transactions

Under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, senior management personnel are required to make periodical disclosures to the Board
relating to all material financial and commercial transactions where they had (or were deemed to have had) personal interest that
might have been in potential conflict with the interest of the Company. Provision regarding the above has been adhered to during the
year.

Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“the Code”) is the Company's statement of values and represents the standard of
conduct which all the Directors and members of the Senior Management Team of the Company are expected to observe in their
business endeavors. The Code reflects the Company's commitment to principles of integrity, transparency and fairness.

Revised Clause 49 of Listing Agreement requires listed companies to lay down a code of conduct for its directors and senior
management, incorporating duties of directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company pursuant to erstwhile Clause 49, already had a Code of Conduct for Directors and members of Senior Management.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 29 May 2014, suitably amended Company’s Code to incorporate the requirements of
revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, including with respect to incorporation of duties of Independent Directors, as laid down in
the Companies Act, 2013. The Code was further amended in the Board of Directors meeting held on 12 February 2015, to extend its
applicability to all the employees of the Company and to include the reference of the Vigil Mechanism of the Company.

The Code is available on the website of the Company www.bajajelectricals.com. All directors and senior management personnel
have affirmed compliance with the new code for 2014-15. A declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman & Managing Director is
given below:

To the Shareholders of Bajaj Electricals Limited

Sub: Compliance with Code of Business Conduct & Ethics
| hereby declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, all the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics, as adopted by the Board of Directors, for the year ended
31 March 2015.

Date: 28 May 2015 Shekhar Bajaj
Place: Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practice

The Company had in place a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading’, amended up to date, in accordance with the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, as amended. These regulations have been substituted by SEBI with a new set of
Regulations, which came into effect from 15 May 2015.

Regulation 8 of the newly introduced Regulations, requires the Company to formulate a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI), which the Company needs to follow in order to adhere to each of the
principles set outin Schedule Ato the said Regulations.

Further, Regulation 9(1) of these Regulations require a listed company to formulate a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and
report trading by its employees and other connected persons, towards achieving compliance with the said Regulations, adopting the
minimum standards, set outin Schedule B to the Regulations.

Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 23 March 2015, approved and adopted,

a) Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information; and

b) Code of Conductto Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by its employees and other connected persons.

The said codes are posted on Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com and are being adhered to with effect from 15 May 2015.
Internal Controls and Risk Management Framework

The Company has robust systems for internal audit. The internal audit covers all the factories, branch offices, warehouses and
businesses and functions controlled centrally. The annual internal audit cover plan is approved by the Audit Committee at the

beginning of every year. Every quarter, the Audit Committee of the Board is presented with key control issues and actions taken on
pastissues.
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The Company also has in place mechanism to inform Board about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and periodical
review to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework.

A detailed note on risk management is given in the Financial Review section of Management Discussion and Analysis appearing
elsewhere in the Annual Report.

Disclosures

Vi.

vii

Accounting treatment

In the preparation of financial statements, the Company has not followed a treatment different from that prescribed in the
Accounting Standards.

Audit qualifications

The Company always endeavors to present unqualified financial statements. There are no audit qualifications in the
Company's financial statements for the year under review.

Disclosure of pending cases and instances of non-compliance

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, nor has there been any penalties and strictures imposed on the
Company by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years.

CEOI/CFO Certification

The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other matters as required by Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement. The joint certificate from CEO/CFO is contained in this Annual Report.

Report on corporate governance

This section, read together with the information given in the Directors’ Report and the section on Management Discussion and
Analysis and General Shareholder Information, constitute the compliance report on corporate governance during FY 2014-15.

Auditors’ certificate on corporate governance

The Company has obtained the certificate from its statutory auditors regarding compliance with the provisions relating to
corporate governance laid down in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. This Certificate is contained in this Annual Report and
will be sent to the stock exchanges along with the Annual Report to be filed by the Company.

Compliance of mandatory and non-mandatory requirements under Clause 49

The Company is complying with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Company has also

complied with the non-mandatory requirement with respect to the regime of unqualified financial statements as there are no
qualifications in the financial statements of the Company for the year 2014-15.

Means of Communication

()

(ii)

Quarterly Results: Quarterly Results of the Company are submitted to Stock Exchanges, published in ‘Free Press Journal’
and ‘Navshakti’ and are displayed on the Company’s website www.bajajelectricals.com.The official press release is also
issued.

Audited Annual Financial Results: The Company publishes the audited annual financial results within the stipulated period of
60 days from the close of the financial year as required by the Listing Agreement and hence, the un-audited results for the last
quarter of the financial year are not published.

The annual financial results are also communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed, published
inthe newspapers and displayed on the Company’s website.

News Releases, Presentations, etc.: Official news releases and media releases are sent to the Stock Exchanges.

Presentation to Institutional Investors / Analysts: Detailed Presentations are made to Institutional Investors and Financial
Analysts, on the un-audited quarterly financial results as well as the annual audited financial results of the Company.

Electronic communication to promote green initiatives: Sections 20 & 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 permit companies to service delivery of documents electronically on the registered
members’/shareholders’ email addresses.
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The Company, during the year under review sent documents, such as notice calling the general meeting, audited financial
statements, directors’ report, auditors’ report etc. in electronic form at the email addresses provided by the shareholders and
made available by them to the Company through the depositories. Shareholders desiring to receive the said documents in
physical form continued to get the same in physical form, upon request.

(vi) Website: The Company’s website www.bajajelectricals.com contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor Relations’ where
shareholders information is available.

The Company also files the following information, statements and reports on its website as specified by SEBI:

a) Full version of the Annual Report including the balance sheet, profit and loss, cash flow statement, directors’ report,
corporate governance report, auditors’ report, quarterly & half-yearly financial statements.

b)  Shareholding pattern.

(vii) Annual Report: Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other
information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto.

(viii) Reminder to Investors: Reminders for unclaimed shares, unclaimed dividend/unclaimed interest are sent to the
shareholders/ fixed deposit holders as per records every year.

(ix) NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS): NEAPS is a web based application designed by NSE for
corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report and media releases are
filed electronically on NEAPS.

(x) BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the “Listing Centre”): The Listing Centre of BSE is a web based application
designed by BSE for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report,
media releases, etc. are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

(xi) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web based
complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: Centralised Database of all complaints, online upload of
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by investors of action taken on the complaint and
its current status.

Nomination

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose name the shares shall be
transferable in the case of death of the registered shareholder(s). The prescribed nomination form (SH-13) will be sent by the share
transfer agent of the Company upon such request and is also available on the Company’s website. Nomination facility for shares held
in electronic form is also available with depository participant as per the bye-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL.

Voting through electronic means

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, every listed company is required to provide its
members facility to exercise their right to vote at general meetings by electronic means.

The Company has entered into an arrangement with CDSL, the authorized agency for this purpose, to facilitate such e-voting for its
members.

The shareholders would therefore be able to exercise their voting rights on the items put up in the Notice of AGM, through such e-
voting method. Further, in accordance with the amended Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 (“Amended
Rules”), the Company shall also be making arrangements to provide for voting facility at the venue of the AGM to those shareholders
who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting or through post.

Shareholders who are attending the meeting and who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall only be able to
exercise theirright of voting at the meeting.

Cut-off dates for e-voting, as per the amended Rules shall be 31 July 2015 and the remote e-voting shall be open for a period of three
(3) days, from 3 August 2015 (10.00 a.m.) till 5 August 2015 (5.00 p.m.). The Board has appointed M/s.Anant B. Khamankar & Co.,
Practising Company Secretaries as scrutinizer for scrutinizing the remote e-voting process as well as voting through physical ballot
form by post and through ballot paper atthe AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.

Detailed procedure is given in the Notice of the AGM. Shareholders may get in touch with the Company Secretary for further
assistance.

General Shareholder Information
(a) Company Information Details

The Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L31500MH1938PLC009887.
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(b)

Information on General Body Meetings

Seventy Sixth Annual General Meeting:

Day, Date, Time and Venue

Thursday, the 6 August 2015 at 12.30 P.M.
at Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

Last Date for receipt of Proxy forms

Tuesday, the 4 August 2015 (before 12.30 P.M.
at the Registered Office of the Company)

Book Closure Dates

31July 2015 to 6 August 2015 (both days inclusive)
for AGM and for payment of dividend

Previous three Annual General Meetings:

AGM Financial Year Day, Date & Time of AGM Venue of Meeting
73rd AGM 2011-12 Thursday Walchand Hirachand Hall,

26 July 2012, 12.30 P.M. 4th Floor, Indian Merchants’ Chamber,

IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020
74th AGM 2012-13 Tuesday
06 August 2013, 11.30 A.M. Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan,

75th AGM 2013-14 Thursday Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point,

31 July 2014, 11.30 A.M Mumbai 400 021

Details of special resolution(s) passed during the previous three AGMs:

No special resolution was passed at the general meetings held during the years 2013 and 2014.

At the 75th AGM held on 31 July 2014, special resolution was passed for approval of payment of remuneration to non-
executive directors.

None of the businesses proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a special
resolution through Postal Ballot.

Details of special resolution(s) passed through postal ballot during the previous year:

During FY 2014-15, following special resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot

Limits of Borrowing u/s 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars

Total number of Shares

Percentage (%)

Total number of shares polled in FAVOUR of Special Resolution

Total number of Valid Votes

under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 7,26,21,714 99.96

Total number of shares polled AGAINST the Special Resolution

under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 29,974 0.04
7,26,51,688 100.00

Providing security u/s 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 in connection with the borrowings of the Company:

Particulars

Total number of Shares

Percentage (%)

Total number of shares polled in FAVOUR of Special Resolution

under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 7,26,22,829 99.96
Total number of shares polled AGAINST the Special Resolution

under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 28,824 0.04
Total number of Valid Votes 7,26,51,653 100.00

Approval forissue of Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures on

Private Placement Basis:

Particulars

Total number of Shares

Percentage (%)

Total number of shares polled in FAVOUR of Special
Resolution for approval for Issue of Redeemable
Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement basis.

7,26,17,607

99.95

Total number of shares polled AGAINST the Special Resolution
for approval for Issue of Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures on Private Placement basis.

34,046

0.05

Total number of Valid Votes

7,26,51,653

100.00
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(c)

(d)

(e)

The postal ballot exercise was conducted in the manner provided under the provisions of Section 110 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014.

In compliance with Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement and provisions of Section 110 of the Act read with the Rules, the
Company had provided Electronic Voting (“e-voting”) facility as an alternate, to all its Members, to enable them to cast their
votes electronically instead of dispatching the physical Postal Ballot Form by post. The Company had engaged the services of
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to provide e-voting facility to its Members.

The notice of postal ballot was accompanied with detailed instructions kit to enable the members to understand the procedure
and manner in which postal ballot voting (including e-voting) to be carried out.

Financial calendar: Financial Year— 01 April to 31 March

The tentative dates of Board Meetings for consideration of financial results for FY 2015-16 are as follows:

First Quarter Results First Week of August 2015
Second Quarter and Half Yearly Results First Week of November 2015
Third Quarter Results Second Week of February 2016
Fourth Quarter and Annual Results Fourth Week of May 2016

The Board Meetings for approval of Quarterly Financial Results during the year ended 31 March 2015 were held on the
following dates:

First Quarter Results 31 July 2014
Second Quarter and Half Yearly Results 13 November 2014
Third Quarter Results 12 February 2015
Fourth Quarter and Annual Results 28 May 2015

Dividend, Dividend Payment date & mode of payment

(i) Dividend:

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a dividend of ¥ 1.50 per equity share (75 per cent) for the financial
year 2014-15, subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting. Dividend paid in the
previous year was %1.50 per equity share (75 per cent).

(i) Dividend paymentdate:

Dividend on equity shares, if declared at the annual general meeting, will be credited/dispatched within 30 days from
6August2015 :-

a) to all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form, as per the ownership data made available to the
Company by National Securities Depository Ltd.(NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) as
of the close of business hours on Thursday, 6 August 2015; and

b) toallthose shareholders holding shares in physical form, after giving effect to all the valid share transfers lodged with
the Company on or before the close of business hours on Thursday, 30 July 2015.

(iii) Mode of Payment:

Dividend will be paid by account payee/non-negotiable instruments or through the National Electronic Clearing Service
(NECS), as notified by the SEBI through the stock exchanges.

In view of the significant advantages and the convenience, the Company will continue to pay dividend through NECS in all
maijor cities to cover maximum number of shareholders, as per applicable guidelines. Shareholders are advised to refer to
the Notice of the annual general meeting for details of action required to be taken by them in this regard.

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated 21 March 2013 has stipulated that all listed companies shall use
approved electronic mode of payment viz., ECS, NECS, NEFT, etc., for the purpose of making payments to the
shareholders.

All the shareholders are requested to immediately update their bank account details, if the same have not been updated,
with the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer agent or the depository participant, as the case may be.
Unclaimed Dividends

The shareholders who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the years 2007-08 onwards are requested to claim the
amount from the Company or the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

As per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, any money transferred by the Company to the unpaid dividend account and
remaining unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer shall be transferred to Investor Education and
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Protection Fund (Fund) set up by the Central Government. Accordingly, the unpaid/unclaimed dividend for 2007-08 shall
become transferable to the Fund in August 2015. Shareholders are requested to verify their records and send claims, if any,
before the amount becomes due for transfer to the Fund.

Further, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 10 May 2012 prescribed the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012 which
mandates all the companies to file the particulars of all the unclaimed and unpaid amounts through 'e-Form 5INV' on the web
portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/index.html) and subsequently also upload the data on the
website of the Company. During the year under review, the Company has accordingly filed the necessary 'Form-5INV' on 21
October 2014 for the financial year ended 31 March 2014. The details of unclaimed dividends for the financial years 2007-08 to
2013-14 have been uploaded on the Company’s website: www.bajajelectricals.com.

Table 8: Details of unclaimed dividends as on 31 March 2015 are as under:

Year Amount of Dividend (%) Dividend Unclaimed (%) Unclaimed (%)
2007-08 138,286,080 726,176 0.01
2008-09 172,857,600 897,870 0.01
2009-10 235,633,188 1,048,682 0.01
2010-11 278,802,930 1,651,977 0.01
2011-12 279,075,454 1,354,704 0.01
2012-13 199,510,662 1,015,260 0.01
2013-14 150,409,971 1,060,053 0.01

(f) Listing onstock exchanges & Stock Code
Shares of the Company are currently listed on the following stock exchanges:

Name Address Stock Code
1. BSE Ltd. (BSE) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400 001 500031
2. National Stock Exchange Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
of India Ltd. (NSE) Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051 BAJAJELEC
3. Delhi Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) DSE House, 3/1, Asaf Ali Road,
New Delhi 110 002 02031

The ISIN Number allotted to the Company's equity shares of face value of 2 each under the depository (NSDL and CDSL)
systemis INE193E01025.

For FY 2015-16, the Company has paid annual listing fees to all the stock exchanges and annual custody/issuer fees to both the
depositories.

(g) MarketPrice Data
Table 9: Monthly high and low prices and trading volumes of the Company’s equity shares at BSE and NSE during 2014-15:

Month BSE NSE

High Low No of Shares High Low No of Shares

) ) Traded () ) Traded

Apr-14 315.75 264.30 10,61,172 316.05 262.60 26,31,718
May-14 384.80 285.55 13,75,647 382.85 286.00 52,12,329
Jun-14 378.60 299.00 10,74,339 379.90 299.00 67,61,158
Jul-14 377.80 284.00 10,07,208 377.00 284.00 49,84,218
Aug-14 301.65 265.00 18,34,787 301.25 262.35 42,98,939
Sep-14 302.30 263.00 24,58,434 302.40 262.65 73,63,054
Oct-14 292.00 264.55 13,75,499 292.50 264.00 28,37,973
Nov-14 296.00 201.00 33,27,087 296.70 200.05 1,32,91,205
Dec-14 237.00 191.00 23,82,126 236.00 199.00 80,41,473
Jan-15 253.00 220.05 18,31,557 252.65 219.85 67,01,782
Feb-15 234.60 200.95 44,53,166 234.70 201.15 54,19,909
Mar-15 234.55 207.90 14,14,346 235.00 208.20 42,92,797

(Source: BSE and NSE Websites)

Delhi Stock Exchange Ltd: Shares have not been traded at this Stock Exchange during FY 2014-15.
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Share Price Performance in comparison to broad based indices — BSE Sensex & NSE Nifty
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(h) Share Transfer system

U)

(1)

Share transfers received by the share transfer agent/Company are registered within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided
the documents are complete in all respects and the shares under transfer are not under any dispute.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) quarterly audit of the Company’s share capital is being carried
out by an independent external auditor with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and held in physical form, with the issued
and listed capital. The Auditors’ Certificate in regard to the same is submitted to BSE Limited, the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited and Delhi Stock Exchange Ltd and is also placed before the Board of Directors.

Distribution of shareholding

Table 10: Distribution of shareholding across categories

Categories 31 March 2015 31 March 2014

No. of % of total No. of % of total

Shares capital Shares capital
Promoters * 6,35,39,285 63.06 6,35,39,285 63.56
Foreign Institutional Investors 1,37,17,738 13.61 1,46,45,581 14.65
Mutual Funds 48,92,767 4.86 37,63,069 3.76
Nationalised and other banks 61,153 0.06 70,000 0.07
NRIs and OCBs 10,51,338 1.04 7,36,176 0.74
Others 1,75,00,145 17.37 1,72,15,067 17.22
Total 10,07,62,426 100.00 9,99,69,178 100.00

* Bajaj Electricals Ltd (BEL) Employees’ Welfare Funds and Bajaj Auto Ltd Employees’ Welfare Funds are holding 6,79,200 (0.67%)
and 18,61,900 (1.84%) equity shares, respectively, in Bajaj Electricals Ltd. These holdings were classified as Promoters’shareholding
until quarter ended 31 December 2014.

Consequent upon the enactment of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, with effect from the quarter ending
31 March 2015, the holdings of BEL Employees Welfare Funds and Bajaj Auto Ltd Employees’ Welfare Funds have been excluded from
Promoters Group.

Table 11: Distribution of shareholding according to size class as on 31 March 2015

Categories No. of % to total No. of % to total
Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shares
1 to 500 27,141 86.57 28,99,281 2.88
501 to 1000 1,841 5.87 14,89,440 1.48
1001 to 2000 1,180 3.76 17,82,251 1.77
2001 to 3000 433 1.38 11,15,822 1.1
300104000 148 0.47 5,35,853 0.53
4001 to 5000 141 0.45 6,59,273 0.65
5001 to 10000 202 0.65 14,72,678 1.46
10001 and above 266 0.85 9,08,07,828 90.12
Total 31,352 100.00 10,07,62,426 100.00
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Dematerialisation of shares

As on 31 March 2015, 9,83,63,920 (97.62%) equity shares of the Company were held in dematerialized form, compared to
9,74,90,617 (97.52%) equity shares as on 31 March 2014. Shares held in physical and electronic mode as on 31 March 2015

are givenin Table 12 hereinbelow.

Table 12: Shares held in physical and electronic mode

Position as on Position as on Net Change
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 during 2014-15
No of % of total No of % of total Share No of % of total
Shares Share Holding Shares Holding Shares | Share Holding

Physical (A) 23,98,506 2.38 24,78,561 2.48 (80,055) (0.10)
Demat (B)

NSDL 9,47,68,858 94.05 |9,46,75,392 94.70 93,466 (0.65)
CDSL 35,95,062 3.57 28,15,225 2.82 7,79,837 0.75
Sub-Total (B) 9,83,63,920 97.62 [9,74,90,617 97.52 8,73,303 0.10
Total (A) + (B) 10,07,62,426 100.00 | 9,99,69,178 100.00 7,93,248

(k)

Address for Correspondence

All Shareholders' Correspondence should be forwarded to Link Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar & Share Transfer
Agents of the Company or to the Legal & Secretarial Department at the Registered Office of the Company at the following

addresses:

Link Intime India Private Limited

L B S Marg, Bhandup (West)
Mumbai 400 078

Tel.No.: 022-25963838

Fax No.: 022-25946969

Website: www.linkintime.com

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound

E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Mangesh Patil, Compliance Officer
Legal & Secretarial Department
Bajaj Electricals Limited

45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai 400 001

Tel.No.: 022-22043841, 22043780
Fax No.: 022-22851279

E-mail: legal@bajajelectricals.com
Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

Debenture Trustee

U]

Axis Trustee Services Limited

2nd Floor 'E', Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 025

Tel. No.: 022-2425 5215/5216, Fax: 022-2425 4200

Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com

Website: www.axistrustee.com

(m) Factories/Plants Location:

Tal: Khed, Dist: Pune,
Maharashtra — 410 501

Chakan Unit: Ranjangaon Unit: Wind Farm: Kosi Unit :
Village Mahalunge, MIDC — Ranjangaon Village Vankusawade 109 KM Stone,
Chakan, Village : Dhoksanghavi Tal: Patan NH 2, Dautana,
Chakan Talegaon Road, Tal: Shirur, Dist: Pune Dist: Satara Chhata — 281 403

Maharashtra — 412 210

Maharashtra — 415 206 District: Mathura, U.P.
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To,
The Members of
Bajaj Electricals Limited

Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Bajaj Electricals Limited, for the year ended 31 March
2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement(s) of the said Company with stock exchanges in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination was
carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration Number: 102021W
Chartered Accountants

Russell | Parera
Partner
Membership No0.042190

Mumbai, 28 May 2015

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors,
Bajaj Electricals Limited
Mumbai.

We, the undersigned, in our capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Bajaj Electricals Limited (“the
Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby certify that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statement and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 and based
on our knowledge and belief, we state that :

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might
be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have confirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

(d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same over the
financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, in the design or
operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(e) Wehaveindicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee that:-

there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

there have been no significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and the significant accounting policies
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

c. there have been noinstances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Shekhar Bajaj Anant Purandare
Mumbai, 28 May 2015 Chairman & Managing Director and CEO Executive Vice President & CFO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW

The Management Discussion and Analysis presented in this Annual Report focuses on reviewing the performance of the Company
for FY 2014-15, the financial statements of which have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules, guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. Our Management accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of
these financial statements, as well as for the various estimates and judgments used therein. The estimates and judgments relating to
the financial statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so that the financial statements reflect in a true and fair
manner the form and substance of transactions, and reasonably present our state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the year.

BUSINESS & FINANCIAL REVIEW

The overall performance of the Company for the year 2014-15 has been sub-optimal. The profitability of the Company was badly
impacted due to lower margins in consumer durables, abnormal increase in site expenses on account of cleaning up operation to
ensure that there was good progress towards closure of overrun sites in projects business and various other factors including
challenging business environment. During the year under reporting, the Company has closed 60 number of sites of Transmission
Line Towers and also completed financial closure of most of them. The Company has taken several measures to ensure better
management of working capital, monitoring of project performance on continuous basis and completion of projects as per schedule
to avoid costand time over run.

The gross turnover and other income achieved for the year ended 31 March 2015 was ¥ 4,309.42 crore, a growth of 5.63% over the
previous year.

[ PBDIT increased by 16.69% from ¥ 97.09 crore to ¥ 113.29 crore.

u Interest cost at ¥ 105.08 crore was higher by 34.20%, mainly on account of increase in borrowings levels.
[ NetLoss was at% 13.95 crore as against X 5.31 crore for the previous year.

n Earning Per Share (EPS) for the year was negative ¥ 1.39.

ENGINEERING & PROJECTS BUSINESS UNIT (E&P BU)

The performance of EPC segment for FY 2014-15 has been satisfactory, as it achieved a turnover of X 1,336 crore with a growth of
16.12% over the previous year and closed 60 old project sites by removing all bottlenecks and resolving other operational issues.

During the year, some of the major projects commissioned by EPC include :

. Architectural lighting of iconic Chatrapathi Shivaji Terminus railway station, Mumbai with colour changing LED lights;
. Landscape LED lighting of Buddha Smriti Park, Patna;

. Sports lighting at Haldia Stadium;

. Lighting of Kalinga Hockey Stadium, Bhubaneswar;

. lllumination of Chennai outer ring road;

. Power Distribution project of RAPDRP WBSETCL for feeder renovation work in 5 towns (Jangipur, Dhulian, Sainthia, Kandi &
Coochbehar);

. Power Distribution projects of Madhya Pradesh Purva Kshetra Vidyut Vitaran Company Ltd (MPPKVVCL) viz. Sidhi 2 and
Balaghat;

. Power Distribution project of Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution Company Ltd (CSPDCL), Bhilai;

. 765kV Kurnool-Thiruvelam transmission line project of Power Grid Corporation of India;

. 400 kV Savangi-Kultabad and 132 kV Padegaon-Savangi transmission line projects of Maharashtra State Electricity Board
During FY 2014-15, EPC business has secured orders worth % 3,335 crore, comprising of Transmission Line Tower (TLT) & Sub-
Station - X 728 crore, Power Distribution —% 2,474 crore and lllumination —% 133 crore. Some of the major orders received include :
. 72 meter flag mast (tallest mast of India);

. 63 meter flag mast supplied to Afghanistan;

. Floodlighting at Dehradun Cricket Stadium (first cricket stadium in Uttarakhand);

. Jammu —Udhampur tunnel lighting project;

. Kandla—Mundra road lllumination project;

. Hosur —Krishnagiri Road Illlumination Project

. Nagpur —Betul highway lighting project;
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. Reliance Jamnagar area lighting project by using 60M & 45M High mast and 2 Kw Flood Lights (largest order for construction
lighting);

. Township electrification at DVC — Kodarma;

. City beautification project for Tamil Nadu Tourism (decorative poles and LED streetlights with remote controls);

. Architectural lighting of Dakshineswar Temple, Kolkata;

. Architectural lighting of Siddeshwar Temple, Solapur;

. PGCIL: 765 kV D/C Jabalpur-Orai transmission line (TE-02 and TE-03) erection packages; PGCIL: 765 kV D/C Jharsuguda-
Dharamjaygarh Transmission Line (TWO05) package;

. MSETCL: 400 kV D/C Quad Transmission line from 400 kV Koradi || SS to 765 kV Koradi lll SS;

. BSPTCL: Construction of 3 Transmission lines of 220 and 132 kV near Musahari;

. RGGVY (Xll Plan) & BRGF and System Strengthening Projects by Bihar Power Distribution Company Limited;
. RGGVY (Xl Plan) projects by Madhya Pradesh Poorva Kshetra Vidyut Vitaran Company Limited;

. RGGVY (Xl Plan) projects by Power Grid Corporation of India Limited at Kushinagar district, UP.

During the year, the performance of Ranjangaon Unit was also satisfactory, as it supplied about 500 masts and 9,000 poles in the last
month of the financial year alone and over 50,000 poles in the whole year as against 42,500 poles in the previous year.

During the year, EPC division has received following awards/recognitions :

. Markenomy Award for “Excellence in Transmission Infrastructure Sector”;
. Certificate of recognition from The Economic Times for “Outstanding Contribution in Infrastructure Development”;

. Peoples’ Choice Award from Lighting Analyst for CST lighting design using the world leading AGI32 software for lighting
modelling;

. PGCIL Excellence award for outstanding performance in transmission line construction.
All SBU’s within EPC have strong teams with best of the industry talent. The focus of EPC teams for FY 2015-16 is to keep working

capital under control while achieving hire growth in topline. The outlook for the coming year is positive due to major improvement in
project execution capabilities and effective supply chain management.

CONSUMERDURABLES

Appliances division of the Company has a wide range of domestic & kitchen appliances including Irons, Mixers, Water Heaters,
Coolers, Induction cookers, Toasters, Kettles, OTGs, Microwaves, Rice Cookers, Gas stoves, Chimneys, Non-electrical kitchen
aids, Pressure Cookers, Stabilisers, Water Purifiers, etc, and is a dominant player in small appliances in India and enjoys leadership
positionin Mixers, Water heaters & Irons.

In order to bring in more focus on marketing, the division operates in two strategic business units : Kitchen Appliances (KAP) and
Domestic Appliances (DAP).

During the year, appliances has reported a total turnover of % 1,165 crore with a growth of 3% and CAGR of 5% to remain a dominant
playerin the small appliances industry. KAP accounted for sales of ¥ 579 crore and DAP accounted for sales of ¥ 586 crore.

Due to sluggish market conditions, growing competitiveness, dominance of newer channels like E-commerce, the market remained
price sensitive leading to pressure on margins. But the division has managed to maintain profitability and market share. New
products launched during the year also contributed immensely to the performance.

Appliances division has so far set up 104 exclusive showrooms “BAJAJ WORLD” across the country through franchise and has
plans toincrease the same to 150 in 2015-16, which would give better visibility to Company’s appliances, fans & lighting products.

Morphy Richards (MR) brand of UK in its 12th year of association with the Company has achieved sales turnover of ¥ 231 crore in FY
2014-15, with a growth of 12% and CAGR of 13%; and is poised to clock sales turnover of over X 260 crore in FY 2015-16.

MR is the fastest growing international brand in the Indian small domestic appliances market and is the No.1 brand in India in Electric
Kettles, Coffee Makers, Toasters and Oven Toaster Grillers.

During the year under reporting, MR introduced a new range of Water Heaters which has contributed significantly to its performance.

MR has managed to maintain profitability and its position in the premium segment of small domestic appliance market in spite of
sluggish market conditions and growing competitiveness.
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During FY 2015-16, MR has plans to revamp its product portfolio with new models in Mixer, Juicer Mixer Grinder, Juicer, Food
Processor, Dry Iron and Water Heater categories. MR is also planning to launch a new range of personal care products in men’s
grooming.

MR is expanding the network to reach to 15000 retail outlets and distribution coverage in the top 360 urban markets across the
country.

FANS BU

Fans BU has a modern assortment of ceiling, table, pedestal, wall, fresh air and industrial fans manufactured at plants in India and
abroad that have ISO 9001/9002 quality certifications. The BU is also involved in marketing self-priming, centrifugal & submersible
pumps.

During FY 2014-15, the BU has achieved a sales turnover of X 660 crore with a growth of 4% and CAGR of 4%, the highlight being
economy segment which recorded a robust growth of 21%. The key driver to the growth of economy segment was the successful
launch of “Speedster”.

In FY 2015-16, the Fans BU has planned to augment the premium portfolio by introducing products that are inspired by nature and
launch super-premium/under-light range of ceiling fans, keeping focus on to drive distribution of the current portfolio to reach more
and more consumers.

As per the most recent Market Pulse data, the Fans BU has not only retained its position (by volume) amongst the top 3 playersin the
industry but has also increased its market share. Tier 2 & Tier 3 cities have mainly contributed to Fan BU’s growth.

LUMINAIRES BU

Luminaires BU markets a comprehensive range of luminaires (light fittings) covering commercial lighting, industrial lighting, area
lighting, roadway lighting, urban architectural lighting besides special luminaires for flame proof and increased safety applications.
This BU is certified for ISO 9000 while most of the products are manufactured in plants conforming to ISO 9000:2000 and select
plants are certified for ISO 14001 which sets out the criteria for environmental management.

The luminaires are offered to suit a wide variety of light sources ranging from LED, CFL, FTL & HID lamps of various types and
ratings. The BU has a Lighting Engineering & Development Centre (LEaD) and Bajaj Lighting Solution & Services (BLiSS) to carry
out scientific illumination layouts for various applications and a well-equipped laboratory approved by the Department of Science &
Technology of Government of India. The BU is developing a new generation of energy saving luminaires with LEDs and induction
lamps. The BU is working seamlessly to develop energy efficient, environment friendly lighting system employing the latest
technology such as LED and Induction lamp and also contributing significantly to improve design practice by creating landmark
lighting installation. An order of % 80 crore for LED Luminaires by EESL to be supplied in FY 2015-16 will give a big boost to the LED
business.

During the year, the BU has achieved a turnover over ¥ 401 crore despite the industry in India went through a tough phase. It holds an
overall No.2 position in the Indian market with leadership in area and roadway lighting. The BU is striving to strengthen its presence in
workspace lighting segment to gain leadership status in Indoor lighting segment.

The lighting industry in 2014-15 adopted LED technology in a big way resulting in major shift in both indoor and outdoor segments.
However, as there are no major entry barrier currently in LED business, the industry experienced huge surge in new brands (small
players) and also import from East. For the Company, this was an opportunity and hence, time and energy was spentin development
of product portfolio in LED with distinct USPs.

The use of renewable lighting sources has become inevitable in the current environmental conditions. With power saving and energy
conservation being the key to achieve environmental balance, renewal energy sources like solar power in lighting applications has
emerged as the need of the hour. The BU has taken lead in the industry by launching solar street lighting range of luminaires. In
comparison of CFL based street light luminaires, solar LED based luminaires has potentially saved approx. 55% of energy
consumption. During the year, the BU has saved energy of about 10,62,264 KWh by marketing solar street light luminaires. The
saving in energy consumption has resulted in reduction of electricity cost by ¥ 74.25 lacs, reduction in emission of Carbon Di-oxide
by 732 metric ton (equivalentto removal of 2,21,804 small cars from the streets) and saving of 7,34,46,91,200 gallons of water from
being contaminated due to Mercury.

With regards to IBMS portfolio, the Luminaires division strategically focused on working in Data Centre projects and accordingly,
cumulatively more than 50 data centers projects have been executed in the country. The division works closely with large integrators
like Schneider, Dell, and Wipro.

The BU has executed large LED orders in infrastructure industry and modern workspace for Reliance Industries, Capgemini,
Accenture, Municipal Corporation of Gurgaon, Bangalore Municipal Corporation, Commissionerate Municipal Authority — Tamil
Nadu and DOP —Mysore.

The BU is fully equipped to provide end-to-end solutions in total energy management, lighting and controls of buildings and facilities.
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LIGHTING BU

The Lighting BU markets a wide range of conventional light sources, LED based Lighting products, domestic luminaires, HID lamps
& Torches and Lanterns. The light sources includes General Lighting Service (GLS) Lamps, Fluorescent Tube Lights (FTL),
Compact Fluorescent Lamps (CFL) and special purpose lamps. In line with the emerging trend from all segments of the distribution
set up, the BU made concentrated effort in developing LED based products by launching LED Bulbs, Panel Lights, Down Lighters,
portable lanterns and torches. A strong distribution network exists for marketing these products both in urban and rural areas and the
special focus is in rural penetration.

The manufacturing of GLS and FTL lamps is undertaken at Kosi and Hind Lamps, Shikohabad, whereas Starlite Lighting makes CFL
lamps & has recently commissioned an assembly line for manufacturing LED lamps.

The Lighting BU has achieved turnover of ¥ 511 crore but degrown by 12%. The negative growth is majorly attributed to the shift of
consumer preference to LED products compared to other light sources. The BU’s revenue for the year was majorly impacted by
dependancy on CFL lamps, which product category faced major declining trends, and consicous efforts to go slow on DGS&D
business.

The BU has now built a good product for FY 2015-16, with a strong focus on LED products. An opening order book of % 40 crore for
LED Bulbs from EESL also promises that the LED lighting business will be the front runner in the coming fiscal.

The BU has embarked on the RREP (Retail Reach Expansion Programme) to take its reach and range spread to a much higher level,
the benefits of which will accrue from 2015-16 onwards. The Lighting BU with its improved distribution network, wide product range
and efficient sourcing strategies is poised for a better than the industry growth in the coming years.

EXIMBU

It was yet another challenging year for EXIM BU to re-establish the Company’s positions/products in the overseas markets,
since these markets are very complex due to their different size, currency, specifications, customs regulations, government
certifications, etc.

Further, during the year, majority of our existing export markets were severely affected by currency fluctuations, war or warlike
situations and terrorism in many countries, which adversely impacted sales.

During FY 2014-15, the BU has achieved the turnover of ¥ 31.25 crore (5.21 Mn USD). However, changes initiated in the market
place and within the BU will start giving results from FY 2015-16.

Some of the Key Highlights of BU for FY 2014-15 are:

. Opening and operationalization of Dubai branch office;
. Receipt of prestigious order for supply of high masts for 3 FIFAunder 19 Football Stadiums from Dubai Municipality;
. Maintained No. 1 position in Sri Lanka and No.2 position in Ghana for Ceiling Fans.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a proper framework in place to identify, evaluate and mitigate business risks. The key business risks identified by
the Company and its mitigation plans are as under:

(a) Businessenvironment

The competitive environment in small appliances in 2014 remained similar to what it was over the last few years of the review
period. The demand for CFL was severely impacted because of increase in the life of CFL bulbs as compared to GLS bulbs and
introduction of LED bulbs. Also, the luminaires business experienced slow down till mid 2014 because of general elections in
India. The Company will need to extend its demographics and offer value proposition to the customers to develop and grow in
consumer facing business further.

(b) Currency fluctuation related Risk

The weakening of the Indian Rupee, though slightly, has impacted our cost of imports. The Company had undertaken some
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the risks against the currency fluctuations for the imports.

(c) Hiring and Retention Risk

The Company has been continuously working on retaining the best talent in the industry to work with but it is a constant
challenge to retain the good talent. There is imminent short term risk from new entrants and existing domestic players to hire
talent from our Company. The Company’s human resource agenda focuses mainly on building a robust and diverse talent
pipeline by hiring fresh management graduates to cater to various businesses and functions, enhancing individual and
organisational capabilities for future readiness, driving greater employee engagement and strengthening employee relations.
The Company has also taken a number of employee initiatives like benchmarking compensation structure with the industry,
stock options, innovative management training programmes, job rotations, etc. to retain and grow talent.
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(d) Occupational Health and Safety Risk

Safety of employees and workers is of utmost importance to the Company. To reinforce the safety culture in the Company, it has
identified Occupational Health & Safety as one of its focus areas. Various training programmes have been conducted at the
plants and project sites such as behavior based safety training program, safety leadership program, logistics safety program
etc.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMAND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. These are routinely
tested and certified by statutory as well as internal auditors and cover all offices, factories and key areas of business. The scope of
internal audit is decided by the Audit Committee. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to
the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of
internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

The Company continues to invest in IT, leveraging it as a source of competitive advantage. The enterprise wide ERP, CRM and
Business Intelligence systems are main pillars of IT, covers all core business processes in the Company and also provides a
comprehensive data warehouse with analytics capability that helps in better and speedier decision making. Web based layered
softwares like intranet for employees and extranet for suppliers, dealers and BCCD'’s are developed on top of the ERP and are being
used to collaborate with them. Supply chain optimisation using TOC philosophy and processes enabled by the IT capability, remains
a source of significant value for all the businesses.

As IT systems and related processes get embedded into the daily operations of the organisation, there is a continuous focus on IT
security and reliable disaster recovery management processes to ensure all critical systems are always available. These are
periodically reviewed, upgraded and tested for efficacy, adequacy, security and reliability.

Looking at the adoption of latest technologies like “Private Cloud” in the form of desktop virtualisations (VDI) and “Public Cloud” from
Microsoft (O365) for collaboration across all locations the Company has been awarded with the following awards by various media
agencies:

ClO Master -2013 from Biztech2 (VDI)

Information Mastermind Award -2014 (O365)

CIO-100 awards for Cloud - 2014 (O365)

Digital Transformation Champion Award -2014 from Capgemini & CIO Crown (O365)

CIO Power List 2015, Engineering Icon from Centre of Recognition and Excellence (O365)

U

InfoSec Maestros Award 2015 for best security practices followed.
CUSTOMER DEVELOPMENT

During the year, your Company ensured that it continues to build on its reputation of a distribution and a strong distribution network of
more than 1000 distributors and 5000 direct dealers. Your Company has undertaken some important initiatives during the year to
become more customer centric and win in the market place. These initiatives include improvement in the functioning of the dedicated
call centre established for dealers, distributors and customers to reach out to the Company. The calls received from customers
provide useful insights and help the Company understand issues and opportunities in the market place better and address them
effectively. Also, the Company has expanded its customer care franchise network from 315 to 376 in order to cover even the smaller
markets in faster period. This has helped us to achieve higher resolution of calls. The customer satisfaction measured through web
based SMS responses was very satisfactory as itimproved to over 98% levels.

Your Company has also launched a market place programme, under which Company cross functional employees also spend time
with the customers to understand their needs better. These initiatives have helped in keeping the consumers and customers at the
heart of your Company’s business model.

Your Company further strengthened the Bajaj World and TOC programmes to drive availability and visibility of its products at the
market place. These programmes will help to deliver higher growth and share for the business.

Modern Format Retail, which is the growth channel for the future, continues to be a focus area for your Company.
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ECONOMIC SCENARIO, FUTURE OUTLOOKAND SECTOR OVERVIEW

The year 2014-15 was marked by modest growth and decline in inflation, and the external position was comfortable, helped by
positive policies and lower global oil prices. The outlook for India is for economic strengthening through higher infrastructure
spending, increased fiscal devolution to states, and continued reform to financial and monetary policy. The government underscored
its intention to move steadily to tackle politically difficult structural issues that have stalled investment and limited economic
performance in recentyears.

According to the IMF forecast, the Indian Economy would grow by 7.5% percentin 2015-16, up from 7.3% in 2014-15.

India's macro-economic prospects have strengthened and the country is best positioned among emerging market economies. The
improvement in India’s economic fundamentals has accelerated in the year 2014-15 with the combined impact of a strong
Government mandate, RBI's inflation focus supported by benign global commodity prices.

CONSUMERDURABLE SECTOR

Until mid-2014 the economic situation did not favour consumer appliances. However, after the national elections in May 2014 and
subsequent boost to sentiments among companies and consumers alike, this industry has started showing signs of revival. Lower
inflation and fuel prices provide an opportunity for consumers to make their deferred purchases.

Further, the new government in the budget proposal emphasised domestic manufacturing. The Hon’ble Prime Minister of India
initiated a new campaign “Make-in-India” and visited several countries to invite leading companies to set up their manufacturing
bases in the country. The government not only proposed direct benefits to manufacturing companies but also laid out plans to
improve the country’s infrastructure, such as roadways, between manufacturing hubs in order to facilitate the logistics.

Internet retailing creates a new sales channel for appliances

Although electronics and appliance specialist retailers continued to account for major sales of consumer appliances in 2014, internet
retailing created a buzz when major online stores, such as Amazon India and Flipkart, ran a campaign with huge discounts during the
festive season. Consumers, who had been averse to buying appliances over the internet because they preferred to touch and feel
the products, responded well to the campaign due to the discounts for limited time periods. Even other internet retailers, such as
Snapdeal, Homeshop18 and Shopclues, offered discounts throughout the year to attract consumers. In response to such trends,
leading consumer appliance companies and even giant electronics and appliance specialist retailers opened online stores to target
online shoppers. The Company is already in the process of increasing its exclusive showrooms “BAJAJ WORLD” across the country
through franchise to give better visibility to its appliances, fans & lighting products.

Bright future expected for consumer appliances

The major drivers of the household appliances industry are increase in per capita income, consumer spending, housing activities
and increasing urbanization. With improvement in the economy, more disposable income at hand and promotions from retailers and
companies, the consumer appliances industry is expected to witness growth in both value and volume terms. Sales via internet
retailing and appliance specialist retailers will help the overall consumer appliances market to grow.

OUTLOOK ON LIGHTING INDUSTRY

The lighting industry is going through a ‘paradigm Shift’, a revolution, as energy efficiency becomes increasingly important for
controlling costs, improve energy independence and reducing environmental impacts. The shift is in favour of LED based lighting as
against conventional bulbs and tubes and CFL lamps, which has all the above advantages besides longer product life cycle.

Supported by ongoing government initiatives to promote LED lighting as well as changing consumer preferences, the LED market is
expected to grow to ¥ 21,000 crore by 2020 at41% CAGR from % 1,925 crore in 2013, making the LED market about 60% of the total
lighting industry in 2020.

The government has decided to change all street lights and lights in public spaces to LED lights, and initiated making all LED
specifications mandatory; notifications to commercial buildings to change existing downlights exclusively to LED are in progress. All
existing government schemes to distribute CFL are being modified with LED lamp distribution. This besides changing customer
preferences for LED lighting will provide tremendous growth impetus to the lighting industry.

POWERSECTOR

India has emerged as one of the fastest growing economies in the world. Its current economic performance reflects a healthy trend
based on increased consumption, investment and exports and the same is expected to continue over the next five years. Akey risk to
the continued growth of the Indian economy is inadequate infrastructure. Infrastructure investment in India is on the rise, but growth
may be constrained without further improvements. The Government of India has identified the power sector as a key sector of focus
to promote sustained industrial growth.

The Indian power sector is one of the most diversified in the world. Sources for power generation range from conventional ones such
as coal, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuclear power to other viable non-conventional sources such as wind, solar, and
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agriculture and domestic waste. The demand for electricity in the country has been growing at a rapid rate and is expected to grow
further in the years to come. In order to meet the increasing requirement of electricity, massive addition to the installed generating
capacity in the country is required.

The Indian power sector is undergoing a significant change that is redefining the industry outlook. Sustained economic growth
continues to drive power demand in India. The Government of India’s focus to attain ‘Power For All' has accelerated capacity addition
in the country. At the same time, the competitive intensity is increasing on both market side as well as supply side (fuel, logistics,
finances and manpower).

The government is eyeing X 3,00,000 crore worth investment in power transmission and distribution business, as it gears up to free
the sector from a gridlock of fuel scarcity, regulatory clogs and other issues.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Bajaj Group and your Company continued to undertake CSR initiatives with special focus on education, rural development,
environment protection and social upliftment of downtrodden people.

The Company’s CSR activities are guided by 4 pillars — sustainability, diversity (gender inclusion), employee volunteering and
community outreach. The Company tries to ensure that the communities around the area it operates should also benefit, hence the
programs are planned and executed accordingly. Our priorities for the community outreach programmes are :

. Ensuring environmental sustainability & promoting its education
. Employment, enhancing vocational skills and livelihoods

. Promoting preventing health care

During the year, the Company has undertaken several CSR activities viz. tree plantation, blood donation, cleanliness drives, health
check-up camps and tobacco awareness sessions across India through employee volunteering. Through dedicated efforts the
Company has planted over 8000 trees across India.

The Company partnered with environmental organizations to educate masses on environment protection. The Company is
continuously working towards the cause of environmental sustainability through taking steps to make all workplaces environment
friendly and also by training its employees in different aspects of sustainability.

The Company has launched project Disha to implement vocational skill development training programs for unemployed youth.
Special skill sets such as repair technicians, masonry and electrical works have been identified.

The Company has also partnered with an NGO to spread awareness about healthy and tobacco free living and has created a pool of
anti-tobacco crusaders to create awareness among different stakeholders. On “World No Tobacco Day”, the Company in
collaboration with health organizations conducted awareness sessions on mass scale for employees, suppliers, Mumbai police and
Dabbawalas to highlight the ill effects of tobacco consumption.

The Company associated with “Pinkathon Run” organized in Mumbai to support the cause of raising awareness for breast cancer
and well-being of women, Mumbai and Delhi Marathons to propagate the cause of environment protection, which received
enthusiastic participation from the employees. The Company and its employees also contributed towards Jammu & Kashmir relief.

Further, many of the initiatives mentioned in the previous annual reports such as IMC Ladies Wing — Jankidevi Bajaj Puraskar, BMA
Management Woman Achiever of the Year Award and Paryavaran Mitra — Friends of Environment continue to receive the
wholehearted support of the Company. The employees and other channel partners of the Company continue to work with
Paryavaran Mitra in their personal capacity and participate in its various initiatives undertaken in the direction of protecting the
environment; increase in green cover; spreading awareness, education and imparting training for conservation of scarce resources;
control of pollution; promoting use of organic fertilizers in cultivation of crops; etc.,

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or
forecasts may be forward-looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ
materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include demand
and supply conditions affecting selling prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, changes in government regulations, tax
laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shekhar Bajaj
Mumbai, 28 May 2015 Chairman & Managing Director
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U HIIATS 1 AR A & A1 6 FhR 0T 1 ASTe[d HLd o Fecd ol i Tl ST a9 34 98 STgad| HEarsdl i aeagand sie
1 I TieT |t o1 Tega o ST 2.

e STEN et (SATEeR)

FHUHT T ML H 191 T SIRY T § TR gheRt oy 9 ioeaert § Sl T o A1 o ®9 § I3HT =Ted! 2. [ 3eW § S, HieTey qen
SET FfAST4 Tt St foh 3TTEET o e M9 8, o1 § Hfl T ATk Tishatati hl Tfard shid & qe forvetyor 31 g7l o a1 T
ST ST TET3E o} TG T & 511 Toh Ifieran & qe Sgar adieh & foia oF § 7eg il 2. Ja SATenid <ig< drteda, S foh =i o fog
32 IR Aol Ue Eherd % forw v e, e e, $emmdt & o forshfira fore stma € derm 37ek e firetet 6l o6 6 forg s fepa
2. AN amar g e for Hafeft awi qe Tsfr o TEnT s aTeft TS =1 STgsherdr gt raET % fore Heeaqut Su=fiar o v wia
STEE Firrera qom weifird Ufshaati ohl SATHTESIvH o ek SeTerl & SieT 7/ ], 3afore S1reet et o7k favaai stmuet frradt yeier wfsramati
TSR €41 hivsd T ST & a1fer a+ft mearul {1 3uctss &1 gHeT Gi-fod 81 ek, hrigererdl, Tared, e 31 forvaeHieedT &
foru srmafies wa @ Tften, oTule w3 A-TedTd 1 Sl 2.

Shot g Y STafeufoR § Bt TR e Tefid i o foTe Tei-as qerienl S8 Swheid agsTaTssierd (FEiens) & d ‘Ugde Famse qun
ATEHETR (038Y) ¥ “dfocten Fel3e’ o TR Sl S@d §U U1 ol Tt Hifean wsiftai gr Ffafad e wem forg e &:

forstesh2 (ieTs) & Hiamsat ATee - 2023

TIHTHYH HECTHTEE TS - 202% (036Y4)

FATIE - 0¥ (O38Y) F T HiAEAT- L 0 0 FHaTSH

Y I T HieTEeT s (0384) H fefvea gramiiy™ SR sraré-202y

T AT TEHIIRH TS THled (038Y ) H HISTSS! Tiar o 2084, SR SATEeh1T

T Y& TR 1 T i oh [T S-hTEeh HEId 3TaTS 094,

ek faema

TN o S, AT AT + IEehT TSR FABT 1 & | TWId Y o000 H e ferdiegedt 31 Yooo U SRRAT ST  H1Y Teh WSlad
feteaqe™ eash areft sl s i1 giHfraa fora 2. 56ek STeman sl 4 oY o TR 37 STaT UTEe hi-3d -1 sheal a9l Hishe | STUHT 4Teh
S % 10 F9 Tewqul hew 33T¢ E. 37 Tecrshil hedl §, -t & Treh vg o, feedieged ot umehi o fore wenfia fore o 2feshie wiat
T2 o HTHBTS 1 ST AL ST IS 2. UTeehi B e arel shicd ST STl STetstl shild & qei st o farfi= aenati =1 aagm,
3T a1 T TS HTehe | HISE ST o1 A9 33 1 HEE hId ©. 36k STATIT U] = 70 FEHL o HaTgdl Heaeh ol 394 U TETeht 308
T TGN 2, TR BIE HIohed b i STed Tl H g1 11 Heoh. 9o Tholea& g4 SoTaT hicH JHTEM T §U 2. e ST Taunud vfeens &
ST AT T TR TfSe T Ih! HATTSIE o, S GEER /¢ % T AT T UgE TR,

STIahY ST 3 Teh SITSTR hfrsd shrishd ot 31 foart B, foraeh siarta st ok farfir= &t & 92 el ekl @ firetent Sl S i sigat adich
T TH T HITTE B &, 3 TG haHT 3 STIh! U1 o ToIST8 Hiee & hex H IUHTFATSTT 371 TMEhi hl Ta- | Hag I 2.

ST ST = TS T a1 ST FHTAHHT bl SR ST T e 2 qTfeh TSR H 37k IcdTal 3hl SUSTSHdT 3 el ol T el Teh. J A
forstra =t 317 srgT qen wrehe fed W iy o | wag .

ST Ot 3 e o Hied BiHe T AR ST € hivsd @ v, T wioss & forg afs =1 arem o siran 2.

ATife afvged, wioed o foTu gTeehion qor deet Wt e o

T 30934 AT Ifg R gEhifa § fitmae & fou SecreHta @1, aen s feafa gae o, i ashmress aifefé= qon fFrea afves aa
ST R FAIA off. A o foTu feRivn # $hTegereR W I @, Al 1 FE! T3 USohIN T Saiaior, o 31T vd a1 Afifa o FRat gam =
HIEW § ST FSTet S . TSHIfoh ®9 § i TLa-TeHe Gei fSiai $© aui § w1 i ekt & a1 371l waefa o «ifia form 2, &
fraet o foTu T 3 feeRaTyeieh el sIgH o 3194 T T o faa,

ML X W e
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STETHTE GATIHM o STTEN, Forefia o 2094 -2& § IR Tefeqawen § 0.4 % i Ira arft, S foh I 09¥-24 % 6.3% ¥ A+ 2.

T hl THTE - AT GHTEATE HSTe[d &1 T8 & qT 3T Hehe ATAaeenati § 391 Haiad & & STafed 8. a9 202% -4 § TR % Hed
TTERTC, 3Tehe Afvareh g hIvd g TR STREASTTE T YTehifl T2 €T hf=5d s o TYh TWTE o T1e 9Id oh ST STTER § GUR Ot
BT L.

HIIIR TREAA TFeX

1Tl afefearta 3 o R0 % o Hed qoh o ut ST hl TR A1 fean. BTaifer, s, R0 %% H UL AT 3R H=1 a2 hognd a1 o &
T T o FATTE o ST 38 e TAs(aH o o8 a1 & L {3 2. FeTar GEreshifer qen $om o1 himd shoemd ohi SATeRa @deriat
T T T JGH Fd &,

T TR, 78 TR A sete weard | we] fafmfor ot e foan. v & strerefia gem w5t = ueh 7o stfvmm ve-ga-sfean’” i yeeta i ik
T S bl 291 H IcdTeeh ST 1 LA1fud shid o foru fmsor 23 & 3299 @ o2 2901 o1 A1 fohart. Teni 3 7 hadl 3cqTeeh Shaf-al ol Tedel
T w1 T e afcen Scarash el o St ST ok SR S ToR Treast i SRt St AeTd oft et i fred affwfeesa i g
ST ST Heh.

geetie Fefort 3 SueRtutt o foru wen o farsht et s

Tl ad 209y H goide Had quT U forsivg Feerd, oo SUeRTuTl ol TerT forshl o1 i s34 18, gretie fefer 3 gorardt e ot & 51 W
TS T, S Toh STae 3fean iR faussre 3 wieri o Hiem | foemet g2l afed U 1 S, 3 SUswT, ST qe qoh §etie o H1eay
T ULV @S o Toreg, o TR of IeaTa ohi AT AT ST ShtAT THE Ld o, I HITHA ST oh foTQ T o T AT o Wit 31=t whfsran
TS, T qoh foh 377 grewe fead, S8 foh TAueiar, BIWeITg £ ¢ QT SIaeeld o UTaeh! bl SATHINT hid o 70 9 9 g Y hl. 39 &1 hl
fcrfsra & TemT Shea ST Hufat 3 F8T aeh o 9gd oS Soiaei e ot 3T e feerd 3 sifaesd Edieni S asd I % fag
SAATEA TEId Wil 37T IYHLON, T} TAT AT IeqTET hl Sl YT 34 o FoT hofl veet & & 1 vaderfid e ‘it aoe ol
Saresil g 99 W H @ hl Ufshar | 2.

HGHR IUHUTT o Toru s=raret wisrsa srafera

T ST T o T <ATershi H i STk 377, IUNIH G, ST iR 7 gfe au aedr g1 Tetiewv 2. sAeferawe § gur, Iuasy
rfereh WIS 31 i feerd qen shuferell gRT T 3 T shoeme SUshIoT SET | Hool det giam St w4t # gfg 3 femm i emen 3. 32t
frefor o Suerror foreis feeerd o Aream § forsht 9ol oot ST STSTR 1 S § FeTardl .

g s W g

Argfe e ue Wi foreeme’, weh shifd, & e TET R, i orTd et s, St ot TardsrdT § G o qeiT Jaietol i YHTEl o 9 %
fou it gerdT TR Hecaqut 2t ST & 2. 78 e TR sosd q9 2o quT HIUHT e & fotsg Tesel e Asfen & qa i 2,
o stferens wvel Icama Sftam =ik o <forfed Tt 3w o HiE €.

TASE! ATSET ! TeBTe <4 o ToTU Teh o ST SUshAT 9T |1 B, SUNIBISA! shl Seeid] Uae ST THYH UTH hich TASe! ST o a9 2083 1
%, 9,R% HUS T Y 00 Toh HTSAHAR F %2 % TE. 32,000 FHUS qeh T sh1 YT 2, ST Y 2030 H TASE! SITSTH i Thel AT I
&0 9% ST <.

T 3 Gt T ATSE T ATk T T AT5e8 ol TASS! <AT8ed # e 1 e fora 2, qen aeft werde fafauton =t stfvamd &0 6
YEATA il B; et ST ST ol TAHH ST3ATSEH hi hadl TeTse! H Saai- 3h! STTUEEHTE 31 ST 2. Huwhue forawr s areft aft adam
TR TSI Rl Tesel w9 forawor & wuraiid foram ST @1 2. 98 qon Uasel arefen o uet § UTeeh! <l seetd! 96e S fieteht argfem e =
gig o foTe STerdeq Wieame Jem .

TieR Al

T forea © Hartfereh asf & ae- aTel! STefeeeeati § § Teh aehl 39T 3111 8. SHeR adA AT Tav a1 g5 @ud, e aen frafa w sefa
Tk T T ol Tafelferd sHiar & qeim ST uie aut # UE € SR T srufird 2. Wit stefeasen S fiat gfs o1 v @ Siifew smatg
THTCFR 2. A § S-hTegarr a1 91gTs o v W 2 wifer <aftfts gami & formn ore g feg 21 donclt 2. i T 3 uier Teet i ve=
HERTCl ST Ihg o TIeETe &g S hi-d i 179 Teh Y@ Haed & &9 H 3l 2.

AT dTeR Heret forva # waifess fafawar I aiat deed | 8 Ue 2. UTek 3cdTeH o id TRaies Jidl 9 T e, fommse, smepfae 719, d,
BTSS! AT THTY] Ik & TIohE 31 SHaRTd TR -TRATGE Qi st ok a1, TR, T FY U9 B SIS qeh 91C ST <. 321 H forsfeft i /i asf S &
STt ST Tt & T STt T # ST TRk wgH i atiet 7. forsteft ot et 58 Wit bl g e o fore e H vt @ € wefd Searen e # o
STIgfE 3 STTavaeRd 2.
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TR TR eFet Toh HEeaqul sTgetTal & Tsi TaT 2, it Sfrenfiren gfoshior sht g afanfid s w1 3. ord # diefehrelia anfdfes gfg it it wim st sm
TG ST TET 2. WA TLRR 1 S T B 3Tl ST 3t T h{-3d T oh 10T 431 H &1 hl TG | Isft 371 7S 7. T1e1 &Y, TSR q e aems
(32, eAifsifees, foma qen smwife) <91 vett & wfcraerices Yeretdn o1¢ & 2.

TR TTa ZTETHE AT foreot o8 5 %, 3 Rg U ool o a1 T TR W §U &, Hifeh I8 HaFed hl 367 i hufl, sk forei aem s g
T Ih L o fol AR R,

HIGIE HTATITR IR

TSI Y I TIHT FHHHT hTdRE AT ITaTred (HTHIR) o Wit T8at o1 S’ W g0 2, e sierta e, mefior forshmer, wRfaror gean
TR et AT o ATiSTeh Scor W foriy e feam mn 2.

T i Hiemem fafafiat ¥ wedt g aTiafiia € - daedtaar, ffaura (R afea), wdem atateatin o agem a i wda. s s ffwa
T T TATE LT 2 Toh Fore &1 o org Tl Rl & 3ok ST o Ter oft e €, safore seishHi sht ASTT ST STt @ q degaR, 3
SHEfd foRaT ST 8. THaT qeh s T8 o fore gan adtgard Fefafe 2

o giawe Gt Gerg-ferar st Ffzera s qen sueht et st iearea o

o SR, SATSETII hixTel a1 STSAifarehte i gy e

o GUEATH TR @IS ol T &A1

T o S HUHT T I O H FHERT ATACA R % ST HemeTr tiafafat S o gerrion, whem, Tesdr i, S S -vsdare R
AT TETE o I § STTEehdT T 9T 2. THTUd SATE] o g o1 3 9 T Cooo § HfUsh J& AT 2.

ST = wRITeroT skt GRadT o forvr ® S st frfard o ok for vaterer geieft wmeHt o wry wrfierd . st 3t hew et qen geeHEdT
fafim weqqetl o e i TRTiara shteh ot TTareT Hag- e o ST1HaT i it Fiax el st T 2.

SUSHTR FAT3TT o feTT Taraiies hivrel forehrd 2 ITe11 Srlshul sl ] i o foTe st = Tieide fawrmsht JeeTd <1 2. fory shieret Teg S
Top et Zafifaraa, et qen fergela st <t oft we=m 1 T8 2.

TR QYT TFTe -k S oh ST H STTREehd] il oh foTC shuHT = Ueh TSI % @t off wrfiardt <t 2 qen fafie feaumert & sfre Srreehar S
T o TG T~} THTS GURR! 1 Uk = AT R 2. Fe€ 1 Joehl @ TR o1 = T iTaH1 o |1 st U 91gd o 9HH T
AT, TR, oIS GfeTd a2 SaaTaret| o oTg THITeg o Ha o GSHLUTTHT TR JehTRT STe o {7l STkl € e,

T R qT HieeTat o Tareed & fowR § STl et aTel SR o gl 3 o fore gard & sifSra “fushem @ et qen vaferor 3 gran
o T 1 T & o fog garg qen foeeft Fuem o wot 3 wewm fomn, [ e S/ Scmeqel HeeiidT ST §8. ol aem 36
FHHETIET A S vd YR Tt & fore off 1o e foa.

T AT, Id 1o faied § Iocifad s Tacll S foh STETHE ALt T — ekl sost EhR,, sfiumu Asmie gu- T=iar 31 § 29X
FTATE AT FATa0T o731 i ¥t St ot G0 T a1 ST 2. 3o o ShH=R) a9 3171 =Fe HTTaR ST ST &7 o STTHT TRiareT st
o 7 TR hred Rt T2 & T TRtaro ol GRierd T ohl o o ot <11t forfvr veei ® 9 oid €5 31 el H i STTehal el gl SETeHt
o HIET & SIPTEehal ST, e <, wieqr <, wquor R, woet 3 H e Wrel & Sw i Sere o 3.

ATILTH THe

SIS Al TaTe & qorm weier ==t ud forwetyor § shuHt o 389, SATehRiaTaTl STera qaTHT sh! SATEA i aTct ahed, R geedt frrermi qen fafemi
AT % SFqTd WIS fSh B Tehd 2. TRtk Adiet 3 Hifereh &9 & el firet 2 Tend 7, S koA H 53k oy MU E . ot o ST sht
TTIe S kel aTcl ShIRhT H T AT o Toisht Joat ol TTferd st aTeft /it qerm STt feurfoa, $ge Sucteadr iR ford, oxenrdt fafremt &
GAT, TSR HI, 391 H AT forehmar qerm 1= shmen w9 fo faferiem aon sfenfies wey wfie 2.

o T AT ST Hed

G SIS
HaE, ¢S, R02%Y AT F BT SRR
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Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Bajaj Electricals Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bajaj Electricals Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.  Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4.  We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other
applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Actin the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, and its loss and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
9. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and

records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

86



10. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the
Actread with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section

164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2015 on its financial position in its
financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2015, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts ;

iii. Theinstances of delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
by the Company, during the year ended March 31,2015

Interest on matured public deposits (Under Section 205C of the Companies Act 1956)

Folio Number of

Amount Due

Proposed Date of

Payment date

Delay in Payment

Securities (in%) transfer to IEPF
1011824 200 14-Oct-2014 17-Oct-2014 3
1011846 308 16-Oct-2014 17-Oct-2014 1
1011847 308 16-Oct-2014 17-Oct-2014 1
3004672 39 4-Nov-2014 07-Nov-2014 3

Mumbai, 28 May 2015
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ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Bajaj Electricals Limited on the
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015.

i (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed
assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the
items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

ii. (a) The inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In
respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the Management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. Discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory by Management, as compared to book records, have
been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

ii. The Company has granted secured/ unsecured loans, to 2 companies covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act.

(a) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in
payment of interest as applicable.

(b) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, there is no overdue amount more than Rupees One Lakh.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and
for the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent notified,
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other
Tribunal on the Company in respect of the aforesaid deposits.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of products where, pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records has been specified under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion,
the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of sales tax, duty of customs, value
added tax, professional tax, service tax, works contract tax, tax deducted at source, provident fund, family pension,
employees state insurance scheme, though there have been a slight delays in few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including income tax, wealth tax, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the particulars

of dues of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax or cess as
atMarch 31, 2015 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Mumbai, 28 May 2015

Name of Nature of dues Amount Period to which Forum where the
the statute (X in Lacs) the amount relates dispute is pending
Income Tax Intimation U/S 200A 23.16 Assessment Year 2011-12 Commissioner Appeals
Question of Law 170.48 Assessment Year 1985-86 High Court
Sales Tax Additional demand 499.30 For Jaipur, Chakan Factory, Delhi, Dy. Commissioner /
received on basis of Lucknow, Raipur, Indore, Nagpur, Commissioner /
assessment order Matchwell, Cochin, Bangalore, Jt. Commissioner Appeals
Kolkata, Bhubaneswar, Patna for
various assessment years ranging
from 1988-2015
Additional demand
received on basis of 6.23 For Kolkata AY 2003-04 Appellate Tribunal
assessment order
Additional demand For Delhi, Lucknow, Raipur,
received on basis of Hyderabad, Bangalore, Kolkata,
assessment order 410.79 Bhubaneswar for various assessment | Tribunal
years ranging from 1985 to 2010
Additional demand For Chennai, Bangalore, Bhubaneswar
received on basis of 204.10 for various assessment years ranging | High Court
assessment order from 2001 to 2009
Service Tax | Additional demand For Jaipur, Chakan Factory for Dy. Commissioner /
received on basis of 133.18 various assessment years ranging Commissioner /
assessment order from 2005 to 2009 Jt. Commissioner Appeals
Excise Issues relating to Export 1.53 FY 2006-2007 Commissioner Appeals
Decision issued in favour
of Collector of Central 6.52 FYs 1992-93 and 1997-98 Tribunal
Excise, Pune

(c) Theamountrequired to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund has been transferred within the stipulated
time in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules made thereunder except for an amount of
¥ 855 which has not yet been transferred by the Company within the stipulated time.

The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred any cash losses in the
financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or debentureholders as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the guarantees given
by the Company for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year are not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes
for which they were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the Management.

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration Number : 102021W
Chartered Accountants

Russell | Parera
Partner
Membership Number : 42190
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Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Note No. As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 2,015.25 1,999.38
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 66,683.16 68,909.36
68,698.41 70,908.74
Share Application Money Pending Allotment - 50.07
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4 17,091.36 13,060.58
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities 6 1,113.33 33.19
(c) Long Term Provisions 7 4,393.75 2,754.33
22,598.44 15,848.10
Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 8 21,596.52 21,373.78
(b) Trade Payables 9 117,471.95 119,968.99
(c) Other Current Liabilities 10 45,059.90 33,859.18
(d) Short Term Provisions 7 7,545.66 6,493.32
191,674.03 181,695.27
TOTAL 282,970.88 268,502.18
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets 1 27,765.70 24,920.34
(ii) Intangible Assets 11 0.51 -
(iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 317.78 255.98
(b) Non-Current Investments 12 5,608.86 6,731.10
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 4,888.41 2,533.28
(d) Long Term Loans and Advances 13 8,224.26 8,449.00
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 14 38,924.46 38,293.54
85,729.98 81,183.24
Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 12 333.33 0.47
(b) Inventories 15 47,464.79 44,670.33
(c) Trade Receivables 17 128,955.54 123,505.13
(d) Cash and Bank Balances 16 3,766.09 5,430.73
(e) Short Term Loans and Advances 13 11,483.77 11,754.68
(f) Other Current Assets 14 5,237.38 1,957.60
197,240.90 187,318.94
TOTAL 282,970.88 268,502.18
Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report attached of even date
For Dalal & Shah For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 102021W
Chartered Accountants Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director
Anant Bajaj
Jt. Managing Director
Russell | Parera Mangesh Patil Anant Purandare V.B.Haribhakti
Partner V.P. - Legal & Company Secretary EVP & Chief Financial Officer Chairman - Audit Committee

Membership No.42190
Mumbai, 28 May 2015
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Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2015

Particulars

Revenue from Operations
Sales
Less : Excise Duty

Net Sales

Other Operating Revenue
Revenue from Operations (Net)

Other Income
Total Revenue

Expenses:
Cost of Materials and Components Consumed
Purchases of Traded Goods

(Increase)/decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress and Traded Goods

Erection & Subcontracting Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Less : Transferred from Revaluation Reserve
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional ltems and Tax
Exceptional items
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax
Tax expense :
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Taxes of Earlier Years
Total Tax Expenses

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Note No.

18

19

20
20

20
20
21
22

23

Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value per share ¥ 2) (See Note 24)

Basic

Diluted
Summary of significant accounting policies
followed by the Company

As per our report attached of even date

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration No. 102021W
Chartered Accountants

Russell | Parera
Partner

Membership No.42190
Mumbai, 28 May 2015

Mangesh Patil

V.P. - Legal & Company Secretary
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426,450.02

2,701.76

2,923.59

(21.04)

Anant Purandare
EVP & Chief Financial Officer

31 March 2015

(% in Lacs)
Year ended
31 March 2014

Year ended

404,698.56
_ 348817
423,748.26 401,210.39
2,062.68 1,772.57
425,810.94 402,982.96
2,429.28 1,514.38
428,240.22 404,497.34
22,523.04 23,472.30
288,872.44 277,827.69
(3,172.50) (5,386.19)
22,249.45 24,141.84
22,628.55 18,602.38
10,508.32 7,829.62
2,500.90
2,902.55 (26.26) 2,474.64
63,81009 — 56,131.34
430,321.94 405,093.62
(2,081.72) (596.28)
(2,081.72) (596.28)
1,450.00 1,675.00
(2,204.78) (1,740.42)
68.09 -
(686.69) (65.42)
(1,395.03) (530.86)
(1.39) (0.53)
(1.39) (0.53)

For and on behalf of the Board

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director

Anant Bajaj
Jt. Managing Director

V.B.Haribhakti
Chairman - Audit Committee



Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit/(Loss) before Taxes (2,081.72) (596.28)
Adjustments for :
Add : Amounts written off 270.87 705.69
Add : (Profit) / Loss on sale of assets (34.69) 12.42
Add : Foreign Exchange Loss / (Gain) 519.94 545.70
Add : Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances 4,552.80 4,879.63
Add : (Profit) / Loss on Sale of Investments (17.98) 5,290.94 - 6,143.44
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax provisions 3,209.22 5,547.16
Adjustments for :
Depreciation (See Foot Note 1) 2,902.55 2,474.64
Finance costs 9,988.38 12,890.93 7,283.93 9,758.57
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 16,100.15 15,305.73
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables (12,699.31) (47,215.48)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (2,794.46) (2,546.42)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 11,293.09 (4,200.68) 36,797.68 (12,964.22)
Cash Generated from Operations 11,899.47 2,341.51
Direct Taxes paid (3,082.13) (3,018.45)
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A) m m
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (See Foot Note 2) (6,736.75) (4,765.74)
Sale of Fixed Assets 496.44 44.45
Advances of Capital nature (See Foot Note 2) 408.96 (282.49)
Purchase of Investments - (3,756.02)
Sale of Investments 807.35 -
Loan (given) / repaid 166.67 1,166.67
Increase / (Decrease) in Bank Deposits (49.25) (4,906.58) (43.09) (7,636.22)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) w m
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Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from Share allotment under employee
stock option schemes 1,272.17 356.35
Share Application Money - 50.07
Finance Cost Paid (8,875.86) (7,267.63)
Proceeds from Debentures Issue - 10,000.00
Proceeds from borrowings 15,084.78 12,733.08
Repayment of borrowings (10,831.25) (4,297.26)
Foreign Exchange (Loss) / Gain (519.94) (545.70)
Dividends paid (1,499.71) (1,997.71)
Tax on dividend (254.84) (5,624.65) (339.07) 8,692.13
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) (5,624.65) 8,692.13
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents(A+B+C) (1,713.89) 378.97
Cash and Cash equivalents as at 1.4.2014 5,204.19 4,825.22
Cash and Cash equivalents as at 31.3.2015 (See Note 16) 3,490.30 5,204.19
Foot Notes :

1) Anamount of¥21.04 Lacs (Previous Year 26.26 Lacs) has been transferred from Revaluation Reserve to Profit and Loss Account
in respect of Depreciation of Revalued Assets.

2) Additions to fixed assets include movements of Capital work-in-progress.

As per our report attached of even date

For Dalal & Shah For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 102021W
Chartered Accountants Shekhar Bajaj

Chairman & Managing Director

Anant Bajaj
Jt. Managing Director

Russell | Parera Mangesh Patil Anant Purandare V.B.Haribhakti

Partner V.P. - Legal & Company Secretary = EVP & Chief Financial Officer Chairman - Audit Committee
Membership No.42190

Mumbai, 28 May 2015
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

1:

Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for certain tangible assets which are being carried at revalued amounts.
Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the standards
of accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the
National Financial Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall
continue to apply. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the
accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other

criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the

acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its

operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

System of Accounting :

i)  The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes income and expenditure on an accrual basis
exceptin case of significant uncertainties.

i)  Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. These costs are not adjusted to reflect the impact
of the changing value in purchasing power of money.

iil) Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements, which may
differ from the actual results at a subsequent date.

Revenue Recognition:
Income:
The Company recognizes income on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate collection of the same lacks reasonable
certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent of uncertainty.
(1) Sales:
(a) Domesticsales are recognised when significant risks and rewards are transferred to the buyer as per the contractual
terms or on dispatch where such dispatch coincides with transfer of significant risks and rewards to the buyer.
(b) Export sales are recognised on the basis of Shipped on Board/C.1.F/ the dates of Mate’s Receipt and initially
recorded at the relevant exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

(c) Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable
accuracy and conditions precedent to claim are fulfilled.

(2) Interestis accrued over the period of the loan/investment.

(3) Dividendis accruedinthe yearinwhichitis declared whereby aright to receive is established.

(4) Profit/Loss on sale of investment is recognized on the contract date.

(5) Revenue from turnkey contracts is recognised based on the stage of completion determined with reference to the costs

incurred on contracts and their estimated total costs. Provision for foreseeable losses/ construction contingencies on
turnkey contracts is made on the basis of technical assessments of costs to be incurred and revenue to be accounted for.

A) FixedAssets:

i)  Freehold Land, Leasehold Land, Buildings (including Leasehold Land appurtenant thereto) and premises on
ownership basis have been revalued as on 30.09.1994 and are thereafter carried at revalued figures less
accumulated depreciation / amortisation thereon, except freehold land which are carried at their revalued figures.
Additions thereafter are carried at their cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation.

ii)  Capital goods manufactured by the Company for its own use are carried at their cost of production (including duties
and other levies, if any) less accumulated depreciation and other fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition
(including cost of specific borrowings) less accumulated depreciation.

iii) Costofrenovation of leased premises is capitalised as leasehold improvement cost.

iv) Any subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset are added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed value.

v) Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at
cost are recognised in the statement of Profitand Loss.

B) Depreciation:

i)  Depreciation on all tangible Fixed Assets (other than Leasehold Land which is amortised over the period of lease and
those assets as mentioned in (ii) (iii) and (iv) below) is being provided on a pro-rata basis on “Straight Line Method”
based on the useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

ii)  100% depreciation is provided in the month of addition for:
a)All additions to fixed assets costing ¥ 5,000 or less; and
b) For the temporary structures cost at project site.
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VL.

VIL.

iii)  Premium of leasehold land and leasehold improvements cost are amortised over the primary period of lease.
iv) Useful life of following class of tangible assets mainly Plant and Machinery is ascertained as per technical

evaluation-
Sr. No. | Asset Account Name Useful Life
1 Building Factory 15,16 and 21 years
2 Plant & Machinery Ranging from 2 to 20 years based on the type and to reflect the actual
usage of the assets.
3 Electrical Installation Ranging from 6 to 8 years depending on the usage of the assets.
4 Roads & Culverts 21 years
5 Dies, Jigs & Moulds Ranging from 1 to 10 years considering useful life of the assets.

v)  The depreciation on increased value of buildings and the premises on ownership basis due to revaluation, is being
provided on “Straight Line Method” as per the useful life specified considering the balance period of life of the assets.
The additional charge of depreciation on increased value of buildings and the premises on ownership basis due to
revaluation, has been transferred from Revaluation Reserve to the Profit and Loss Account.

C) Assetsgivenonlease:

The Company has given Plant & Machinery on an operating lease basis. Lease rental thereon is accounted on an accrual
basis in accordance with the lease agreement.

Foreign Currency Transactions :
a) Oninitial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded at foreign exchange rate on the date of transaction.

b) Monetary items of current assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the close of financial year are
revalorised at the appropriate exchange rates prevailing at the close of the year.

c) The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, in case of
monetary current assets and liabilities in foreign currency, are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the
manner detailed in Note 28 to financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Contracts:
i) Premiums/Discounts are recognized over the life of the contract.

i)  Profits and losses arising from either cancellation or utilisation of contracts and revalorising the contracts at the close of
the year are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss as detailed in Note 28 to financial statements.

Investments :

Investments are valued at cost of acquisition less provision made for diminution in the value of investments, which in the
judgment of the management is necessary.

Inventory Valuation :

Costs of inventories have been computed to include all costs of purchases, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

A. Finished Goods and Work-in-Process :
a) Finished Goods

(i) Traded finished goods and spares are valued at cost, arrived at "Weighted Average" basis or net realisable value,
whicheveris lower.

(i) Finished goods manufactured by the Company are valued at lower of cost, determined on “First In First Out” basis or
netrealizable value. Galvanized structures / products manufactured by the Company are valued at cost, determined
on specific identification method or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

b)  Work-in-Process is valued at cost unless circumstances require the cost to be written down to realisable value.
B. RawMaterials:

Raw materials are valued at weighted average cost unless circumstances require the cost to be written down to realizable
value.

C. Stores, Spares and Packing Material :

Stores, spares and packing material are valued at weighted average cost unless circumstances require the cost to be
written down to realizable value.

D. Obsolete and non-moving inventory of raw materials, stores and spares is carried at cost or market value, whichever is
lower. Obsolete and non-moving inventory of galvanized structures is valued at scrap rate.

Employee Benefits :
a) Privilege leave entitlements :

Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of service, as per the rules of the
Company. As accumulated leave can be availed and/or encashed at any time during the tenure of employment the liability
is recognised at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary.
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b) Gratuity:
Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity fund, which fully covers the
same under Cash Accumulation Policies of the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance
Company Ltd. (BALIC). However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC and BALIC as compared to the actuarial
liability is recognised as a liability.

c) Superannuation:

Defined contribution to superannuation fund is being made to Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) as per the scheme
of the Company.

d) Provident Fund Contributions:

Provident fund contributions (after paying family pension scheme portion to Provident Fund Authority) are made to
Company's Provident Fund Trust. Deficits, if any, of the fund as compared to actuarial liability is to be additionally
contributed by the Company and hence recognised as a liability.

e) Defined contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority.
f) Employee Stock Option Scheme:

The Company has granted stock options to its employees under the Growth Plan as well as Loyalty Plan. Inrespectof the
options granted under the Employees Stock Options Scheme, in accordance with the guidelines issued by SEBI and in
compliance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India in the year 2005 and applicable for the period on or after 1 April 2005, the cost of stock
options granted to employees are accounted by the Company using the intrinsic value method and the cost based on
excess of market value over the exercise price is recognised in the Profit & Loss Account over the vesting period on time
proportion basis and included in the “Salaries, wages, bonus etc.”. Should any employee leave in the subsequent years,
before exercise of the options, the value of options accrued in his/her favour is written back to the General Reserve.

VIIl. Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss except in respect of specific borrowing raised for acquisition of

capital asset until such time the asset is ready to put to use for its intended purpose, which are added to carrying cost of such

asset.
IX. Taxation:

i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax liability arising on account of timing difference between
the accounted income and the taxable income as per the financial statements.

ii) Deferred tax assets representing carried forward business losses and unabsorbed depreciation are recognised to the
extent the managementis virtually certain with convincing evidence that they are going to be realised in future.

i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised by considering the tax rate, which has been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

iv) Deferred tax assets and liabilities, as the case may be, arising on adjustments to Reserves are netted off against the
respective adjustments.

X. Discontinued Operations :

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are assessed at each Balance Sheet date. Impacts of any impairments and

write backs are dealt with in the Profit & Loss Account.

Impacts of discontinued operations are distinguished from the ongoing operations of the Company, so that their impact on the

Profit & Loss Account for the year can be perceived.

XI. Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets :

i) Aprovision is recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

i)  Adisclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible or present obligation that may but probably will not
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

iii) Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statement.

XIll. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during reporting period. Differences between actual results and estimates
are recognized in the period in which the results are known.

XIII. Impairment of Assets :

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment
loss recognized in the prior accounting periods are reversed if there has been change in the estimate of the recoverable
amount.
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Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

2:

Share Capital

(T in Lacs)
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Authorised:
200,000,000 (200,000,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up :
100,762,426 (99,969,178) Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid up 2,015.25 1,999.38
2.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
Nos. Tin Lacs Nos. Tin Lacs
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 99,969,178 1,999.38 99,755,331 1,995.11
Add : Shares issued on exercise of Employee Stock Options 793,248 15.87 213,847 4.27
Equity Shares at the end of the year 100,762,426 2,015.25 99,969,178 1,999.38
2.2 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March 2015 As at 31 March 2014
Nos. % Holding Nos. % Holding
Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 19,872,830 19.72 22,402,830 22.41
Bajaj Holdings & Investment Limited 16,697,840 16.57 16,697,840 16.70
2.3 Equity Shares reserved for issue under options outstanding as at the end of the year on un-issued share capital :

The Company had reserved issuance of 8,258,341 (Previous year 7,688,341) Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each for offering to eligible
employees of the Company under Employees Stock Option Scheme.

Summary of Stock Options as on 31.03.2015 :

Number of Stock Options granted (net of lapsation & cancellation) 5,924,020
Number of Stock Options Exercised 3,392,731
Number of Stock Options Vested & Exercisable 1,187,539
Number of Stock Options Unvested 1,343,750

2.4 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to
equity shareholders was X 1.50 per share (31 March 2014,% 1.50 per share) of Face value of ¥ 2 each. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Share Application money represents the application money received on Nil (Previous Year 49,144) stock options exercised by an
employee as on 31 March 2015 against which equity shares were pending allotment.

3 : Reserves & Surplus

Securities Premium Account

As per last Balance Sheet 19,695.56 19,343.48

Add : On issue of shares* 1,306.37 352.08
21,001.93 19,695.56

Capital Reserve

Capital Subsidy 10.00 10.00

Capital Redemption Reserve 135.71 135.71
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

3 : Contd. As at
31 March 2015
Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 2,500.00

(R in Lacs)

As at
31 March 2014

Add: Transferred from General Reserve - 2,500.00
2,500.00 2,500.00
Revaluation Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 829.64 855.90
Less : Deduction / Appropriations during the year 21.04 26.26
808.60 829.64
General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 44,869.05 47,369.05
Less: Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve - 2,500.00
Less: Transitional adjustments to carrying value of tangible assets whose revised
useful life has expired, net of defferred tax aggregative ¥ 150.35 Lacs (See Note 5 & 11) 291.99 -
Less : Transferred to statement of Profit & Loss Account 2,500.00 -
42,077.06 44,869.05
Surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss
As per last Balance Sheet 869.40 3,154.64
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year (1,395.03) (530.86)
Add : Transferred from General Reserve 2,500.00 -
Less: Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 1,511.44 1,499.54
Less: Dividend Distibution Tax on proposed dividend 307.73 254.84
Less: Dividend paid on exercise of Stock Options alongwith Dividend Distribution Tax 5.34 -
149.86 869.40
66,683.16 68,909.36
*On 793,248 Equity Shares (Previous Year 213,847) of ¥ 2 each issued at premium under Employees Stock Option Scheme
Exercise Price Premium No. of Shares Share Premium (X in Lacs)
per share % per share X 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
43.11 41.11 26,644 - 10.95 -
164.85 162.85 488,993 183,847 796.33 299.39
168.15 166.15 5,600 - 9.31 -
173.35 171.35 203,000 27,500 347.84 47.12
182.20 180.20 31,200 - 56.22 -
183.15 181.15 3,750 - 6.79 -
224.65 222.65 30,600 2,500 68.13 5.57
313.95 311.95 3,461 - 10.80 -
793,248 213,847 1,306.37 352.08

Pursuant to The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2004. issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 27 March 2014,
Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created on Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of ¥ 100 crores issued on

26 March 2014.

4 : Long Term Borrowings

Secured

Zero Coupon Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 10,000.00 10,000.00

Foreign Currency Loan from Banks 4,427.08 -

Unsecured

Sales Tax Deferral Liability / Loan

(an incentive under 1993 Package Scheme of Incentives of SICOM - Interest free) 2,664.28 3,060.58
17,091.36 13,060.58
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

4 : Contd.

Secured

(YTM) 10.85% Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
Sr. Nature of Security

NCD's issued are secured by First Charge over the following premises :
i) Delhi Office : No. DSM-514 to DSM-521, DLF Tower, 5th Floor, 15 Shivaji Marg, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi-110015.

i)  Office Premises No : 001, 701 & 801, 'Rustomjee Aspiree', Bhanu Shankar Yagnik Marg, Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion (East),
Mumbai - 400 022.

iii)  Residential FlatNo.183 & 193 - Naperol Tower, RafiAhmed Kidwai Marg, Wadala , Mumbai - 400 031.

iv)  Factory Units (Unit | and Il) at Ranjangaon - Plot No. B-7 & B-29 , Ranjangaon Industrial Area, Village Dhoksangvi, Taluka Shirur,
Dist. Pune.

v)  Factory unitat Chakan - Village Mahalunge, Chakan Talegoan Road, Khed, Pune - 410501.

vi)  Showroom on Ground Floor and Office Premises on Second Floor at Bajaj Bhawan 226, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point,
Mumbai 400 021.

Sr. | Face Value per Debenture No of As on As on Date of Coupon Rate* Repayment Terms
No. Debentures| 31.03.3015 | 31.03.2014 | Allotment
(¥ Lacs) (X Lacs) Days Due Date
< 1,000,000 400 4,000 4,000 26-Mar-14 764 28-Apr-16
Zero Coupon
2 31,000,000 600 6,000 6,000 26-Mar-14 1125 24-Apr-17

* NCD's are issued at Zero Coupon corresponding to YTM of 10.85% p.a. compounded annually. Post downgrading of credit rating by
ICRA Ltd. (Credit Rating Agency) from A1+ to A1 on 24 February 2015, the YTM has been increased by 0.25% p.a. with effect from
24 February 2015.

Foreign Currency Term Loan :

Foreign Currency Term loan is availed from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. The said loan is repayable in 24 Equated Monthly Instalments of USD
416,667 commencing from 5 September 2015, carrying an interest rate of 4.15% p.a. payable monthly and is secured by :

First Charge (pending creation) on following properties:

a) Kosi Factory Unit at Khasra No.647,648, NH 02, Km 109 Mile Stone, Village Dautana, Chhatta, Kosi Kallan, Mathura 281403.

b) Office Premises No. 502, 'Rustomjee Aspiree', Bhanu Shankar Yagnik Marg, Off Eastern Express Highway, Sion (East),
Mumbai 400 022.

c) R & D centre (proposed) at Plot No. 27/pt-2 at Millennium Business Park, TTC Industrial area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai
d) Wind Farm : Village Vankusawade, Tal. Patan, Dist. Satara, Maharashtra 415206.

Sales Tax Deferral Liability / Loan

Terms of Repayment : Sales Tax deferral liability/loan is repayable free of interest over predefined instalments from the initial date of
deferment of liability, as per respective schemes of incentive.
Non-current (%in Lacs)
Year As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Apr'15 - 196.29 Lacs, May'15 - 190.83 Lacs - 387.12
Apr'16 - 295.72 Lacs, May'16 - 151.36 Lacs 447.08 447.08
Apr'17 - 408.75 Lacs, May'17 - 113.37 Lacs 522.12 522.12
Apr'18 - 470.98 Lacs, May'18 - 76.96 Lacs 547.94 548.94
Apr'19 - 429.38 Lacs, May'19 - 37.04 Lacs 466.42 468.26
Apr'20 - 327.93 Lacs 327.93 329.77
Apr'21 - 228.51 Lacs 228.51 230.34
Apr'22 - 107.63 Lacs 107.63 109.46
Apr'23 - 16.65 Lacs 16.65 17.49
2,664.28 3,060.58
Current (shown as Other Current Liabilities in Note 10)
Apr'15 - 196.29 Lacs, May'15 - 190.83 Lacs 387.12 289.41
387.12 289.41
3,051.40 3,349.99
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4 : Contd.

Term Loans from Banks Term Loans in Foreign Currency Term Loans in INR
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014 | 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014
Outstanding Term Loan 6,250.00 - - 120.00
Less : Current maturities of Long Term Borrowing 1,822.92 - - 120.00
4,427.08 - - -
Term Loans from Banks (shown as Other Current Liabilities in Note 10)
Nature of Security Date of Maturity Amount in
(R in Lacs)
Term Loan from Bank is secured by lien on following Fixed Deposits
1) FD A/c No : 61216656849 with State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur, Fort, Mumbai 23-Apr-14 100.00
2) FD Alc No : 61216757366 with State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur, Fort, Mumbai 23-Jul-14 20.00
5 : Deferred Tax Assets (Net) ( in Lacs)
As at As at

Deferred Tax Liabilities :
On account of timing difference in Depreciation

Adjustment of carrying value of tangible assets against retained earnings

Gross Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred Tax Assets :

On account of timing difference in :

(a) Section 43B Disallowances

(b) Leave Entitlement Liability

(c) Gratuity Liability

(d) Provision for Doubtful Debts

(e) Provision for Doubtful Advances & Recoverables

Gross Deferred Tax Asset

Net Deferred Tax - Assets

6 : Other Long Term Liabilities

Other Deposits
Accrued Interest on NCD but not due

7 : Provisions

Long Term Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits: (See Note 31)
Leave entitlements

Gratuity

Other Provisions :
Warranties & Claims

Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits: (See Note 31)
Leave entitlements

Other Provisions :
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Warranties & Claims

100

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

1,432.67 1,627.04
(150.35) -
1,282.32 1,627.04
117.98 25.49
870.47 834.88
293.63 46.10
4,368.89 2,833.00
519.76 420.85
6,170.73 4,160.32
4,888.41 2,533.28
6.05 15.35
1,107.28 17.84
1,113.33 33.19
1,778.79 1,680.38
848.46 135.63
1,766.50 938.32
4,393.75 2,754.33
736.43 775.87
1,511.44 1,499.54
307.73 254.84
4,990.06 3,963.07
7,545.66 6,493.32




Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

7 : Contd.

(X in Lacs)

As required by Accounting Standard 29 — “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the Company recognised a liability
aggregating to¥ 6,756.56 Lacs (Previous YearX 4,901.39 Lacs) for warranty claims that are estimated to be incurred in future periods arising

out of sales made upto the closure of the year.

Disclosures in respect of provisions for warranty costs :

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
As at last Balance Sheet (Long Term Provisions + Short Term Provisions) 4,901.39 2,912.85
Add : Provided during the year 5,289.52 4,243.33
Less : Utilised during the year 3,434.35 2,254.79
Closing Balance (Long Term Provisions + Short Term Provisions) 6,756.56 4,901.39

8 : Short Term Borrowings
As at As at

Secured
Loans from Consortium Banks
(i) Cash Credit

(ii)  Foreign Currency Loans

Unsecured

(i)  Other Short Term Loans
(i) Commercial Papers

(iii) Foreign Currency Loans

Nature of Security

8.1 Secured:

Loans from Consortium Banks are secured by :

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

9,202.20 17,159.96
5,212.48 554.79
14,414.68 17,714.75
3,500.00 -
2,500.00 -
1,181.84 3,659.03
7,181.84 3,659.03
21,596.52 21,373.78

(i) First pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of inventories and book debts, excluding project specific assets exclusively

charged to IDBI Bank Ltd.

(ii) First pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage of the Company's immovable properties at Wardha and Mumbai (Reay

Road);

(iii) Second pari passu charge over present and future Fixed Assets of the Company, situated at;
a) Ranjangaon Units : Village Dhoksanghvi, Taluka Shirur, Ranjangaon, Dist. Pune - 412 210;
b) Chakan Unit : Village Mahalunge, Chakan Talegaon Road, Khed, Pune - 410 501;
c) Wind Farm : Village Vankusawade, Tal. Patan, Dist. Satara, Maharashtra - 415 206;

d) Residential and Commercial properties situated at Mumbai.

These securities also extend to the various credit facilities including Bank Guarantees and Letters of Credit of ¥ 112,636.47 Lacs
(Previous year ¥ 94,113.38 lacs) executed on behalf of the Company established in the normal course of business. Further
Company has availed facilities for Bank Guarantees and Letters of Credit of ¥ 13,112.69 Lacs (Previous Year< 10,703.24 Lacs)
from IDBI Bank Ltd. which are secured by exclusive first charge on Company's movable properties and entire current assets
pertaining to specific projects and subservient charge on the Company's entire movable assets including Stocks and Book Debts.

8.2 Secured Foreign Currency Loans includes Buyer's Credit as per the details given below

Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest Rate Liability ¥ in Lacs as
(%) on 31.03.2015

Yes Bank Ltd. 7-Apr-15 0.76 430.02
Yes Bank Ltd. 10-Apr-15 0.75 470.97
Yes Bank Ltd. 15-Apr-15 0.75 239.33
Yes Bank Ltd. 20-Apr-15 0.75 65.61
Yes Bank Ltd. 24-Apr-15 0.75 440.58
Yes Bank Ltd. 27-Apr-15 0.80 213.22
Yes Bank Ltd. 28-Apr-15 0.83 174.74
Yes Bank Ltd. 7-May-15 0.76 732.63
Yes Bank Ltd. 8-May-15 0.83 258.25
Yes Bank Ltd. 22-May-15 0.86 139.01
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 61.93
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 31.74
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 12.46
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8 : Contd.

8.3

Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest Rate Liability X in Lacs as
(%) on 31.03.2015
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 37.89
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 161.57
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 14.39
State Bank of India 12-Jun-15 1.12 93.88
Yes Bank Ltd. 17-Jun-15 0.82 358.43
Yes Bank Ltd. 19-Jun-15 0.83 428.94
Yes Bank Ltd. 22-Jun-15 0.84 133.12
State Bank of India 26-Jun-15 1.14 189.54
State Bank of India 26-Jun-15 1.14 67.17
State Bank of India 7-Jul-15 1.06 65.07
State Bank of India 7-Jul-15 1.06 74.85
State Bank of India 7-Jul-15 1.06 66.59
State Bank of India 7-Jul-15 1.06 84.35
State Bank of India 7-Jul-15 1.06 75.52
Yes Bank Ltd. 20-Oct-15 0.81 90.68
5,212.48
Unsecured
Other Short Term Loans :
Name of the Bank Date of Maturity, Rate of Amount
Payment Interest (%) (X in Lacs)
ING Vysya Bank Ltd. 06-Apr-15 10.80 2,000.00
ING Vysya Bank Ltd. 06-Apr-15 10.80 1,500.00
3,500.00
Commercial Papers :
Name of the Subscriber Date of Rate of Amount
Maturity Interest (%) (X in Lacs)
Kotak Mahindra Trustee Company Ltd A/C Kotak Floater
Long Term Scheme 12-Jun-15 9.70 2,500.00

Foreign Currency Loans include Buyer's Credit as per the d

etails given below :

Lending Bank

Maturity Date

Interest Rate
(%)

Liability ¥ in Lacs as
on 31.03.2015

Deutche Bank AG Singapore 22-Jul-15 0.54 448.24
Deutche Bank AG Singapore 22-Jul-15 0.54 221.50
Deutche Bank AG Singapore 11-Aug-15 0.56 107.49
Deutche Bank AG Singapore 11-Aug-15 0.56 176.93
Deutche Bank AG Singapore 21-Aug-15 0.56 227.68

1,181.84

Repayment Schedule for previous year

8.4

8.5

Secured

Foreign Currency Loans include Buyer's Credit as per the details given below

Lending Bank

Maturity Date

Interest Rate
(%)

Liability ¥ in Lacs
as on 31.03.2014

Buyers Credit under Consortium Bank limit 2-May-14 1.06 247.22
Buyers Credit under Consortium Bank limit 17-Jul-14 1.07 307.57
554.79

Unsecured Foreign Currency Loans includes Buyers Credit, the details of which are as under :

Lending Bank

Maturity Date

Interest Rate
(%)

Liability ¥ in Lacs
as on 31.03.2014

Deustche Bank AG Tokyo 07-May-14 0.50 810.01
Deustche Bank AG Tokyo 16-May-14 0.50 331.69
Deustche Bank AG Singapore 28-May-14 0.53 417.75
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8 : Contd. ®in Lacs)
Lending Bank Maturity Date Interest Rate Liability X in Lacs
(%) as on 31.03.2014
Deustche Bank AG Singapore 28-May-14 0.53 589.81
Deustche Bank AG Singapore 06-Jun-14 0.52 261.71
Deustche Bank AG Singapore 06-Jun-14 0.52 270.25
Deustche Bank AG Singapore 27-Jun-14 0.53 334.55
Deustche Bank AG Tokyo 23-Jul-14 0.49 157.02
Deustche Bank AG Tokyo 05-Aug-14 0.48 329.67
Deustche Bank AG Tokyo 05-Aug-14 0.48 156.57
3,659.03
9 : Trade Payables
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Acceptances 60,589.55 65,312.61
Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises 1,655.13 816.20
Others 55,227.27 53,840.18
117,471.95 119,968.99

Information as required to be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act,
2006) is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company.

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered As at As at
under MSMED Act, 2006: 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Principal 949.09 285.43
Interest 26.42 7.95
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006

along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 7.95 1.10
during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the - -
interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 26.42 7.95
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,

until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise 0.29 -
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the

MSMED Act, 2006.

The total dues of Micro and Small Enterprises which were outstanding for more than

stipulated period 12.68 1.36

Acceptances include ¥ 1,278.43 Lacs (previous year I 485.05 Lacs) for bills accepted by the Company and discounted by the suppliers with
Small Industries Development Bank of India under a line of credit extended to the Company, which are secured by a second charge on raw
materials, goods in process, semi-finished goods and Book Debts and also on the collateral security created by way of equitable mortgage on

the Company’s properties at Mumbai and Wardha.

10: Other Current Liabilites
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings :

Term Loans from Banks (See Note 4)

Sales Tax Deferral liability / Loan (See Note 4)
Employee Benefit Liabilities

Customer Incentive / Scheme Payable

VAT/CST Payable

Other Statutory Liabilities payable

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Advances received from customers

Gross amount due to customers for long term contracts
Unpaid Dividends #

Trade Deposits (Dealers, Vendors etc.)

Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereon
Other Payables

1,822.92 120.00
387.12 289.41
1,391.34 1,296.35
3,833.01 3,158.35
2,913.30 3,562.67
930.17 755.54
38.99 11.34
40.89 17.81
20,329.41 21,454.74
10,494.48 2,012.90
77.55 72.38
829.95 736.92
8.42 11.39
1,962.35 359.38
45,059.90 33,859.18

#There are no amounts outstanding, for payment to the IEPF u/s. 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 as at the year end.
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12 : Investments

Non-Current

Trade Investments

Equity Shares (Unquoted)
Name of the Body Corporate
Hind Lamps Ltd. **

Nature, No. and Face value
1,140,000 (3,000,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 25 each
(including 100,000 bonus shares)

Starlite Lighting Ltd.** 2,375,000 (4,000,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each

Others :

M. P. Lamps Ltd. 48,000 (48,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each; (Partly paid
shares - % 2.50 per share Paid Up, Called up % 5 per share)
95,997 (95,997) Equity Shares of T 10 each; (Partly paid

shares -%1.25 per share Paid Up, Called up ¥ 5 per share)

M. P. Lamps Ltd.

Less :
Provision for the Diminution in the value of Investments*

Mayank Electro Ltd. 100 (100) Equity Shares of ¥ 100 each

Preference Shares (Unquoted)
Hind Lamps Ltd. 2,800,000 (2,800,000) Non-participating Redeemable
Preference Shares of T 25 each, redeemable at the end of
term of 10 years, at a premium of ¥ 20 per share

30,000,000 (30,000,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each Redeemable in
3 equal tranches at the end of 6th, 7th & 8th year from the
date of allotment

6,666,667 (10,000,000) 9 % Non-Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each Redeemable
in 3 equal tranches at the end of 8th, 9th & 10th year from
the date of allotment

5,000,000 (5,000,000) 9 % Non-Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each Redeemable
in 3 equal tranches at the end of 13th, 14th & 15th year from
the date of allotment

Starlite Lighting Ltd.

Starlite Lighting Ltd. #

Starlite Lighting Ltd.

Current

Non-Trade Investments

Investments in Government or Trust securities

National Savings Certificate 6 Year National Savings Certificate

Current portion of Long term Investments
Trade Investments

Preference Shares (Unquoted)
Starlite Lighting Ltd. # 3,333,333 (Nil) 9 % Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each Redeemable in 3 equal
tranches at the end of 8th, 9th & 10th year from the date of
allotment

Aggregate cost of quoted investments

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments

As at
31 March 2015

(¥ in Lacs)
As at
31 March 2014

296.78 781.00
445.31 750.00
742.09 1,5631.00

1.20 1.20
1.20 1.20
(2.40) (2.40)
0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
700.00 700.00

3,000.00 3,000.00
666.67 1,000.00
500.00 500.00

5,608.86 6,731.10

- 0.47

333.33 -
333.33 047
NIL NIL
5,944.59 6,733.97
N.A. NA.
2.40 2.40

Figures and words in brackets, in this schedule, indicate previous year's No. and Class of Shares / Units

* In respect of Investments made in M. P. Lamps Ltd., calls of ¥ 2.50 per share on 48,000 equity shares and ¥ 3.75 per share on 95,997 equity shares
aggregating to¥ 4.80 Lacs have not been paid by the Company. On principles of prudence the entire investmentin M.P. Lamps Ltd. is considered as

diminished and accordingly carried atZ NIL.

** During the year, the Company sold 18,60,000 equity shares of Hind Lamps Ltd. for a total consideration of ¥ 50,220,000/- and 16,25,000 equity
shares of Starlite Lighting Ltd. for a total consideration of ¥ 30,468,750/-. The profit on sale of shares has been recognised in the Profit and Loss

account.

# 1/3 of Investment in Starlite Lighting Ltd of 10,000,000 9% Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares is due for redemption in

the year 2015-16 and hence the same has been shown under the head ‘Current Investments’.
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13: Loans and Advances ®in Lacs)
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Long Term

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Capital Advances 14.58 423.53

Security Deposit

Considered Good 2,481.78 2,332.92
Doubtful 78.87 78.87
2,560.65 2,411.79
Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Advances 78.87 78.87
2,481.78 2,332.92

Loans and advances to related parties
Hind Lamps Ltd. * 1,152.00 1,152.00
Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Advances 1,000.00 1,000.00
152.00 152.00
Starlite Lighting Ltd. 280.00 446.67
432.00 598.67

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Considered Good 1,420.91 2,602.06
Doubtful 422.96 159.27

1,843.87 2,761.33
Less: Provision for Bad & Doubtful Advances 422.96 159.27

1,420.91 2,602.06
Advance Income Tax-Net of Provision ¥ 43,120 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 40,811 Lacs) 3,859.99 2,476.82
Balances with Central Excise and Customs Department 15.00 15.00

8,224.26 8,449.00
Short Term

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 5,828.75 7,418.11

Loans and advances to related parties

Hind Lamps Ltd. 26.93 -
Starlite Lighting Ltd. 2,980.00 2,431.67
Advance Income Tax - Net of Provision % 1,450 Lacs (Previous Year % 1,675 Lacs) 1,802.47 1,621.60
Balances with Central Excise and Customs Department 845.62 283.30

11,483.77 11,754.68

* The Company has advanced loans aggregating to ¥ 1,152 Lacs to Hind Lamps Ltd. (HLL) in which Company holds 19% Equity Share
Capital as a promoter. HLL is a also major dedicated vendor of lamps and tubes to the Company. The loans are advanced as continued
financial support to HLL in view of substantial losses incurred by it in the past years. The Company based on its own assessment of the
financial condition of HLL, has in the past, as a matter of prudence, made a provision for doubtful advance to the extent of¥ 1,000 Lacs.

The Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (DRS) submitted by HLL to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) envisaging its
revival was approved in January 2012. In terms of the DRS the loan amount of ¥ 700 Lacs was converted into Redeemable Preference
Sharesinthe FY 2012-13.
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14 : Other Non-Current Assets ®in Lacs)
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Long Term Trade Receivables

Considered Good 38,612.71 38,291.19
Doubtful 12,623.92 8,334.81
51,236.63 46,626.00
Less: Provision for Bad & doubtful debts 12,623.92 8,334.81
38,612.71 38,291.19

Non-Current Bank Balances
Bank Deposits (more than 12 months maturity) 311.75 2.35

38,924.46 38,293.54

Other Current Assets

Contract Work in Progress 3,662.49 1,431.58
Unbilled Revenue 1,479.80 459.87
Interest accrued on Bank Deposits 15.63 9.64
Export Benefits 79.46 56.51

5,237.38 1,957.60

15 : Inventories

(As valued and certified by the Management)

Raw materials & Components 3,182.79 4,068.33
Work-in-progress 902.85 1,083.98
Finished Goods Manufactured 1,408.83 3,136.38
Finished Goods Traded 38,919.66 34,718.40
Finished Goods in Transit 2,352.18 1,472.27
Stores and Spares 651.11 1565.71
Others 47.37 35.26
47,464.79 44,670.33
Details of Raw Material
Ferrous Metals 2,119.47 3,232.84
Non Ferrous Metals 470.43 381.06
Other Raw Material 592.89 454 .43
3,182.79 4,068.33
Details of Work-in-Progress
Lighting 36.25 18.30
Highmast, Transmission Tower & Poles 525.43 736.51
Fans 341.17 329.17
902.85 1,083.98
Details of Finished goods
Lighting (Manufactured) 142.54 6.06
Lighting (Traded) 6,326.81 6,772.33
Consumer Durables (Manufactured) 1,061.12 805.55
Consumer Durables (Traded) 26,098.30 27,033.85
Engineering & Project (Manufactured) 1,070.53 2,324.77
Engineering & Project (Traded) 7,981.37 2,384.49
42,680.67 39,327.05
Stores, Spares and Others
Others 698.48 190.97
698.48 190.97
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16 : Cash and Bank Balances ®in Lacs)
As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks

In current Accounts 1,279.12 2,368.37
In Cash Credit Accounts 66.65 13.89
Cheques on hand 1,908.59 2,453.60
Cash on hand 88.46 134.53
Bank Deposits (with less than 3 months maturity) 147.48 233.80
3,490.30 5,204.19

Others
Bank Deposits (with more than 3 but less than 12 months maturity) 198.24 154.16
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 77.55 72.38
275.79 226.54
3,766.09 5,430.73

17 : Trade Receivables

Short Term
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment

Considered Good 19,549.29 2,705.91
Doubtful - -
19,549.29 2,705.91

Other Debts 109,406.25 120,799.22
128,955.54 123,505.13

18 : Revenue from Operations

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Sale of Products 300,354.98 300,866.90
Less : Excise Duty 2,701.76 3,488.17
297,653.22 297,378.73
Contract Revenue 126,095.04 103,831.66
Net Sales 423,748.26 401,210.39
Other Operating Revenues :
Income from Power generated 62.33 159.31
Scrap Sales / Claims Received 1,855.12 1,313.11
Others 145.23 300.15
2,062.68 1,772.57
425,810.94 402,982.96
Details of Products sold
Lighting
Manufactured 2,142.20 1,242.43
Traded 87,399.26 94,004.32
Consumer Durables
Manufactured 5,270.35 4,724.99
Traded 197,657.00 188,213.52
Engineering & Projects
Manufactured 4,061.74 3,866.68
Traded 3,824.43 8,814.96
300,354.98 300,866.90

108



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

19 : Other Income

Others

1)

2)

3)

4)

(R in Lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Interest Income 1,671.06 1,224.70
Other Non-operating income
Rent Received 230.94 194.88
Amounts Written back 299.50 66.39
Profit / (Loss) on sale of Investments 17.98 -
Profit / (Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets 34.69 (12.42)
Prior Period Item 83.80 -
91.31 40.83
2,429.28 1,514.38
20: Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Materials & Components Consumed:
22,523.04 23,472.30
Purchases of Traded Goods :
Finished Goods & Material of Works Contracts 281,943.25 270,352.35
Freight, Octroi, Entry Tax, etc. 6,929.19 7,475.34
288,872.44 277,827.69
(Increase) / Decrease in Stock :
Stock at Commencement :
Work-in-Process 1,083.98 4,527.47
Finished Goods (Manufactured) 3,136.38 1,831.23
Finished Goods (Traded) 36,190.67 28,666.14
40,411.03 35,024.84
Stock at Close :
Work-in-Process 902.86 1,083.98
Finished Goods (Manufactured) 1,408.83 3,136.38
Finished Goods (Traded) 41,271.84 36,190.67
43,583.53 40,411.03
(3,172.50) (5,386.19)
Erection & Subcontracting Expenses 22,249.45 24,141.84
Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Ferrous Metal & Components 16,565.59 18,099.72
Non-Ferrous Metal & Components 4,595.23 4,122.27
Electrical Stampings 878.45 862.14
Components Others 483.77 388.17
Total 22,523.04 23,472.30

Imported & Indigenous Raw Materials, Components of Stores & Spare Parts consumed :

(i) Raw Material

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2015 | Year ended 31 March 2014
Imported and indigenous Raw Materials consumed: Value % Value %
Imported 1,190.37 5.41 1,314.07 5.69
Indigenous 20,824.18 94.59 21,774.68 94.31

Total 22,014.55 100.00 23,088.75 100.00
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20 : Contd.

Imported & Indigenous Raw Materials, Components of Stores & Spare Parts consumed :

(ii) Components & Spare Parts*

(R in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2015 | Year ended 31 March 2014
Imported and indigenous stores, spare parts & tools consumed: Value % Value %
Imported - - - -
Indigenous 755.68 100.00 745.37 100.00
Total 755.68 100.00 745.37 100.00
* See Note 23 - Other Expenses
Details of Purchase of Traded Goods Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Lighting 69,064.35 75,043.01
Consumer Durables 138,406.40 141,857.26
Engineering & Projects 74,472.50 53,452.08
Total 281,943.25 270,352.35
21 : Employee Benefits Expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Salaries, wages and bonus to employees 19,795.62 16,266.65
Remuneration to Whole time Directors 268.59 355.03
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,209.49 1,649.04
Staff Welfare expenses 354.85 331.66
22,628.55 18,602.38
22 : Finance Costs
Interest Expense 9,811.26 7,149.98
Other borrowing costs 177.12 133.94
Applicable net (Gain)/Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 519.94 545.70
10,508.32 7,829.62
23 : Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 755.68 745.37
Packing Material Consumed 532.16 381.98
Excise Duty on Increase/ (Decrease) in Stocks of Finished Goods 137.41 125.89
Power and Fuel 1,536.64 1,427.76
Rent 3,571.83 3,100.52
Repairs to Buildings 24.72 21.17
Repairs to Machinery 542.61 448.36
Repairs Others 234.96 204.35
Insurance 680.80 557.563
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 67.77 111.87
Lease Rent 247.09 232.81
Travelling, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 5,617.69 4,976.67
Postage, Telephone & Telex 796.57 731.47
Printing & Stationery 263.52 231.68
Directors Fees & Travelling Expenses 41.70 22.40
Non-Executive Directors Commission 25.84 23.60
Advertisement & Publicity (See Note 36) 5,652.79 6,355.12
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23 : Contd. ®in Lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Freight & Forwarding 7,557.85 7,640.18
Product Promotion & Service charges 9,433.44 8,337.79
Cash Discount 3,078.39 2,745.57
Commission on Sales 3,565.87 2,440.57
Payments to the Auditor:
Audit Fee 55.92 55.92
Tax Audit Fee 16.45 10.96
Limited Review Fees 21.93 10.74
Certification Fees 9.1 11.53
Reimbursement of Expenses 5.00 2.01
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 23.60 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances 4,552.80 4,879.62
Prior period Expenses / Loss 2.68 0.94
Bad Debts and other Irrecoverable debit balances Written off 270.87 705.69
Miscellaneous Expenses 14,486.40 9,591.27
63,810.09 56,131.34
24 : Determination of Profits & Capital for computation of EPS:
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Profit / (Loss) for the year after Tax (1,395.03) (530.86)
No. of Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each
Basic 100,497,852 99,778,058
Add: Effect of Dilutive issue of Employees Stock Options (Refer Note No. 31) 416,631 1,314,484
Diluted 100,914,482 101,092,542
Earnings Per Share in ¥ :-
(a) Basic (1.39) (0.53)
(b) Diluted (1.39) (0.53)
25 : Contingent liabilities
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
(i) Contingent Liabilities not provided for :
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 597.26 1,386.39
Guarantees / Letter of Comfort given on behalf of Companies ¥ 26,060.53 Lacs
(Previous Year ¥ 13,560.53 Lacs) 15,158.08 9,711.62
Liability towards Banks in respect of Bill Discounting / Channel Finance Facility 4,647.60 2,387.37
Excise and Customs demand - matters under dispute and Claims for refund of
Excise Duty, if any, against Excise Duty Refund received in the earlier year 25.48 25.48
Service Tax matters under dispute and Claims 134.68 134.68
Income Tax matters - Appeal by company 456.60 479.76
Sales Tax matters under dispute 1,401.43 2,797.95
Penalty/damages/interest, if any, due to non-fulfilment of any of the terms of Liability Liability
works contracts unascertained unascertained
(i) Uncalled liability in respect of partly paid Shares held as investments 7.20 7.20

The Company has arranged channel finance facility for its dealers and distributors from Axis Bank Limited. The outstanding in respect of this
facility as at Balance Sheet Date is ¥ 5,565.40 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 5,593.87 Lacs). Accordingly, Trade Receivables at the end of the year
stands reduced by the said amount. However, the company has provided a recourse of 33% of the outstanding that may be overdue and

irrecoverable from the dealers, which works outto¥43.37 Lacs (Previous Year3 7.44 Lacs)

The Company has been sanctioned Sales Bills / Receivables Factoring facilities by banks for discounting the bills raised on its customers.
The said facilities are with Full Recourse to the company. The outstanding in respect of these facilities as at Balance Sheet Date is ¥ 4,604.23
Lacs (Previous Year< 2,379.93 Lacs). Accordingly, Trade Receivables at the end of the year stands reduced by the said amount.
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26 : Capital and other commitments ®in Lacs)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Capital Commitments, net of capital advances 259.17 1,362.33
Letter of support given to Associate Company Liability Liability

unascertained unascertained
259.17 1,362.33
27 : Disclosure under the Accounting Standard - 7 (Revised) “Construction Contracts”
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
(a) (i) Contract Revenue recognized during the year 114,355.52 56,767.60
(ii) Method used to determine the contract revenue recognized and the stage of
completion {Refer Note 1(11)(6)} - -
(b) Disclosure in respect of contracts in progress as at the year end - -
(i) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognized profits (less recognized
losses) 95,528.74 53,192.35
(ii) Advances received, outstanding 10,855.71 18,555.14
(iii) Retentions receivable 41,670.23 37,013.58
(iv) Amount due from customers (included under Note 17 — Trade Receivables &
Note 14 - Other Non Current Assets) 121,172.66 120,925.85
(v) Amount due to customers (included in Note 10. Other Current Liabilites) 10,494.48 2,012.90
(vi) Contingencies on account of Warranty cost, Penalties or possible losses 146.36 252.48

28: C.I.F. value of imports, expenditure and earnings in foreign currencies and foreign exchange
exposures:
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
(a) C.LF. value of imports:
(i) Raw Materials 1,406.27 865.42
(i) Capital Goods 114.64 843.14
(iii) Finished Goods 27,090.15 28,009.44
(iv) Machinery Spares 11.64 9.54
Total 28,622.70 29,727.54
(b) Expenditure in foreign currency (Gross):
(i) Other Expenses 1,039.32 1,366.09
(i) Interest 166.97 77.03
(iii) Royalties 346.59 291.41
(iv) Capital Goods 136.68 799.73
Total 1,689.56 2,534.26
(c) Earnings in foreign exchange:
(i) F.O.B. value of exports 2,995.29 3,494.67
(ii) Freight & Insurance on exports 28.00 30.06
Total 3,023.29 3,624.73
Amount in Amount in
US$/EURE/CADS/ US$/EURE/CADS/
GBP£/AED (in Lacs) |GBP£/AED (in Lacs)
(d) Disclosure of Derivative Instruments and Foreign Currency Exposures
outstanding at the close of the year:
i) Derivative Instruments: Forward Contract Purchase $99.34 $58.68
ii) Open Foreign Exchange Exposures:
- Receivables and Bank Balances
Receivables
usb $9.73 $10.58
EURO (€0.02) (€0.02)
USD - Bank Balance in Agricultural Bank of China $0.10 -
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(¥ in Lacs)
28: Contd.
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Payables
usD $13.91 $17.39
EURO €1.67 €1.46
CAD $0.61 $0.35
GBP - £0.86
AED AED 0.02 -
- Loans
uUsD $100.00 NIL
EURO €1.35 €6.71
Purpose Hedging Hedging
(e) Exchange differences on account of fluctuations in foreign currency rates: (X in Lacs) (X in Lacs)
(i) Exchange difference gains/(loss) recognised in the Profit & Loss account (595.56) (1,552.10)
(1) relating to export sales during the year as a part of “Other Income/Expenses” 10.08 46.27
(2) on settlement of other transactions as a part of “Other Income/(Other
Expenses)” (85.70) (1,052.67)
(3) on settlement and open exposure of borrowing in foreign currency
transactions including cancellation of forward contracts as a part of (519.94) (545.70)
“Finance Cost”
(ii) Amount of premium/(discount) on open forward contracts 216.02 146.12
(1) recognised for the year in the Profit & Loss account 138.30 90.09
(2) to be recognised in the subsequent accounting period 77.72 56.03

29: Information about Business Segments:

The Company has identified its Primary Reportable Business Segments comprising of i) Lighting ii) Consumer Durables iii) Engineering &
Projects and iv) Others. ‘Lighting’ includes Lamps, Tubes, Luminaries; ‘Consumer Durables’ includes Appliances & Fans; Engineering &
Projects’ includes Transmission Line Towers, Telecommunications Towers, Highmast, Poles and Special Projects and ‘Others’ includes
Die-casting and Wind Energy.

Primary Segment Information :

1) Segment Revenue: (% In Lacs)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
a) Lighting 89,826.91 95,297.08
b) Consumer Durables 202,367.83 192,515.38
c) Engineering & Projects 133,553.86 115,011.19
d) Others 62.34 159.31

Sub-total 425,810.94 402,982.96

Less: Inter Segment Revenue - -

Net Sales / Income from Operations 425,810.94 402,982.96

2) Segment Results [Profit / (Loss)]:

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
a) Lighting 3,127.81 4,850.93
b) Consumer Durables 13,420.62 14,780.90
c) Engineering & Projects (8,694.09) (10,319.51)
d) Others (84.32) 51.28

Sub-total 7,770.02 9,363.60

Less: 1) Finance Costs 10,508.32 7,829.63

II) Other un-allocable expenditure net of un-allocable income (656.58) 2,130.25
IIl) Exceptional items - -

Operating Profit / (Loss) before Tax (2,081.72) (596.28)

Provision for Tax — Charge / (Release) 1,450.00 1,675.00

Provision for Deferred Tax — Charge / (Release) (2,204.78) (1,740.42)

Taxes in respect of earlier years 68.09 -

Profit after Tax (1,395.03) (530.86)
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29 : Contd. ® in Lacs)
3) Capital Employed (Segment Assets less Segment Liabilities):
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
a) Lighting 29,293.06 24,321.68 4,971.38 31,154.62 27,135.88 4,018.74
b) Consumer Durables 54,337.52 47,259.79 7,077.73 59,370.38 52,198.25 7,172.13
c) Engineering & Projects 158,236.33 89,195.01 69,041.32 136,847.92 73,755.97 63,091.95
d) Others 298.19 - 298.19 324.57 - 324.57
e) Other Unallocable 40,805.78 12,598.06 28,207.72 40,804.69 9,609.50 31,195.19
Total 282,970.88 173,374.54 109,596.34 268,502.18 162,699.60 105,802.58
4) Total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used during more than one period :
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
a) Lighting 110.23 1,438.39
b) Consumer Durables 270.45 174.82
c) Engineering & Projects 425.45 936.66
d) Other Unallocable 5,868.81 2,558.52
Total 6,674.94 5,108.39
5) Depreciation and Amortisation :
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
a) Lighting 212.66 61.94
b) Consumer Durables 405.70 296.52
c) Engineering & Projects 1,300.82 1,437.26
d) Others 38.26 65.09
e) Other Unallocable 945.11 613.83
Total 2,902.55 2,474.64

The Company caters mainly to the needs of the Indian markets and the export turnover being 0.67% (Previous Year 0.81%) of the total
turnover of the Company. There are no reportable geographical segments. All assets are located in India.

30 : Related Party Transactions)

2014-15 2013-14

Name of Related Outstanding Outstanding

Party and Nature Nature of Transaction Transaction | Amounts carried| Transaction Amounts

of relationship Value in the Value carried in the

Balance Sheet Balance Sheet

(A) Holding company, Subsidiaries and fellow subsidiary:

Nil Not Applicable \ \ \ \

(B) Associates, Joint Ventures and Investing parties:

Hind Lamps Ltd. Purchases 4,298.14 (36.25) 4,943.44 (165.69)
Contribution to Equity (484.22) 296.78 756.00 781.00
Trade advance given 4,420.30 26.93 5,105.72 -
Loan given - 1,152.00 - 1,152.00
Sales 38.16 25.83 7.43 6.34
Fixed Assets Purchase 0.13 - 5.01 -
Interest Received 76.56 16.91 71.34 15.73
Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares - 700.00 - 700.00
Amount paid for transfer of deposit in
Bajaj Electricals Limited's name - - 13.63 -
Services Received 240.76 - 164.01 -
Reimbursement of Expenses 1.08 - 32.59 -

Starlite Lighting Ltd. Purchases 6,204.02 38.05 7,281.30 (609.88)
Contribution to Equity (304.69) 445.31 - 750.00
Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares - 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
9% Redeemable Preference Shares - 1,500.00 - 1,500.00
Trade advance given 3,417.00 2,820.00 6,580.00 1,765.00
Loan given - 440.00 - 1,113.33
Reimbursement of Expenses 1.80 - (2.46) -
Lease Rent received 103.28 - 103.28 -
Sales - - - -
Interest Received 379.95 - 389.37 83.17
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30 : Contd.

(X in Lacs)

2014-15

2013-14

Name of Related

Outstanding

Outstanding

Party and Nature Nature of Transaction Transaction | Amounts carried| Transaction Amounts
of relationship Value in the Value carried in the
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Ltd. | Rent Paid 26.97 (2.05) 34.65 -
Reimbursement of Expenses 2.60 (2.60) - -
Rent Deposit Advanced - 100.00 - 100.00
Sale of Shares - Starlite Lighting Ltd. 304.69 - - -
(C) Individuals Controlling Voting power/ Excercising Significant influence & their relatives:
Mr. Shekhar Bajaj* Remuneration paid to Directors 158.58 9.90 211.64 (93.69)
Mr. Anant Bajaj Remuneration paid to Directors 110.02 (5.00) 143.39 (46.85)
Mr. Madhur Bajaj Directors' Sitting Fees 2.20 - 1.00 -
Commission 2.50 (2.25) 2.50 (2.25)
Mrs. Kiran Bajaj Rent Paid 9.00 - 9.00 -
Sales - - 1.34 -
Rent Deposit Advanced - 400.00 - 400.00
Sale of Shares - Hind Lamps Ltd. 315.90 - - -
Ms. Geetika Bajaj Sale of Shares - Hind Lamps Ltd. 186.30 - - -
(D) Key Managerial Personnel & their Relatives - included in "C" above
(E) Enterprises over which any one in (C) and (D) exercises significant influence:
Hind Musafir Agency Ltd. | Services Received 17.44 - 19.63 (0.14)
Incentives & Other income 1.1 - 3.90 -
Reimbursement of Expenses 881.34 (0.38) 1,295.53 (31.80)
Bajaj International Pvt. Ltd. | Trademark Purchase 0.51 - - -
Bajaj Auto Ltd. Sales 141.26 18.24 6.26 2.94
Advance for Capital Asset 96.38 5.16 40.88 40.88
Promotional Expenses 101.63 - (0.51) -
Mukand Ltd. Sales 12.62 0.02 - -
Other Expenses - - 5.02 -
Hindustan Housing Services Received 24.77 (7.44) 23.48 -
Co. Ltd. Security Deposit Advanced (0.86) 5.17 - 6.03
Sales 7.06 6.65 - (0.41)
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Premium paid 450.08 (0.42) 689.31 (0.35)
Insurance Co. Ltd. Advance for Insurance premium - 362.69 - 256.40
Sales - - - 0.03
Claims Received 186.25 - 132.54 -
Other Expenses 0.03 - 0.02 -
Reimbursement of Expenses - - 0.06 -
Hercules Hoist Ltd. Reimbursement of Expenses - (0.03) - (0.03)
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance premium paid 18.72 - 14.12 -
Insurance Co Ltd. Contribution to Gratuity Fund - 1,656.08 224.63 1,638.75
Sales - (0.45) 1.77 (0.45)
Bajaj Finance Ltd. Sales 51.74 43.52 64.28 10.89

Related parties as defined under clause 3 of the Accounting Standard - 18 "Related Party Disclosures" have been identified based on
representations made by key managerial personnel and information available with the Company.
* Upon determination of the Loss for the year, excess remuneration of ¥ 9.90 Lacs has been paid to CMD Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The amount of excess remuneration has been disclosed as Receivable in the Financial statements (Refer Note 10).
The said excess remuneration has since been refunded by CMD and received by the Company.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

31 : Employee benefits

Liability for employee benefits has been determined by an actuary, appointed for the purpose, in conformity with the principles set out in
the Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) the details of which are as hereunder.

i)

Funded Scheme (R in Lacs)
Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Gratuity Gratuity
Present Value of Funded Obligations 3,611.48 3,065.88
Fair Value of Plan Assets (2,767.88) (2,930.25)
Net Liability 843.60 135.63
Amounts in Balance Sheet
Liability 843.60 135.63
Assets - -
Net Liability 843.60 135.63
Expense to be recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 370.08 247.82
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 274.40 210.80
Expected Return on Plan Assets (263.14) (228.81)
Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) recognized in the year 345.77 78.82
Past Service Cost - -
Losses / (Gains) on "Curtailments & Settlements" - -
Losses / (Gains) on "Acquisition / Divestiture" - -
Effect of the limit in Para 59(b) - -
Total included in "Employee Benefit Expenses™ 727.11 308.63
Actual Return on Plan Assets 243.55 226.38
Reconciliation of Benefit Obligations & Plan Assets for the Period
Change in Defined Benefit Obligations
Opening Defined Benefit Obligations 3,065.88 2,929.74
Current Service Cost 370.08 247.83
Interest Cost 274.40 210.80
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) 326.18 76.39
Past Service Cost - -
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) due to Curtailment - -
Liabilities extinguished on settlements - -
Liabilities assumed on acquisition / (settled on Divestiture) - -
Exchange difference on Foreign Plans - -
Benefits Paid (425.06) (398.88)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligations 3,611.48 3,065.88
Change in Fair Value of Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 2,930.25 2,684.93
Expected Return on Plan Assets 263.13 228.82
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) (19.58) (2.43)
Assets distributed on settlements - -
Contributions by Employer 19.14 417.81
Assets acquired on acquisition / (distributed on Divestiture) - -
Exchange Difference on Foreign Plans - -
Benefits Paid (425.06) (398.88)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 2,767.88 2,930.25
Assets information
Insurer Managed Funds 100.00% 100.00%
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

31 : Contd. ®in Lacs)

Experience Adjustments Year ended 31 March

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Defined Benefit Obligation 2,196.64 2,503.56 2,929.74 3,065.88 3,611.48
Plan Assets 1,295.36 2,274.03 2,684.93 2,930.25 2,767.88
Surplus / (Deficit) (901.28) (229.53) (244.81) (135.63) (843.60)
Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities 208.16 251.64 215.14 190.76 184.16
Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets 15.10 16.54 21.54 (2.43) (19.58)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions (Expressed as Weighted Averages) As at 31 March 2015 | As at 31 March 2014
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.80% 8.95%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets (p.a.) 9.10% 8.98%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.00%

i)  Provident Fund :

In case of certain employees, the provident fund contribution is made to a trust administered by the Company. In terms of the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India, the actuary has provided a valuation of provident fund liability based on the

assumptions listed below and determined the liability as given below.

The assumptions used in determining the present value of obligation of the interest rate guarantee under deterministic approach are:

Remaining term of maturity - 5.4 years
Expected guaranteed interest rate - 8.75%

Discount rate for the remaining term to maturity of interest portfolio - 8.96%

Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2015 | As at 31 March 2014
Present Value of Funded Obligations 8,107.10 7,407.42
Fair Value of Plan Assets (8,358.32) (7,296.05)
Net Liability / (Assets) (251.22) 111.37
Interest rate guarantee liability 119.38 111.37
Net Liability / (Assets) 119.38 111.37
Expense to be recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss

Current Service Cost 441.10 422.39
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations 591.01 525.09
Expected Return on Plan Assets (620.16) (529.51)
Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) recognized in the year 36.12 51.22
Past Service Cost - -
Losses / (Gains) on "Curtailments & Settlements" - -
Losses / (Gains) on "Acquisition / Divestiture" - -
Effect of the limit in Para 59(b) - -
Total included in "Employee Benefit Expenses” 448.07 469.19
Actual Return on Plan Assets 592.06 576.03
Reconciliation of Benefit Obligations & Plan Assets for the Period

Change in Defined Benefit Obligations

Opening Defined Benefit Obligations 7,407.42 6,865.33
Current Service Cost 441.10 422.39
Interest Cost 591.01 525.09
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) 8.01 97.74
Employees' Contributions 957.86 843.99
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) due to Curtailment (217.61) 18.55
Liabilities extinguished on settlements - -
Liabilities assumed on acquisition / (settled on Divestiture) - -
Exchange difference on Foreign Plans - -
Benefits Paid (1,080.69) (1,365.67)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligations 8,107.10 7,407.42
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31: Contd. ®in Lacs)

As at 31 March 2015 | As at 31 March 2014

Change in Fair Value of Assets

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 7,296.05 6,800.76
Expected Return on Plan Assets 620.16 529.51
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) (28.10) 46.52
Employer's contributions during the period 441.26 422.39
Employees' contributions during the period 958.56 843.99
Assets acquired on acquisition / (distributed on Divestiture) 179.38 18.55
Exchange difference on Foreign Plans - -
Benefits Paid (1,108.98) (1,365.67)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 8,358.33 7,296.05

Assets information
Category of Assets (% Allocation)

Government of India Securities 17.23% 16.56%
State Government Securities 16.48% 16.36%
Corporate Bonds 38.78% 36.28%
Special Deposit Scheme 19.11% 22.00%
Others 8.40% 8.80%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Experience Adjustments

Defined Benefit Obligations 8,107.10 7,407.42
Plan Assets 8,358.32 7,296.05
Surplus / (Deficit) (251.22) 111.37
Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities 6.02 68.12
Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets (28.10) 46.52
PF Trust 1 - Chakan | PF Trust 2 - Head Office
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (Expressed as Weighted Averages) 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.90% 8.95% 7.90% 8.95%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets (p.a.) 8.75% 9.12% 8.75% 7.91%
Discount Rate for the remaining term to maturity of the Investment (p.a.) 8.85% 8.85% 8.96% 9.28%
Average historic yield on the Investment (p.a.) 5.73% 9.02% 8.19% 8.24%
Guaranteed Rate of Return (p.a.) 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 8.75%
i) Unfunded Schemes
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Leave Entitlement Leave Entitlement
Present Value of Unfunded Obligations 2,506.98 2,448.24
Expense recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Account 363.83 419.31
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.80% 8.95%
Salary escalation Rate (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%

Employee Stock Options Scheme :

During the year, the Company granted (a) 175,000 Options at ¥ 369.80; (b) 270,000 Options at ¥ 334.00 & (c) 125,000 Options at
% 276.75 under Growth Plan to the eligible employees. The grant price is the closing equity share price of the Company on NSE on the
trading day previous to the date of grant.

The Compensation cost of Stock Options granted to employees is accounted by the Company using the intrinsic value method.

Summary of Stock Options ESOP 2007 ESOP 2011 Total No. of
No. of Stock Options | No. of Stock Options| Stock Options
Options outstanding as on 01.04.2014 815,989 2,410,243 3,226,232
Options granted during the year - 570,000 570,000
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 126,339 397,750 524,089
Options exercised during the year 204,461 536,393 740,854
Options outstanding as on 31.03.2015 485,189 2,046,100 2,531,289
Options vested but not exercised as on 31.03.2015 485,189 702,350 1,187,539
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

31: Contd.
(R in Lacs)
Information in respect of options outstanding as at 31st March 2015

Option Date of Grant Exercise Price | No. of Options | Fair value as on

) 31.03.2015 (%)

28.01.2010 173.35 1,40,000 85.79

27.10.2010 313.95 3,45,189 137.16

29.08.2011 164.85 6,76,000 68.21

28.03.2012 182.20 48,800 73.75

Growth 25.10.2012 224.65 3,20,650 88.41

06.02.2013 183.15 92,500 68.65

12.11.2013 168.15 4,43,150 64.76

29.05.2014 369.80 1,45,000 149.55

31.07.2014 334.00 2,65,000 135.92

13.11.2014 276.75 55,000 110.11

The Fair Value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Options Pricing model and the significant assumptions made in
this regard are as follows :

Year Risk free Expected Life Expected Dividend Price of the underlying
Interest Rate (Years) Volatility Yield share in market at the time

of the Options grant (%)
27.10.2010 8.48% 4 47.45% 1.69% 165.79
29.08.2011 8.46% 4 47.64% 1.70% 164.80
28.03.2012 8.89% 4 44.28% 1.54% 182.15
25.10.2012 8.05% 4 41.74% 1.25% 224.65
06.02.2013 7.92% 4 40.22% 1.53% 183.15
12.11.2013 8.90% 4 37.93% 1.19% 168.15
29.05.2014 8.58% 4 37.92% 0.41% 369.80
31.07.2014 8.52% 4 38.85% 0.45% 334.00
13.11.2014 8.25% 4 38.48% 0.54% 276.75

The volatility is calculated considering the daily volatility of the stock prices on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and
BSE Limited (BSE) over a period prior to the date of grant corresponding with the expected life of the options.

In respect of Options granted under the Employee Stock Options Plan, in accordance with guidelines issued by SEBI, the accounting
value of the Options is accounted as deferred employee compensation, which is amortised on a straight line basis over a period
between the date of grant of Options and eligible dates for conversion into equity shares.

The above disclosures have been made consequent to the issue of Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-Based
Payments issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in the year 2005 and applicable for the period on or after
1 April 2005.

Stock Options exercised after the Balance Sheet date rank pari passu with the equity shares as on the Balance Sheet date and hence
are entitled to dividend, if exercised before the dividend is declared. Accordingly proposed dividend includes dividend on such equity
shares issued and allotted up to the date these financial statements are drawn up. Dividend on subsequently allotted equity shares is
accounted under “Appropriations” as ‘Dividend paid on exercise of Stock Options’.

32: Premises & Vehicles taken on Operating Lease:

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Rent and Lease rent recognized in the Profit & Loss Account 3,818.92 3,333.33

The total future minimum lease rentals payable at the date of financial statements is as under:

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

Rent Lease Rent Total Rent Lease Rent Total
For a period not later than one year 2,713.75 205.58 2,919.33 2,466.78 179.39 2,646.17
For a period later than one year but not later
than five years 7,652.35 536.08 8,188.43 6,567.09 231.65 6,798.74
Later than five years 1,594.30 - 1,594.30 955.56 - 955.56
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

33 : Additional information on assets given on operating lease :

(X in Lacs)

The Company has given on lease certain plant & machinery for a lease period ranging between 1 to 5 years. The arrangement is in the
nature of cancelable lease and are generally renewable by mutual consent or mutual agreeable terms.

Description 2014-15 2013-14
Cost Accumulated | Net Book Cost Accumulated | Net Book
Depreciation Value Depreciation Value
Plant & Machinery 1,364.73 301.43 1,063.30 1,364.73 203.16 1,161.57

The aggregate depreciation charged on the above assets during the year ended March 31, 2015 amounted to ¥ 98.27 Lacs

Description

2014-15 2013-14

Lease rental income recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

230.94 176.29

34 : Remittances during the year in foreign currency on account of dividend to non-resident

shareholders were as follows:

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Number of shareholders - 1
Number of equity shares (Face value of ¥ 2) - 1,56,000
Amount remitted - 3.12

35 : Advertisement and Publicity expenses incurred for 75th year Platinum Jubilee celebration includes ¥ Nil

(Previous Year¥ 1,353.11 Lacs)

36: Previous year figures

The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current year presentation.

As per our report attached of even date

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration No. 102021W
Chartered Accountants

Russell | Parera
Partner

Membership No0.42190
Mumbai, 28 May 2015

Mangesh Patil
V.P. - Legal & Company Secretary

EVP & Chief Financial Officer
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For and on behalf of the Board

Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman & Managing Director

Anant Bajaj
Jt. Managing Director

V.B.Haribhakti
Chairman - Audit Committee
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Q) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring rast

Range of Products

B APPLIANCES

Toasters

Mixer Grinders

Food Processors
Juicer Mixer Grinders
Juicers

Choppers & Hand Blender

Wet Grinder
Air Frier

OTGs

Microwave Ovens

Electric Kettles

Coffee Makers

Sandwich Makers

Induction Cookers

Rice Cookers

ATX 21, ATX 9, ATX 4, ATX 3, Easy Pop Auto
Platini: PX 34T Pop-up, Delite Auto Pop-up, PX35T Auto Pop-up, PX 47 T SS Girill

750W: Helix, Twister, Hurricane, GX 11, Classic

600W: GX10 DLx, GX11,Trio

500W: Bravo DIx 3 jar, GX7, Easy, GX3, Bravo 3 jar, GX 6, GX 4, Glory MG
450W: Popular

Platini: PX71M, PX 74M 750W, PX 80 F, PX 74M 750W 4 jar, PX 7 500W, PX 77M
750W, PX 75M 500W

MasterChef 3.0, FX 11, FX 10
Platini: Food Art 1000 W FP

JX 10, JX 5, Fresh sip, JX 4
Platini: JMG PX 68 J (2 jar), PX7 0 J

Majesty JEX 15, Majesty JE, Majesty JEX 6
Platini: PX 63J Juice Extractor

Silencio 500W HB, Hand Blender HB09, Presto XL chopper, Hand Blender HB0G6,
Hand Blender HB04, Optional Juicer Jar

Platini: PX 90H, PX 89 H, PX 91 HB
WX 9 with arm, WX 3 without arm
AFX 7

4500TMCSS, 3500TMCSS, 2800TMCSS, 2200TMSS, Kebab & Grill, 2200TM,
2200T, 1603TSS, 1603T, 1000TS

Platini: PX550 14L, PX52 OTRC 29L, PX53 OTR OTG-22L, PX 50 O-24L SS body

2504 ETC, 2310 ETC, 2005 ETB, 1701 MT, New Microwave start-up kit
Platini: PX 140 MW 20C, PX 145 MW 20S

TMX 3 Tea Maker, Majesty KTX 9 Multifunction, Majesty KTX 15 SS, Majesty KTX
11 SS, KTX 07 1L Plastic Non-strix, Majesty TravelKettle KTX2, 1.7L Non-Strix,
Majesty Travel KTX 1, 1.0L Non-Strix

Platini: PX 114KSS 1.2L, PX 110K 1L, PX112K 0.4L Travel Kettle, PX 111K 1.7L
Majesty CEX 11 Steam & Espresso

Maijesty Grill Ultra, Majesty Snack Master Super DLX, Majesty New Snack Master,
Majesty 2 Sandwich, Majesty 2 Grill, Majesty New SWX 7 Sandwich, Majesty New
SWX 8 Grill, Majesty New SWX 3 Sandwich, Majesty New SWX 4 Grill

Platini: PX 46 T SS Sandwich, Trio Sandwich, Duo Sandwich

Popular Ace, Majesty ICX Neo, Majesty ICX Pearl, Majesty ICX 12, Majesty ICX 7,
Majesty Mini
Platini: PX 130 IC, PX132 IC, PX 134 IC

Majesty RCX 42, Majesty RCX 28 Deluxe, Majesty RCX 28, Majesty RCX 22
Deluxe, Majesty New RCX 21 Deluxe, Majesty New RCX 7, Majesty RCX 6 PLUS,
Majesty RCX 18, Majesty New RCX 5,Majesty New RCX 3, Majesty RCX 1 Mini

Platini: PX 122 RC
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Range of Products

Water Purifiers

Pressure Cookers

Gas Stoves

Chimneys

Non Electric Kitchen Aid (NEKA)

Irons

Storage Water Heaters

Gas Water Heaters

Instant Water Heaters

Emergency Light

Room Heaters

Room Coolers

Voltage Stabilizers

Shudh RO, WPX 3, Aeques PFS, Popular UFM, Aquasilver SS, Aqualife Water
Filter 20L, Aqualife Water Filter 26L, Regular Candles, Lo-Hite Candles

Inner Lid: CX 32 2L, PCX 33, PCX 35, PCX 36A, 8L
Handi: PCX 63, PCX 65

Anodized Handi: PCX 63H, PCX 65H, Handi Duo: PCX 63D, PCX 65D,
Duo: PCX 42, PCX 43, PCX 45

Handi Anodized Induction Base: 3L - PCX 63HD, 5L - PCX 65HD
Outer Lid: PCX 3, PCX 5, PCX 2, PCX 7AT, PCX 9T, Junior Pan, Senior Pan
Electric Pressure Cooker: EPX 9

Popular-E, Popular-Eco, CX 8, CX 9, CX 10D, CGX 2 SS ECO, CGX 3 SS ECO,
CGX 4 SS,CGX 9SS,CGX 10 SS

HX 1, HX 7SS BF, HX 8BF, HX18 Auto Clean

Majesty Duo Ceramic Set Gaolin, Majesty Duo Set, Kadai hard Anodized 2.5L,
Hard Anodized Frying Pan 240mm, Induction Kadai 240mm, Induction Tawa
280mm, Induction Tawa 250mm, Induction Frying Pan 240mm, TX 26H

Dry Irons: DX5 Non-stick, DX5 Teflon, DX 3, DX 4, DX7, DX 8, DX 12, New Light
Weight, Glider, Popular, DX2 Grey, DX Black, Esteela, Popular Plus, Popular 1000
W, Auto Standard, Insta Lift, DHX 9, DHX 10, Glider, Majesty MXP

Platini: PX 20 |, PX 211, PX 221

Steam Irons: MX 1, MX 2, MX 3, MX 7, MX 8, MX 10, MX 20, MX 22, MX 12,
Majesty Rave, Majesty Aero, Majesty MX 5

5 star series Glassline: Majesty GPU 6, 10, 15 & 25ltrs

5 star series Glassline — Platini: PX 06GPV, 6L GLR; 10L GLR; 15L GLR &
25L GLR

4 star series Glassline: New Shakti 10,15 & 25ltrs

5 star series Glassline: Shakti GPV 10, 15 & 25ltrs
4 star Horizontal Glassline: Majesty GMH 15, 25ltrs, 35 & 50ltrs

4 star series Glassline — Platini: 15, 35, 50, 80, 100ltrs

Platini: PX 50 GL MV WH, PX 100 GL MV WH, PX 25 GVD, PX 6L GLR, PX 10L
GLR, PX 10 GLV, PX 15 GL MV WH, PX 25 GL MV WH, PX 35 GL MV WH, PX 80
GL MV WH

Majesty Duetto (low and high pressure applications available LPG/PNG
connection), Platini: PX 6 Duo GWH (LPG)

Majesty: 1 & 3ltrs - 3kw/4.5kw, Flora: 1 & 3 litrs - 3kw/ 4.5kw
Platini: 1i 11tr/3Kw, 3i 3ltr/3kw

ELX10

Minor, Flashy, Delux, RX 10, RX 11, RPX 12 PTC, RPX 15 PTC, RPX 16 PTC, RFX
1, RFX 2, RHX 2, CHX Duo, RHX 3 T, Blow Hot, RX 7, RX 9, RX 8, RPX 7 PTC,
OFRRH 9, OFRRH 9F, OFRH 11, OFR RH 11 F, OFR RH 13, OFRRH 13 F

Platini: PHX 7 - Fan heater, PHOF, PH 11 S, PH 13 S, PX 154 PTC, PX 155 RH9,
PH 13 F, PH 11 F, PHX 10 Wall Mounted - PTC, PHX 8 - Carbon Heater, PHX 9

DC 2016 Glacier, New DC 2004, DC 2014 Sleeq, SB 2003, TC 2010,
TC 2007, PC 2005, DC 2015 ICON, New RC 2004, DC 2009 Sleeq, TC 2008,
PC 2012, PC 2000 DLX, DC 2015 ICON Digital, MD 2020 & MD 2021

Platini: PX 95 AC Tower Desert Cooler, PX 100 DC Desert Cooler, PX 93 DC DIx,
PX 93 DC, PX 97 Torque, PX 96 PCR

For Air Conditioners: VAX 1040, VAX 1240, VAX 1440, VAX 1640
For Refrigerators: VRX 1205, For LED/LCD - VTX 0805
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Range of Products

H  MORPHY RICHARDS

Coffee Makers

Sandwich/Pop-up Toasters

Dry Irons

Steam Irons

OTGs

Microwave Ovens

Tea Maker

Kettles

Hand Blenders
Hand Mixers
Food Processors

Mixer Grinders

Juicer Mixer Grinders

Electric Cookers
Centrifugal Juicers

Portable Heaters

Induction Cookers

Water Heaters

New Europa Espresso / Cappuccino Coffee maker, Fresco coffee maker
Sandwich Toaster — SM3006, Grill Sandwich Toaster — SM3006 (G), Sandwich
Toaster — SM3007, Grill Sandwich Toaster — SM3007 (G), Europa 4 slice White,
AT-401 4 slice Popup Toaster, SM3006

Toast, Waffle & Grill, AT 201 and AT-202 -Pop-up Toaster

Senora, Senora DIx, Inspira, Desira

Dolphin Plus, Mirage, CruiserPlus, Turbosteam — dualzone, Turbosteam,
ComfigripTrizone, New Arrival — Glide, Super Glide

OTG 28 R-SS, OTG 18 R SS, OTG 24 R SS,0TG 40 RC SS, OTG 36 RC SS, OTG
52 RC SS, OTG 60RC SS, OTG 16 SS

MWO 25 CG with 200 ACM, MWO 20CG with 200 ACM, MWO 20MS, MWO
20MBG, MWO 23MCG, MWO 25MCG, MWO 30MCGR

Tea Maker

Travel Kettle - Voyager 200, Travel Jug (PP) - Voyager 100, Travel Kettle (SS) -
Voyager 300, Electric Kettle Rapido 1.8L, Noodle/Pasta & Beverage maker -
InstaCook, Electric Kettle Optimo 1.0L, Electric Kettle Impresso 1.0L

HBCP, HBCS with new locking system, HBCD SS, Pronto DIx, Pronto

Hand Mixer HMO02

Essentials 600, Essentials 100, Icon DIx

Icon Deluxe (750W), Icon Classique (750W), Icon Supreme (750W) 4 Jar MG,
Marvel Supreme (750W), Ace Plus MG (750W), Icon Essential (600W), Ritz
Essentials (600W), Champ Essentials (500W), Cutie (500W), Elite Essentials
(500w), Aero MG (500W), Superb (500W)

Divo Essentials 3- Jar, Cleo 3 Jar, Cutie 2 Jar

D55W 1.5ltr., Health Rice & Pasta, Rice Plus

Juice Extractor - Maximo, Max, Juice Xpress

Oil Filled Radiator - OFR900, OFR1100, OFR 09, OFR 09F, OFR 11F, OFR 13F,
Daisy Fan Heater, Maisy Fan Heater

Icon Essentials, Chef Xpress 900, Chef Xpress 800, Chef Xpress 400i

Storage WH Salvo 10,15,25, Ltr storage, WH Primo 15/25 Ltr storage, Instant 1Itr
Cutie

WH Lavo EM 6/10/15/25/35/50 Storage, WH LavoDigi 15/25/35 Storage

TPW Fans Vento PF

Hair Dryer HD-031

LAMPS

General Lighting Service Lamps — 25W to 100W Standard Clear Lamps 60/100W Softlite & Frosted Lamps.

Special Incandescent Lamps — 15W Clear, Night, Decoration Lamps

TUBES (Fluorescent Lamps) — T8in18W and 36W (both Halo phosphate and Triphosphate -Trulux - both CDL & WL)

— T5 Tubes in 8W, 14W, 21W, 24W, 28W & 54W (in 6500K, 4000K & 2700K)
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Range of Products

CFL (Compact Fluorescent Lamps)

Non-retrofit Range
Retrofit Range (Tubular)

Retrofit Range ( 6U Tubular)

Retrofit Range (Spiral)

LED Torches

CL (Consumer Luminaires)
LED
Halogen & HID Lamps

H  LUMINAIRES
Retail Lighting

Modern Workspace Luminaires

Connect Series

Roadway Lighting

Industrial Lighting

Linea LED

Futurabay GllI

I9W & 11W (S Type), 10W, 13W & 18W (D Type) - Both in 2 pin & 4 pin, 18W, 36W
BLL & G24D

5W, 8W, 9w, 11W, 15W, 18W, 20W, 23W, 25W, 30W, 36W, 45W, 65W, 85W (Some
types also available in WL version), Some wattage available in T3 range too.

Ecomax 30W, 45W & 65W

8W, 11W, 12W, 15W, 20W, 23W, 25W, 27W,32W, 35W, 45W, 55W Umbrella, 65W
& 85W (Some types also available in WL version) Some wattages available in T3 &
T2 range too.

Smart glow range of Torches in 12, 9, 6 and 4 LED variants; Smart glow 0.5W
Sleek, Smart glow 0.5W NM-RC, LEDGLOW range of Lanterns in Re-chargeable
and Battery driven models, Asha rechargeable Solar Lantern with Li-ion battery

Range of luminaires suitable for compact fluorescent lamps and Linear fluorescent
lamps (both in electromagnetic and electronic ballasts), Ballasts & Starters

LED Bulbs-3W, 5 W, 7 W, 9W, 12W &15 W. LED recess mount & surface mount
panels, LED Battens

Linear Halogen lamps, 150W, 250W & 400W MH Tubular and 150W MH Double
Ended Lamps

Viva 80W: Is suitable for passage, corridor lighting, premium, mini offices and
shopping malls. Made of CRCA steel sheet housing comprising of White (WH) /
Warm White (WW) / Neutral White (NW) LED's connected in series parallel, Opal
poly carbonate diffuser. White powder coated (RAL 9016) finish.

Neo Trunking System: This Retail light application, is the perfect solution for
supermarkets. Its exceptional and cost-effective solutions are designed to give you
renditions that are sleek, smart and uniform. Anodised aluminium extruded
luminaire, In-built powder coated CRCA trunk, System Wattage 40W - 4400 lumens,
suitable for surface, suspended & continuous mounting Joints available for
continuous mounting. Available in 20W & 80W.

Skylux: SKYLUX 2x2 range is designed to address the various customer needs.
SKYLUX range uses the flexibility in designing a luminaire offered by LED, to arrive
at the optimum Lumen/Watt. High efficient LM80 certified LED chips used.

Full aluminium extruded luminaire suitable for connecting end to end. High efficient
LM80 certified LED chips used. Efficacy >85 Lm/W, THD < 15%, CRI >80. Driver
mounted outside for easy maintenance. Used in offices & commercial premises.

EDGE: New range of LED street lights in Mid category 30/45/60/72W was launched
which was a range extension of the same series which was earlier launched in
72/90/120/135W

EDGE Plus: New range of LED street lights in 15/20/25/45/60/90 with IP66 degree
of protection was launched to cater to market & me too enquiries.

TURBO LED: New range of LED flood lights in 30/60/80/100/120/160W in extrusion
& IP66 degree of protection was launched which was very well received by the
customers.

Wee: LED bulk head luminaire with pressure die cast Housing and polycarbonate
cover, System Watt is 10 watt, IP 65, IK 08, Color temp : 5700k, Plug & play — Pre
fitted with cable

Surface/Suspended mounted luminaire with LEDs, CRCA steel sheet housing
comprising of White (WH) LED’s connected in series parallel. Opal diffuser is
supported by CRCA end plates. For industrial applications in warehouses, industrial
shades etc.

LED Highbay Luminaire with Electrochemically brightened, polished and anodized
spun aluminium symmetrical reflector. Epoxy powder coated die-cast aluminium
integral control gear housing. Is suitable for Thermal power stations, Railway
concourse halls, Steel plants
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Range of Products

B EPC SERVICES

H FANS

Ceiling fans

Table fans
Pedestal fans
Wall fans
Personal fans
Fresh air fans

Heavy duty exhaust fans

Air Circulators

Waterlifting Pumps

Design, engineering, supply, execution and commissioning of following types of
projects:
a) lllumination EPC SBU:

1. lllumination of power plants, Industrial plants, refineries

2. Area lighting with high masts.

3. City illumination & street lighting with octagonal poles, conical poles, tubular
poles

4. Specialized lighting projects such as monument lighting, sound & light
shows, fibre optic lighting, tunnel lighting.

Sports Lighting

Mobile masts.

Logo Signage, Highway & Road Signage

Specialized products like conical poles, CICA poles, GRP poles, Gazebos &
Pergolas, Polysteel lamp posts

9. Smart Poles / monopoles

10. Energy management systems with LEDs & Lighting Controls (New Arrival).
11. Pre-fabricated structures & hot dip galvanizing

12. Specialized products made of composite materials

© NG

b) Power Distribution
1. Rural electrification & RAPDRP projects
2. Substations up to 33 KV
3. Feeder Separation
4. Bore well pump Connections

c) Transmission line towers & Sub-station SBU:

EPC of transmission lines up to 765 KV Double circuit

EPC of EHV Substations for central & state utilities & industries
EPC of EHV/HV underground cabling work

Manufacturing of Transmission line towers

EPC of monopoles for Transmission line

EPC of Wind energy towers

Manufacturing of Sub-station structures

No ok N=

Magnifique Ep102,Cruzair Décor, Bajaj-Disney Kids Fan Range, Euro, Centrim,
Leatrim, Hextrim, Lancer, Winstrim, Austrim, Grace Gold Dx, Regal Star, Regal
Gold, Elegance, Ark, Esteem, Ultima, Pride, Grace LX, Speedster, Grace DIx,
Kassels Star, Excel Star, Kassels 50 ISI, Electra 50, Tezz, Panther, Bahar, Bahar
Deco, Edge, Maxima 4 Blade 600mm

Bajaj Midea, Esteem, Elite-Neo, Rush-Air

Bajaj Midea, Tez Faratta, Esteem, Elite-Neo, Rush-Air

Bajaj Midea, Esteem, Elite-Neo, Rush-Air

Ultima Table, Wall &cabin fan

Maxima DX, Bahar, Freshee MK 1|

Supreme DIx and Supreme Plus range of Heavy duty Exhaust & Fans range, MAX
AIR Hi speed freshair fans

Supreme Plus range of Air Circulators

Self Priming, Centrifugal, open well & Bore well submersible pumps
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BAJAJ /uspiring [rast

Bajaj Electricals Limited

CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887
Regd. Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai-400 001
Tel: 022-22043780 Fax: 022-22851279
Website: www.bajajelectricals.com
Email: legal@bajajelectricals.com

PHYSICAL BALLOT FORM FOR VOTING ON AGM RESOLUTIONS

FORM NO. MGT-12 -POLLING PAPER
[Pursuantto Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) ofthe Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company
Registered office address/Contact details:

Bajaj Electricals Limited

45-47,Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400001
Tel-022-22043780 Fax- 022-22851279
Website- www.bajajelectricals.com

Email- legal@bajajelectricals.com

CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887
BALLOT PAPER
Sr. Particulars Details
1. Name of the first named Shareholder (In Block Letters)
2. Postal address
3. Registered Folio No./ *Client ID No. (*applicable to investors
holding shares in demat mode)
4. Class of Share Equity Shares

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolutions to be passed for the business stated in the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting dated 28 May 2015, by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the resolutions by placing tick (v~ ) mark in the appropriate box below:

Sr.

Resolutions

No. of Shares
held by
me/us

1/ We assent to
the Resolution
(FOR)

1/ We dissent to
the Resolution
(AGAINST)

Ordinary Business

1.

Ordinary resolution to consider and adopt the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

Ordinary resolution to declare dividend for the financial year ended 31
March 2015.

Ordinary resolution to appoint a Director in place of Shri Madhur Bajaj
(DIN 00014593), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

Ordinary resolution to ratify the appointment of M/s Dalal & Shah,
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 102021W) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company at a remuneration of % 65,00,000/-
(Rupees Sixty five lacs only) plus service tax thereon and re-
imbursement of travelling and other out-of-pocket expenses for the
year 2015-16.

Special Business

5. Ordinary resolution to approve the remuneration payable to M/s. R.
Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 00010),
appointed by the Board of Directors as cost auditor of the Company for
the financial year 2015-16.
Place : Signature of the Member or
Date : Authorised Representative
Notes:

(i) If you opt to cast your vote by e-voting, there is no need to fill up and sign this form.
(ii) Last date for receipt of Physical Ballot Form: 3 August 2015 (5.00 p.m).
(iii) Please read the instructions printed overleaf carefully before exercising your vote.
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INSTRUCTIONS

General Instructions

Shareholders have option to vote either through remote e-voting i.e. electronic means or to convey assent/dissent in physical
form. If a shareholder has opted for physical ballot form, then he/she should not vote by remote e-voting and vice-versa.
However, in case shareholders cast their vote through both physical ballot form and remote e-voting, then vote cast through
remote e-voting mode shall be considered and vote cast through physical ballot form shall be ignored.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of the shares registered in the name of the shareholders as on the Cut-off
Datei.e. 31 July 2015.

Voting through physical ballot form cannot be exercised by a proxy. However, corporate and institutional shareholders shall be
entitled to vote through their authorised representatives with proof of their authorization, as stated below.

Instructions for voting physically on ballot form

1.

10.

A shareholder desiring to exercise vote by physical ballot should complete this Form (no other form or photocopy thereof is
permitted) and send it to the Scrutinizer, M/s.Anant B. Khamankar & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, by post at their own
cost to reach them at their address B-510, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar (West), Mumbai 400 086 on or
before the close of working hours (5.00 pm) on 3 August 2015. All Forms received after this date will be strictly treated as if the
reply from such Member has not been received.

This Form should be completed and signed by the shareholder (as per the specimen signature registered with the
Company/Depository Participants). In case of joint holding, this Form should be completed and signed by the first named
shareholder and in his/her absence, by the next named shareholder.

In respect of shares held by corporate and institutional shareholders (companies, trusts, societies, etc.), the completed ballot
form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the relevant board resolution/appropriate authorization, with the specimen
signature(s) of the authorized signatory(ies) duly attested.

The consent must be accorded by recording the assent in the column ‘FOR’ or dissent in the column ‘AGAINST’ by placing a
tick mark (v') in the appropriate column in the Form. The assent / dissent received in any other form shall not be considered
valid.

Shareholders are requested to fill the form in indelible ink and avoid filling it by using erasable writing medium(s) like pencil.
There will be one ballot form for every Folio/ Client id irrespective of the number of joint holders.

Ashareholder may request for a duplicate ballot form, if so required, and the same duly completed should reach the Scrutinizer
not later than the date specified under instruction No.1 above.

Shareholders are requested not to send any other paper alongwith the ballot form. They are also requested not to write
anything in the ballot form except the required particulars; giving their assent or dissent and putting their signature. If any such
other paper is sent the same will be destroyed by the Scrutinizer.

The Scrutinizers' decision on the validity of the ballot form will be final and binding.

Incomplete, unsigned or incorrectly ticked ballot forms will be rejected.
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Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L31500MH1938PLC009887
.) Bajaj Electricals Limited Registered Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

- Tel: 022-2204 3841/3780 Fax: 022-2285 1279
SpIry.
BAJAJ /"/P/ ”/—7;”57‘ Email Id: legal@bajajelectricals.com Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

BANK ACCOUNT PARTICULARS / ECS MANDATE FORM

IWE e do hereby authorize Bajaj Electricals Limited to :
+ printthe following details on my/our dividend warrant.
+ credit my/our dividend amount directly to my/our Bank Account by ECS. (* strike out whichever is not applicable)

Particulars of Bank Account:
A. Bank Name

B. Branch Name Address
(for Mandate only)

C. 9 Digit Code number of the Bank &
Branch as appearing on the MICR cheque

D.  Account Type (Saving/Current/Overdraft)

E.  Account No. as appearing on the cheque book

F.  STD Code & Telephone No.

I/We shall not hold the Bank responsible, if the ECS could not be implemented or the Bank discontinue(s) the ECS, for any reason.

MAIL To : LINK INTIME INDIA PVT LIMITED
C-13, PANNALAL SILK MILLS COMPOUND
L.B.S. MARG, BHANDUP (WEST)
MUMBAI-400 078

(Signature of the First Shareholder/Joint Shareholder)

Please attach the photocopy of a cheque or a blank cancelled cheque issued by your Bank relating to your above account for verifying
the accuracy of the 9 digit code number.

In case you are holding shares in demat form, kindly advise your Depository Participant to take note of your Bank Account
particulars/ECS mandate.




Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L31500MH1938PLC009887
.) Bajaj Electricals Limited Registered Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

- Tel: 022-2204 3841/3780 Fax: 022-2285 1279
SpLrY.
BAJAJ /”’D ;«//774{:2‘ Email Id: legal@bajajelectricals.com Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

PROXY FORM
Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail Id.
Folio No./Client Id.
DP Id.
I/We, being the member(s) of Equity Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1 Name

Address

E-mail Id.

Signature

or failing him/her

2 Name

Address

E-mail Id.

Signature

or failing him/her

3 Name

Address

E-mail Id.

Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 76th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held
on the Thursday, 6 August 2015 at 12.30 P.M. at Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai -
400021 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolution Optional*
Ordinary Business For Against
1 To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2015 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon
2 Todeclare dividend
3 To appoint a Director in place of Shri Madhur Bajaj (DIN 00014593), who retires by

rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment

4 To ratify appointment of M/s Dalal & Shah, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
102021W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company on a remuneration of ¥ 65,00,000/-
(Rupees sixty five lacs only) plus service tax thereon and reimbursement of travelling and
other out-of-pocket expenses for the year 2015-16

Special Business

5 | To approve the remuneration of Cost Auditor
Signed this day of of2015
’ Affix
Signature of the Member : Revenue
. Stamp
Signature of the Proxy holder(s): of %1

Note

1. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. Aperson can act as proxy on behalf of Members upto and not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company. Further, a Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company, may
appointa single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or Member.

Itis optionalto puta (/") in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column
blank against any or all Resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.



Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L31500MH1938PLC009887
‘) Bajaj Electricals Limited Registered Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

BAJAJ /ﬂxp/'r'/h/ Trust Tel: 022-2204 3841/3780 Fax: 022-2285 1279
Email Id: legal@bajajelectricals.com Website: www.bajajelectricals.com

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON THURSDAY, 6 AUGUST 2015
ATTENDANCE SLIP

Serial No. :

Registered Folio No./ *DP ID and Client ID
(*Applicable to Members holding shares in
dematerialized form)

Name and address of the
Member(s)

Joint Holder 1
Joint Holder 2

Number of Shares held

Name of Proxyholder (if applicable)

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Jamnalal Bajaj
Marg, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021 on Thursday, 6 August 2015 at 12.30 p.m.

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Please hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL.
PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING HALL.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVSN (Electronic Voting Sequence Number) *Default PAN / Sequence No.

150626022

* Only members who have not updated their PAN with Company / Depository Participant shall use default PAN / Sequence No. in the PAN
field.

Note: Please read the instructions printed to the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 28 May 2015. The E-Voting period starts from
10.00 a.m. (IST) on Monday, 3 August 2015 and ends at 5.00 p.m. (IST) on Wednesday, 5 August 2015. The E-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.




New Arrivals .>

Appliances

Majesty Aero ICX Pearl
Cordless Steam Iron Induction Cooker MD 2020 Coolest

Majesty Hard Anodized Kadhai PCX 63 HD Pressure Cooker
Lighting Luminaires

LED BULBS !

» & ¢ & &

15W Duranto VIVA

|"'I .-‘_\ i
/ ¥ \ st :

Circa LED 12W Squadra LED 12W Linea LED Prime

7 ;7 &

Circa SF LED 15W Squadra SF LED 15W SKYLUX Wee Plus !




New Arrivals .>

Centrim Ceiling Fan 3

8
“
3
W Elite-Neo Wall Fan
ey

Leatrim Ceiling Fan

Elite-Neo Pedestal fan Elite-Neo Table Fan

morphy richards

Icon DIx Food Processor

i

Cleo 3 Jar Juicer Mixer Grinder Cutie 2 Jar Juicer Mixer Grinder




WELCOME A
NEW REVOLUTION .-

ONADS/BEL/027/2015

Presenting the future in lighting - Bajaj LED, with features that go beyond the ordinary. Ecologically friendly and socially responsible, Bajaj LEDs are both
practical and cost-effective. However, what will surprise you most is the value they add to your life — whether it is their longevity, aesthetic designs or
energy-saving attributes. Discover the science of light with Bajaj LEDs.

> BAJAJ | &)

The science of light

www.bajajelectricals.com | email: lightingsupport@bajajelectricals.com | &j |

Terms and conditions apply. Colours shown are for representation purposes only. Actual colours may vary. *Bajaj 7W LED Bulb delivers 600 lumen output as compared to a 60W GLS lamp giving similar light output.
#Hours mentioned is Mean Time Between Failure
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Bajaj Electricals Limited

45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001
www.bajajelectricals.com



Dalal & Shah

Chartered Accountants

Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance

To the Members of Bajaj Electricals Limited,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Bajaj
Electricals Limited, for the year ended March 31,2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement(s) of the said Company with stock exchange(s) in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur examination was carried out in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For and on behalf of Dalal & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 102021W

N\

Russell I Par a
Partner
Membership No : 042190

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2015

Dalal & Shah, 252 Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West), Mumbai - 400 028
T: +91 (22) 6669 1000, F: +91 (22) 6654 7800, +91 (22) 6654 7801

Head office: 252 Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West), Mumbai - 400 028



Dalal & Shah

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BAJAJ ELECT RICALS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bajaj Electricals Limited
(*the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5} of
the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3-
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
including the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
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evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
' provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion
8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2015, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Q.

1.

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act {hereinafter
referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have heen kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act,

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March a1,
2015 on its financial position in its financial statements;
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ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31,2015 , as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts ;

iii. The instances of delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company, during the year ended March

31,2015

as follows:

Interest on matured public deposits (Under Section 205C of the

Companies Act 1956)

Mumbai
May 28, 2015

L i R

1011824 200 14-Oct-2014 | 17-Oct-2014 3
1011846 308 16-Oct-2014 17-Oct-2014 1
1011847 308 16-Oct-2014 17-Oct-2014 1
3004672 39 4-Nov-2014 | o7-Nov-2014 3
For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration Number:
102021W

Chartered Accountants
S~

Russell 1 Par
Partner
Membership Number : 42190
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Bajaj Electricals Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 41, 2015.

i. {a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according 1o a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Pursuant
to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

ii. (a) The inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been physically verified by the
Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the
Management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business.

(¢) On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company is
maintaining proper records of inventory. Discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory by Management, as compared to book records though material have been
appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

i, The Company has granted secured/ unsecured loans, to 2 companies covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act,

(a) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as
stipulated,
and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no overdue amount more than Rupees One
Lakh,

iv.  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of
goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of
the Company, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across, nor have been informed of, any continuing failure to correct major
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system,

v, In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Aet and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent notified, with
regard to the deposits accepted from the public. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal on the .
Company in respect of the aforesaid deposits.

Dalal & Shah, 252 Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar ( West), Mumbai - 400 028
T +91 (22) 6669 1000, F: +01 (22) 6654 7800, +91 (22} 6654 7801

Head office: 2572 Veer Savarkar Marg, Shivaji Park, Dadar (West), Mumbai - 400 028
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph g of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Bajaj
Electricals Limited on the financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2015
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We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintaij

products where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government

maintenance of cost records has been specified under sub
facie, the prescribe
however, made a d

Act, and are of the opinion that, prima
made and maintained. We have not,

with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,

vii. {a)

statutory dues in respect of sales

()

According to the information and explanations
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally
tax, duty of customs , value added tax
service tax, works contract tax, tax deducted at source, provident fund
employees state insurance scheme, though there has

According to the information and explanations

given to us

ned by the Company in respect of

of India, the

-section (1) of Section 148 of the
d accounts and records have been
etailed examination of the records

and the records of the Company
regular in depositing undisputed
.professional tax,
, family pension,
been a slight delay in a few cases, and
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including income tax,
and other material statutory dues,

given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, the particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,

duty of customs and duty of excise duty,
have not been deposited on account of a

value added tax or cess a
dispute, are as follows:

s at March 31, 2015 which

Name of the | Nature of dues Amount Period to which the amount | Forum where the |
statute (Rs. In | relates dispute is pending
lakhs)
Income Tax Intimation /s 23.16 | Assessment Year 11-12 Commissioner
2004 Appeals
Question of Law 170.48 | Assessment Year 85-86 High Court
Sales Tax Additional demand 499.30 | For Jaipur, Chakan Factory, | Dy. Commissioner
received on basis of Delhi, Lucknow, Raipur, { / Commissioner /
assessment order Indore,Nagpur, Matchwell, Jt.  Commissioner
Cochin, Bangalore, Kolkata, | Appeals
Bhubaneswar, Patna for
vartous assessment years
ranging from 1988-2015
Additional demand 6.23 | For Kolkata AY 2003-04 Appellate Tribunal
received on basis of
assessment order
Additional demand 410.79 ; For Delhi, Lucknow, Raipur, | Tribunal
received on basis of Hyderabad, Bangalore,
assessment order Kolkata, Bhubaneswar for
various assessment years
ranging from 1985-2010
Additional demand 204.10 | For  Chennai, Bangalore, High Court
received on basis of Bhubaneswar for various
assessment order assessment years ranging
from 2001-09
Service Tax Additional demand 133.18 | For Jaipur, Chakan Factory | Dy, Commissioner
IR received on basis of for various assessment years /_Commissioner /
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Annexire to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in baragraph g of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Bajaj
Electricals Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2015
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assessment order ’ ranging from 2005-09 Jt. Commissioner
. { Appeals
Excise Issues Relating to 1.53 | Financial Year 2006-07 Commissioner
Export Appeals

Decision issued in 6.52 | Financial Years 92-93 and | Tribunal
favour of Collector 9798

of Central Excise,

Pune

(c) The amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund has been
transferred within the stipulated time in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder except for an amount of Rs 855 which has not vet
been transferred by the Company within the stipulated time.

Viil. The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not
incurred any cash losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

ix. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in fepayment of dues to any
financial institution or bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms
and conditions of the guarantees given by the Company for loans taken by others from
banks or financial institutions during the year, are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.,

xi. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have heen applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

xii, During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we

been informed of any such case hy the Management.

For Dalal & Shah

Firm Registration Number-
102021W

Chagered Accountants

Y\

Russell I /

Mumbai Partner
May 28, 2015 Membership Number 142190
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Covering letter of the Annual Audit Report for the Financial Year 2014-15 to be filed with the Stock
Exchanges pursuant to Clause 31(a) of the Listing Agreement.
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Name of the Company

Bajaj Electricals Limited

CEO / Managing Director

CFO

Auditor of the Company

Audit Committee Chairman

2. | Annual Financial Statements | 31 March 2015
for the financial year ended

3. | Type of Audit Observation Un-qualified

4, Frequency of Observation Not Applicable

5. | To be signed by :

SHEKHAR BAJAJ
Chairman & Managing
Director

ANANT PURANDARE
Executive Vice President &
CFO

RUSSELL | PARERA
Partner, Dalal & Shah
Chartered Accountants
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